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Financial Highlights B % # =

FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBHE
2006 2007 2008
ZETRF e —EENF

(RMB milion)  (RMB milion)  (RMB million)
(AREBERL) (AREBEET) (AR¥EER)

Revenue 9N 9,782 13,499 19,388
Gross Profit Esp 1,424 1,917 517
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of A2 RIEzaHE B A (5 F
the Company 1,033 1,160 44
Basic Earnings per Share (RMB) BRERNEN(ARET) 0.36 0.40 0.02
Net Assets FEEEA 5,601 6,696 6,490
Total Assets HARE 8,221 10,162 14,136
Profit Attributable to
Revenue Equity Holders of the Company
WA AATEREFEAELSRR
RMB million RMB million
AREBET ARBEETT
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SELLING PRICE AND GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS) PER TONNE SHHEBEHEER,(EF)

2006 2007 2008
ZETRF ZETHF —EENE
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB)

(AR#TT) (AR®TT) (AR¥T)

Selling Price per Tonne EuEtHEE 2,602 3,265 4,273
Gross Profit/(Loss) per Tonne BWEER,(£E)

Billets SR 384 281 (10)

Strips and strip products A N A AR E o 445 404 99

H-section steel H 7§ 288 668 252

Cold rolled sheets and R ELR R SE AR

galvanised sheets (680) 198 49
Combined o) 380 464 114
Selling Price per Tonne Gross Profit per Tonne
SHHEE BWEF

RMB RMB

ARMETT AR
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SALES VOLUME BY PRODUCTS REREEE S 2HEHE
2006 2007 2008
ZETRF —RELF —EENFE
(000 (000 (000
tonnes) tonnes) tonnes)
(Fma) (Fma) (Fmg)
Billets S 1 1,173 299 1,007
Strips and strip products HS S K S A KA 2 2,202 2,451 2,061
H-section steel H 7 8 250 1,205 1,225
Cold rolled sheets and R ELR M IE SR
galvanised sheets 121 173 241
Combined e 3,746 4,128 4,534

Sales Volume by Products

RERBEAS 2HE
2006 2007 2008
—BEX —EELF —EENF
31.3% B8% 7:2% 59.4% 2 29,
\ / A \ ’ v . 0\
5.3%
/ )
3.2% / /

ya 29.2% 27.0%

6.7%

M Billets s £
[ strips and strip products %5 4 [ % 3048 & &
H-section steel HE if

Cold rolled sheets and galvanised sheets /% |4 & % & R
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS B/
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Han Jingyuan BRAUR A
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (BEEEETEFEEHTE)
Mr. Zhu Jun KEXAE
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Mr. Shen Xiaoling LB A4
Mr. Zhu Hao A
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Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler Jean-Paul Georges Schuler 54
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Mr. Yu Tung Ho REERE
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Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis (Chairman) BN REE (FFE)
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Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman) BWURSEE ()
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Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis EIRAE
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Mr. Liu Lei BZSEE
Ms. Ma Oi Ming FEHALL
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Mr. Chan Siu Kay PRABE
COMPANY SECRETARY NEME
Ms. Ma Oi Ming FEHRLL
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Corporate Information 2 8&#

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 901-2 & 10,

9th Floor, Great Eagle Centre,

23 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

(formerly known as Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited)

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.chinaorientalgroup.com

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
China Construction Bank
Agricultural Bank of China
Bank of China

China Minsheng Bank
DBS Bank

ICBC (Asia)

MR ERE
Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda
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Chairman’s Statement =FE#R%

2008 is a year that marks tremendous changes in the global
economy. The economic downturn caused by the financial crisis has
affected a wide spectrum of industries, including the steel industry,
of various degrees.

The Group’s operations still maintained relatively satisfactory growth
in the first half of the year. However, in the second half of the
year, especially in the fourth quarter, demand for various types of
commodities slackened as the economy got worse. The sluggish
demand led to a decline in the prices of a number of commodities,
including metals. This, together with the Group’s purchase of
excessive raw materials before the Olympic Games at a higher
cost and the consumption of these expensive raw materials for
production and sales in the second half of the year, further dragged
down tremendously the profit margin of the Group for the year of
2008.

In the face of a severe operating environment, China Oriental Group
Company Limited (“China Oriental” or the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) achieved proactive response. The
Group had made timely adjustment to its production schedule and
expansion plan according to market changes and adopted a variety
of cost-reduction measures. However, it takes time for the results
of the various measures to be fully reflected. As such, the operating
results of 2008 experienced significant decline as compared with the
year of 2007.

RN\ FREREBERE 2B EH
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Chairman’s Statement =FE#{&E

The effect of the series of cost-reduction measures taken by the
Group in the second half of 2008 is expected to fully realise in 2009,
which will help the Group to maintain its competitive advantage and
to continue to consolidate its market position amid a relatively volatile
market environment.

ArcelorMittal, the world’s largest steel corporation, has become the
Group’s second largest shareholder during the year under review.
Both parties have since maintained a close cooperative relationship.
During the year under review, ArcelorMittal actively participated in
the operations of the Company, and appointed senior management
executives to the Board of the Company, which bring the Company’s
corporate governance more in line with international standards.
The two parties also stepped up collaboration on procurement of
raw material, enhancement of technology, expansion of overseas
markets, etc.

'-'lq:F:-'_
_| x :-l_-n.—-=|':_ e, B

t!:Hsllli W EWEF
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Chairman’s Statement =FE&H &

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the revenue of the Group was
RMB19,388 million (2007: RMB13,499 million), representing an
increase of 44% as compared with that of 2007. The growth in
revenue was mainly due to the relative large increase in total sales
volume from approximately 4.1 million tonnes in the year of 2007
to 4.5 million tonnes in the year of 2008. Besides, the increase in
average selling price by 31% from RMB3,265 per tonne in 2007
to RMB4,273 per tonne in 2008 also attributed to the growth in
revenue.

During the year under review, the production costs had been pushed
up by raw materials and coke purchased at higher prices during the
previous periods. Moreover, the sales volume of strips and strip-
related products, which offered a higher gross profit, had been
decreased by 16% when compared with that of the previous year,
while the sales volume of billets, with a relatively lower margin, was
2.4 times higher than that of 2007. As a result, the Group’s gross
profit for the year decreased to RMB517 million from RMB1,917
million in 2007. The gross profit of the Group’s steel products
for 2008 was RMB114 per tonne, representing an downward
adjustment of RMB350 per tonne or 75% from RMB464 in 2007 .

The audited profit before tax and profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company for 2008 were RMB114 million and RMB44 million
respectively, representing decreases of 93% and 96 % respectively
compared with that of previous year.

During the year under review, the Group had a net cash inflow
generated from operating activities of RMB148 million (2007:
RMB1,074 million) for its consolidated cash flows.

Due to a significant slowdown in the market demand in the second
half of the year, the average utilisation rate of the Group’s production
lines was approximately 90% for the full year. To maintain the
Company’s profitability, the Group took aggressive responsive
measures during the second half of the year. With respect to
production costs, the Group strove to minimise consumption during
the manufacturing process and strictly control the cost incurred in
every aspect of the production process. To effectively lower fixed
costs, the Group implemented streamlined management measures
in the fourth quarter by cutting about 1,000 non-technology-based
low-level positions.

OB

REBEFERN AEBZHEBEAA
R¥19388EIL(ZZTEZTLF: ARK
134991870 ) M L FH44%H) EFF -
HEBEITATERANHEER-_TT L
FENNMN0ER ELAZ ST N\FE
H) 450 BWE - B - FHIHEBR AR
EhE31% H_TETLtFENTHEAR
¥ 3,265 T EAZZZTZTNFENTMHEA
R¥4,27370 - L AHEEN A ML E
Ifgﬁo

REEEFEA - BRARHE AR RME
MERERERRS/KE  BEAEE
EEKRASD - B HREMNERS
B R A E M ER EF T
16% ¢ MEFEABEEIX ) HH L 8H 2 AR
“ETLFRR24ME - At - AEEH
FEMNH_ZEZLFHARKE1917ETT
KE_TZT N\FHARESATEIL =
T N\FEAEBETHMEERESERN
BARE114TT BRZZEZLFHAREK
4647T - FME N IEARKEI507T375% °

“ET) \FREZHAEHRAR N EA
NEEEFAARIEGND R /ARE
1AMETT R ARKC.441BTT - WEF DA
BT 93% K 96% °

REEFERN  AEBELETHEEN
BAEFRERABARE148EIL(ZE
T AREE10.74180T) ©

MR THFEMEHERLNBEENE A&
BAEEGR2FATFANBERLORZ0% -
AREBEE TN FFRIT BB EL 5
NERFRBIANES - EEEKET
| AREHAOBRIEEBEFNE
o WEBBEHE-LERMNEM -
EENFE  AEERTBMEKEE
FRAS - BITRRMABEUR - BURA — T
B EL A E R L

Annual Report 2008 =% \444 W)



JI0l China Oriental Group Company Limited H [85 J5 45 % e A7 R A ]

Chairman’s Statement £E#{&

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The Group’s overall annual production capacity of crude
steel reached 6,000,000 tonnes during the year. With the full
commencement of the operation of the new H-section steel
production facilities, the production capacity of H-section steel
reached 2,200,000 tonnes, further consolidating the Group as
one of the largest H-section steel production centres in China.
In addition, the Group successfully increased its shareholding in
Foshan Jinxi Jinlan Cold Rolled Sheet Co., Ltd (“Jinxi Jinlan”) to
81.5% at the beginning of 2008 and made a further capital injection
to Jinxi Jinlan, which provided sufficient financial resources to Jinxi
Jinlan for its business development, while strengthening the Group’s
management control over Jinxi Jinlan.

In response to market changes, Jinxi Jinlan adjusted its production
facilities during the year, modifying one of the production lines to
produce extremely thin steel strip, which is supplied to high-end
electronic consumer products manufacturers and thus has a higher
competitive edge in the market.

During the year, in order to further control costs and raw material
supply, the Group announced several plans for extending its
operations to upstream activities during the first half of the year.
The plans included investment in the construction of a coking plant
with an annual production capacity of 2.2 million tonnes of coke; in
August 2008, the Group announced the acquisition of a 71% equity
interest and a 71% shareholders’ loan in Tangshan Baotai Iron and
Steel Group Xinyi Iron and Steel Company Limited (now known
as Tangshan Fengrun Hengfeng Iron and Steel Company Limited)
(“Xinyi Iron and Steel” or “Hengfeng Iron and Steel”) for a total cash
consideration of RMB532 million. Xinyi Iron and Steel is a sizable
domestic steel mill. It has integrated production equipment with steel
production capacity of 1,000,000 tonnes per annum.

¥KOEe)
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Chairman’s Statement =FE&H &

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In the second half of 2008, the global financial crisis deepened.
Pursuant to prudent financial management and strengthened
risk management, the Group had postponed the plan for the
development of the coking plant. Moreover, the Group had also
terminated the acquisition of the 71% equity interest and 71%
shareholders’ loan in Xinyi Iron and Steel. The vendors of the Xinyi
Iron and Steel’s equity interests had refunded RMB200 million of the
part of consideration paid up front by the Group before 31 March
2009, and the remaining balance of RMB200 million will be refunded
to the Group before 31 December 2009.

On 24 March 2009, the Group acquired the assets relating to the iron
and steel production from Hengfeng Iron and Steel at an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB396 million. Following the acquisition
of assets, the Group’s annual production capacity of steel products
will be approximately 7 million tonnes.

Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Company Limited (“Jinxi Limited”), the
principal subsidiary of the Group, collaborated with The College of
Metallurgy and Energy of Hebei Polytechnic University to establish
Jinxi Iron and Steel Research Institute, for product development,
technology upgrade and staff training.

STABLE STRATEGIC COOPERATION WITH
ARCELORMITTAL

During the year, ArcelorMittal became the Company’s second
largest shareholder and began collaboration with the Group.
ArcelorMittal, as the world’s largest steel company, will support the
Group through providing raw material and technology. Moreover,
it will also appoint staff to participate in the Group’s management
and decision making, in order to help the Group to move closer
towards reaching the international levels of production efficiency and
management quality.

ArcelorMittal is a global leader in technology producing H-section
steel and the Company is one of the largest producers of H-section
steel in mainland, China. The cooperation between the two
companies will be advantageous for the Group to consolidate its
leadership in China’s H-section steel market, while providing a solid
foundation for the Group’s future expansion in overseas markets.
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Chairman’s Statement £E#{&

STABLE STRATEGIC COOPERATION WITH
ARCELORMITTAL (continued)

Under the iron ore and coke long-term supply agreement, the
Group can ensure reliable supply of raw material for production, and
effectively lower the risk of fluctuations in the price of raw material.

On 30 December 2008, the Group appointed Mr Muktesh
Mukherjee, who is the senior management of ArcelorMittal, as the
Company’s executive director, and two other senior management
staff of ArcelorMittal as the Company’s non-executive directors.
Their presence on the Board marks further cooperation between
the Company and ArcelorMittal, and their experience in the global
steel and financial markets will benefit the Company’s business
development. ArcelorMittal’s worldwide business exposure will
help the Company to broaden its international perspectives, and
enhance its corporate development capability. The three newly
appointed directors possess expertise and extensive experience in
the development of steel business worldwide, which will facilitate
cultivation and development of the Company’s steel business at
home and abroad. All this will further strengthen the ties between
ArcelorMittal and the Company.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The global economic recession, triggered by the financial crisis, has
now spread to Asia. In China, the government’s austerity measures
implemented at the beginning of last year have affected the property
market, and given an uncertain outlook, the construction projects in
the private sector will also slow down. All this will affect the demand
for H-section steel, which is the principal construction material.

The Group expected that in the first half of 2009, the demand for
steel will remain weak and steel prices will be at low levels. However,
coke and coal prices dropped in the first quarter, which will ease the
pressure on production cost. The positive effects will gradually be
realised in 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement =FE&H &

FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

In addition, the results of the cost reduction measures taken by the
Group in the second half of 2008 will be reflected in the current year.
This will help improve the Group’s competitiveness amid a severe
operating environment.

The PRC government has already announced its RMB4 trillion
stimulus plan to boost internal demand. Most of the fund will be
used in infrastructure construction and improvement of rural areas.
It is expected that the gradual implementation of these construction
plans will stimulate the demand for construction materials, including
steel products. As it takes time for the implementation of large-scale
construction projects, the positive impact will not be felt until late this
year or early next year.

The Central Government has issued a detailed policy paper to direct
the development of the iron and steel industry in China by late March
2009. The Board of Directors are mindful of the short-term and long-
term impacts of the said policy paper on the Company; and have
already instructed the senior management team to formulate the
appropriate work plans both at the high level and the working level
S0 as to take advantage of the same.

In the face of market challenges, the Group will prudently carry out
its operations, lower costs and control capital expenditure, while
maintaining sufficient cash flow.

At the same time, the Group will continue to enhance its
competitiveness. By seizing the opportunities arising from market
consolidation, the Group will consolidate its market leadership.

The Group will continue deepen cooperation with ArcelorMittal on
the aspects of corporate management, production technology, raw
material supply, and overseas sales, in an attempt to improve the
Group’s operation efficiency and management.

RREE#)

BEON - AN 7 A T BIAE M
S HRAE ORI EES FHE
B o i Y5 75 BN 4 75 AR U 1 AR S TR
TRAHFH -

TEBRFD M RANBETAREH
BATHETE > EPRAFD ARER
ER WEERNRREIE  AHELE
SR E R B KA R R AR FE A
ERREMBER - EEBAEEREAR
RERE HAENLIEZEEES

TEBAR -—ZTNF=AKRERT —
078 B8 7 B 0 48 3 R 2R 3 R A A R
E-EERIBIRBREHANARE
HMEHEE  TRLEHE CEXE
EEHEEENREME TR EIMATT
FHEIE -

HEMISHHRE - REBKRELE
PERARRARFIR G B A - ER T
HER SR °

R - REBESEBR IR B FH3
FEY MNAMSEANKE  Z2EH
MG ATHAL -

AREBETREER AT BERERE
EEER  HERMN - RMHERIAE
BINMEERTERNAIE - LWFME AR
N AREENEE RS MEIRKF o

Annual Report 2008 =% \4£44 K]



P China Oriental Group Company Limited Hv[F 5 J5 48 #5545 BR 4 5]

Chairman’s Statement £E#{&

BUSINESS OPERATION

Sales Volume

In 2008, the Group’s total sales volume was 4,534,000 tonnes
(2007: 4,128,000 tonnes), representing an increase of approximately

10% as compared with that of previous year.

The Group’s sales volume breakdown was as follows:

RELDRE

HE

el

—EENFAREEBIHEE 54,534,000
WE( —ZBA4F : 4,128,000W8) - & EF
EFAI10% o

AEERERFEHEEENT

2008 2007
“EENE ZETHEF
Sales volume Sales volume
fHE HE Changes
Percentage Percentage in Sales
('000 tonnes) % (000 tonnes) % volume
A EL Bl
(FH) % (Fug) %  HEE
Billets R 1,007 22.2 299 7.2 237%
Strips and strip products R EIEER 2,061 455 2,451 50.4 (16%)
H-section steel HAYEH 1,225 27.0 1,205 29.2 2%
Cold rolled sheets and RER R
galvanised sheets IR 241 5.3 173 4.2 39%
Total &t 4,534 100.0 4,128 100.0 10%

During the year, the Group experienced substantial drop in the gross
profit. This was mainly attributable to the decrease in sales volume
of strips and strip products, which offered a higher gross profit, by
16% compared with the previous year. Besides, sales volume of
billet products, which generated very slim gross profit, was 2.4 times
higher than that of 2007.
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Chairman’s Statement =FE&H &

BUSINESS OPERATION (continued) ¥EEEe)
Revenue HERE
Revenue of the Group in 2008 was RMB19,388 million (2007: —EE N\FAREEEHEEEAARE

RMB13,499 million), representing an increase of 44% as compared 193.88 BT (—EZE+F : AR 134.99

3.
with that of previous year. 1BIT) » MEFIERA44% o

The Group’s sales breakdown and average selling price by product NEBNREHEFEEHEELTSIEER

(excluding value added tax) were as follows: 2 EREEBSENT -
2008 2007 Changes in
—EENF L it
Average Average
Revenue selling Revenue selling Average
(RMB price (RMB price selling
million) (RMB/tonne) million)  (RMB/tonne) Revenue price
RMB ¥4 T4
ARM HEE HEEE HEE  HEER ¥
(B8Bn) (o/®W) (BBrn) (T/%) HERE  HEEE
Billets HiipZy 3,919 3,891 897 2,999 337% 30%
Strips and strip products H R EWEER 8,574 4,159 7441 3,036 15% 37%
H-section steel HAL S 5,562 4,538 4,298 3,566 29% 27%
Cold rolled sheets and RER R
galvanised sheets R 1,319 5,489 840 4870 57% 13%
Others Hith 14 - 23 - (39%) -
Total A&t 19,388 4,273 13,499 3,265 44% 31%
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Chairman’s Statement £E#{&

BUSINESS OPERATION (continued)
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit/(Loss)

The audited consolidated gross profit of the Group in 2008 was
RMB517 million (2007: RMB1,917 million), representing a decrease
of 73% as compared with that of previous year. Gross profit margin
was 2.7% (2007: 14.2%).

Average cost per tonne and gross profit/(loss) per tonne during the
year were as follows:

¥EOE®)
RARER, (k)

T N\FHNAEBRLEREEENA
ARESATET(ZEZELF : ARE
19.171870) - REAF TR 73% - EF =
HE27% (ZFZLF 1 14.2%) °

AEBNEBFE TSR AR ZHE
EF/ (BT :

2008 2007
—BEN\F —TTLF

Average Gross Average Gross
unit cost  profit/(loss) Gross unit cost profit Gross
(RMB/  pertonne profit/(loss) (RVB/ per tonne profit
tonne) (RMB) margin tonne) (RmMB) margin

T SWERN/ 1

RMB RAEE (E8) N/ HKAEE  BEES
AR (7T/M) (x)  (EBHE (/%) (7t) EME
Billets i)Y 3,901 (10) (0.3%) 2,718 281 9.4%
Strips and strip products R EEm 4,060 29 2.4% 2,632 404 13.3%
H-section steel HAL S 4,286 252 5.6% 2,898 668 18.7%

Cold rolled sheets REMRR

and galvanised sheets FEHR 5,440 49 0.9% 4,672 198 41%
Total At 4,159 114 2.7% 2,801 464 14.2%

Accreditation for the Company and its Management

The Group’s H-section steel product brandname, Jinxi Pai, was
accredited “Consumers Satisfactory Products in Hebei Province” by
China Quality and Assurance Committee. Besides, Jinxi Limited, a
major subsidiary of the Company was accredited the award of “The
Best Corporate Culture in 2008” by China Entrepreneur Committee.

Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, had been named the “Outstanding entrepreneur
in Science Development in Tangshan City” by Tangshan local
government. Besides, he was granted a golden award for his
charity donation from the year 2006 to 2007 by the Hebei charity
organisation.

ARREEEREMSE

RS B 2L H A 8 2 an o R PO R 14%
hEEEHeNERAPZE RN R A
ERFMEEM] - MARAMNEEMNE
REVEEME TR CXBE S R E
EERBGTH2008 F2EHBEILE

BHREAE(ARRNESEREIFERER
WITE)WBELTEMEBAFEAE LT
RERREFGER ] RNt ESTR
I 2006—2007 FEILEEERSE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group as at 31 December
2008 was RMB729 million (2007: RMB690 million). After deducting
the cash and cash equivalents and the relevant restricted bank
balances, net borrowings was RMB1,257 million (2007: RMB535
million), accounting for 20% (2007: 8%) of the Group’s consolidated
net assets after deducting minority interests of RMB6,265 million
(2007: RMB 6,549 million).

The current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was
0.88 as at 31 December 2008 (2007: 1.4). As at 31 December 2008,
the ratio between total liabilities and total assets of the Group was
54% (2007: 34%).

The net asset value per share of the Group as at 31 December 2008
was RMB2.14 (2007: RMB2.24), representing a decrease of 4% as
compared with that of previous year.

The consolidated interest expenses and capitalised interest in 2008
amounted to RMB155 million (2007: RMB69 million). The interest
coverage (divide earnings before interests and taxes by total interest
expenses) was 1.3 times (2007: 22.1 times).

g dE) ]
BANER

AEBR=-_ZTEN\F+-_A=1+—80H
RELBoEBUMEFTAARET20E
TL(ZZEZT+F: AR 6.9018T) - 10k
ReERBEEEWMEBEI RGBT
7% AEEMERFEAARE 1257
BL(ZZTZTtF: AR¥535ET) ' th
REBHNRLVERRERELRE FEE
B62.658IT(ZEZTLF : ARU65.49
BI)#20% (—FFLF : 8%) °

R-ZBENF+_A=1+—8 x&EH
MRS ER(RBEERARDEE) A
0.88fF(ZZZTLF:1.4fF) - RZZTZN

F+-A=+—H AEBENREESE
BEENEAGI% (ZTTLF:34%) °

AEMA-—BEN\F+-/=+—HK
BRFEEERARK214T(ZEEL
F:AR®E22470) REF T HA4% o

ZEENFHREMEZE (FEREFE
TH)EARBAGEIT(ZZEZTLF A
E¥6,900&7T) © F 8 &R FEE (FBRF
BRIz BMATREFBRUAFEX H) £1.3
B(ZEZTEF 2211F) °
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had capital commitments of
RMB3,300 million (2007: RMB1,161 million), which mainly consisted
of the capital commitments to the construction of coking coal project
and rolled sheets project and other ancillary projects. It is estimated
the capital commitments will be financed by the Group’s internal
resources and bank borrowings.

Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s contingent liabilities
amounted to RMB61 million (2007: RMB31 million) which was the
provision of guarantee for bank borrowings in favour of third parties.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2008, the net book value of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment amounting to approximately
RMB1,406 million (2007: approximately RMB1,396 million),
land use rights amounting to approximately RMB62 million
(2007: approximately RMB24 million), inventories amounting to
approximately RMB390 million (2007: approximately RMB57 million),
notes receivable amounting to approximately RMB251 million
(2007: approximately RMB158 million) and restricted bank balances
amounting to approximately RMB362 million (2007: approximately
RMB172 million) had been pledged as security for the Group’s bank
facilities.

Exchange Risks

As at 31 December 2008, Renminbi, US dollar, HK dollar and Euro
accounted for 93.8%, 5.7%, 0.2% and 0.3% of the Group’s total
bank balances (including restricted bank balances) respectively
(2007: 82.2%, 15.4%, 2.4% and 0.001% respectively). As the
majority of the sales, purchases of raw materials and bank
borrowings committed by the Group were in Renminbi in 2008 and
2007, the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk remained
relatively low.

B E )
BN

R-ZZEZENF+-_A=1t—H  ~&H
MQ$E%ﬁ%AEM%OMTT_”
TLFAREN61ERL) TE2RTE
REMECTREMNEECEETIZEEBD
BARMEAE - BB ASEEEES
FARTTIE S FTRLE ©

ERESARRE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Interest Rates Risk

The interest rates of the Group’s certain borrowings are subject to
variation. The risk of increasing interest rate will increase the interest
costs of both new borrowings and existing borrowings. At present,
the Group does not use any derivatives to hedge its interest rate risk
exposure.

Post Balance Sheet Events

Saved as disclosed in this report of the Group, there are no events
to cause material impact on the Group from the balance sheet date
to the date of this report.

Human Resources and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had a workforce of 9,400 and
temporary staff of 640. The staff cost included basic salaries and
benefits. Staff cost included discretionary bonus, medical insurance
plans, pension scheme, unemployment insurance plan, maternity
insurance plan and the fair value of the share options, etc. Effective
from July 2008, the Group implemented a workers’ injury insurance
scheme and contributed approximately RMB4 million to the Social
Insurance Bureau. The amount of contribution was calculated at
1.5% based on the workers’ wages. According to the Group’s
remuneration policy, employees’ package is based on productivity
and/or sales performance, and is consistent with the Company’s
quality control and cost control tangets.

The Group has been emphasizing the importance of providing
continuing education and training programmes to both the
management staff and factory workers in order to improve the
Group’s productivity and further enhance the quality of its workforce.
For example, Jinxi Limited received the “2008 Award for Excellent
Achievement in Enterprise Culture in China” from China Enterprise
Confederation and China Enterprise Directors Association in
December 2008.

B E )
IR [

AEB O ERNFE QAT EEE o F
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APPRECIATION

The Board would like to extend its gratitude to the staff for their
dedication and contribution to the Group, and to thank our
shareholders for their support and trust in the Company. We will
continue to join hands with our shareholders and staff to realise
shareholders’ value and enable everyone of us to share our growth
prospects.

On behalf of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

Han Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 3 April 2009
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EER 5 ERASNBEEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Han Jingyuan, aged 52, is the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, and also serves as chairman of the board of
Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Company Limited (“Jinxi Limited”), Foshan
Jinxi Jin Lan Cold Rolled Sheet Company Limited (“Jinxi Jinlan”),
Tangshan Fengnun Qu Zhengda Iron and Steel Company Limited
and Oriental Fullhero Leasing Co., Ltd. Mr. Han graduated from the
People’s University in 1994 with a degree in management. Mr. Han
began his career in Metallurgy in 1984 when he was employed as
a deputy mine manager of Han’erzhuang Iron Mine. Mr. Han has
in-depth industry knowledge and 24 years of extensive operational
and managerial experience in the iron and steel industry. Mr. Han
was awarded the honorary title of “Hebei Metallurgy Top Ten
Man”, “Outstanding Entrepreneur of Hebei Province”, “Excellent
Privately-owned Enterprises Entrepreneur in Hebei Province”,
“Chinese Brands Top Ten Outstanding Meritorious Man”, “The
Most Attention-grabbing Chinese Entrepreneur”, “Best Founding
Entrepreneurs in China”, “Top Ten Celebrities for China Reform

» oo«

Programme in the New Century”, “Economic Top Ten Men of
Honesty and Credibility in China”, etc. Mr. Han is the Vice Chairman
of the Metallurgy Chamber of All-China Federation of Industry and
Commerce. Mr. Han is the director and the controlling shareholder
of Wellbeing Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the

Group.

Zhu Jun, aged 45, an Executive Director, Executive Deputy General
Manager of the Company, also serves as an Chief Operating Officer
of the board and the executive director and general manager of Jinxi
Limited. Mr. Zhu graduated in 2001 from a graduate programme
of the Communist Party School in Hebei Province with a diploma in
management. Prior to working in the steel industry, Mr. Zhu worked
for 10 years as deputy director of Qianxi County Chemical Fertilizer
Factory which was based in Qianxi County. Mr. Zhu joined Jinxi Iron
Factory in 1992 and later served as deputy director. Mr. Zhu has had
15 years of working experience in the iron and steel industry.

BITES
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued) HITES )

Liu Lei, aged 53, is an Executive Director and deputy general BE At+=m ANABHTEZFHI
manager of the Company and director of Jinxi Jinlan. Mr. Liu has EEIBRERCHENES - FLERNE
over 21 years of experience in management and industrial fields. B TEEAEARA -+ FHKS -
Mr. Liu graduated in the area of Industrial Electrical Automation BIEERN—+ENEL+ A2 T
of Electrical Engineering Faculty of jaldt T8¢ (Hebei Industrial BREMTIRERTIX¥EREEIEE -
Academy) in July 1978. Mr. Liu was awarded the title of Ji1t& B TR — NN\ F A B & BATEE
R H BB T H EEE BT A (Professional Technological Talent Dt EBRPEMMFEFEEERMA
With Outstanding Contribution in Hebei Province) by Government FTIHESE MR _ZEEEFE+ - FE
of Hebei Province in April 1987. Mr. Liu was also granted the B A ESRTIEeTAWEE
qualification of research fellow by ;TitE B AWML S RTEE MERK R _ZEZEMFESAMALREE
(Senior Appraisal Committee of Zi Ran Yan Jiu of Hebei Province) Bl BlEER—NANANE+AE-ZEE
in December 2000. Before joining the Group in June 2004, Mr. Liu NN BEIE B ATt E R 2R 8 8 T
was the Vice Chancellor of il 1t& R (Science Bureau of Hebei Ko

Province) from October 1999 to June 2004.

Shen Xiaoling, aged 48, is an Executive Director of the Company LRI IO+ A\ AARIHITESERF
and also serves as an executive director and deputy general EEAMENRITESFRBNELIE o K
manager of Jinxi Limited. He obtained a diploma in management N-EEFT-—Fxh LNt EZTEREE
from the Hebei Province Communist Party School in 2001. Before YR ENMBARER ZH ' LA E
joining the Group, Mr. Shen was head of China Construction Bank BB E% fEﬁ BT ITITR O NG E
Luanxian Sub-branch. Mr. Shen also had 5 years experience acting Frh 2% BRLTTITREAER
as head of China Construction Bank Qianxi Sub-branch and more = lﬁﬁﬁgﬁiﬁ BlfTRB N o L
than 6 years of experience as the deputy head of Bank of China AHRZETF - AREEEAMEED
Qianxi Sub-branch. Mr. Shen has been deputy general manager of B 4BAEIE o

Jinxi Limited since January 2002.

Zhu Hao, aged 42, is an Executive Director of the Company and KE W+ ARFITES K
graduated at Tianjin Nankai University and obtained his master >$F'ﬁE‘;ﬂﬁﬂiilﬁlﬁ/ﬁdl\%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
degree in accounting from the University of New South Wales in j(_—,L S EE BN o KEA AF l =

Australia. Mr. Zhu is a senior economist in China. Mr. Zhu was a REmEih e F—EE-_F+-_AF=F
Non-executive Director of Jinxi Limited from December 2002 to early 2 WOFFEAR - SREAEAZETRINE IEH
2004. 1TE=E -
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Muktesh Mukherjee, aged 36, is an Executive Director of the
Company and graduated from McGill University in Montreal,
Quebec, Canada in 1998 with a Master degree in Business
Administration.

In 1998, Mr. Mukherjee joined Ispat Sidbec, Montreal, Canada as
a financial analyst. In 2001, Mr. Mukherjee joined Mittal Canada as
Marketing Manager and subsequently moved on to be the Director,
Sales and Marketing, Long Products and Plate for ArcelorMittal
International in Chicago, USA. Currently, Mr. Mukherjee is General
Manager, ArcelorMittal China with responsibility for overseeing the
relationship with the Company on behalf of ArcelorMittal. He is also a
member of the Board of Directors of Hunan Valin Steel Tube & Wire
Co. Ltd. (“Hunan Valin Steel”).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ondra Otradovec, aged 40, graduated from Stony Brook State
University of New York with Bachelor of Finance. Previously, he
worked at HSBC, responsible for financing, IPO, privatization in
Central and Eastern European markets. During this period, he
provided advisory service for the acquisition of Nova Hut in Czech
Republic and other steel companies. Since 2003, Mr. Otradovec is
responsible for mergers and acquisitions activities at ArcelorMittal.
He is now Vice President of Global Merger & Acquisition at
ArcelorMittal. Mr. Otradovec is also a Director of Hunan Valin Steel,
a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since 18 November
2005.

HITES»)
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Jean-Paul Georges Schuler, aged 52, graduated from
University of Karlsruhe, Germany and holds a Master of Science in
Mechanical Engineering. He was assistant at University of Karlsruhe
— Metallurgical Institute. Mr. Schuler started his professional
career at ArcelorMittal Dudelange (formerly known as Galvalange-
Luxembourg) where he held different positions during the period
from 1983 to 1988 and as Chief Operating Officer from 1989 to
1996. At the end of 1996, Mr. Schuler joined TradeARBED and
was appointed General Manager of Flat Products Sales in Export
Markets, responsible for the development of Eastern European and
African Markets.

From 2000 to 2005, Mr. Schuler was Managing Director of the
Arcelor Regional Sales Organization in Istanbul, Turkey. Mr. Schuler
was appointed Senior Vice President, Arcelor Long Carbon Sector in
2006 and participated in the Laigang/Arcelor project in Laiwu, China.

In 2007 Mr. Schuler was nominated Vice President ArcelorMittal and
Head of Operational Excellence Department — AAMS, a position he
occupied until May 31, 2008.

Starting from June 1, 2008, Mr. Schuler is the Chief Representative
Officer of ArcelorMittal at Hunan Valin Steel. Mr. Schuler was also
appointed Deputy General Manager and Director of Hunan Valin
Steel in July 2008.

FHTES )
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Gao Qingju, aged 72, is a senior engineer. Mr. Gao is the Managing
Director and General Manager of 1t 7Bt EE R EHRIZ BERE A
(Beijing Lianxingfa Industrial & Technical Co., Ltd) since 2000. Mr.
Gao graduated from metallurgical machinery and equipment at 1t 5%
848 T 3 22 (The Beijing College of Iron & Steel) in 1958 and joined
b M= (The Beijing Iron and Steel Research Institute) in
the same year. In 1965, Mr. Gao was seconded to the Ministry of
Metallurgical Industry and dealt with research work until he retired.
During employment with the Ministry of Metallurgical Industry, Mr.
Gao was the officer of Small and Medium Manufacture Enterprises.
Mr. Gao completed a professional economics management training
course at the Communist Party School in 1988. Mr. Gao is Vice
President and Permanent Secretary of #7572 & (The
Regional Iron and Steel Enterprises Association ) during employment
and some time after retirement.

Yu Tung Ho, aged 62, currently serves as Senior Vice President
of Phoenix Satellite Television Company Limited and the Director
of Asia Television Limited. Mr. Yu is a senior influential media
professional in Hong Kong and China and has been in broadcasting
for more than 37 years. Mr. Yu was Chief Operation Officer of Asia
Television Limited, Executive Vice President of Phoenix Satellite
Television Company Limited in Hong Kong and served as Chairman
of the 12th and 13th Hong Kong Advertising Industry Association.
Mr. Yu has also served as the Deputy General Manager of China
Radio & TV Corporation for International Techno-Economic
Cooperation and the chief of Radio Guangdong. Mr. Yu also acts as
Independent Non-Executive Director of Gome Electrical Appliances
Holdings Limited.

BUFHTES

BEE TR aRIEM B=
T T F AT B A I o B 2 0 6 B
BERAREERFMBEIEES - |
ER—NAENF KL R T ¥ 2R
REIREEEXRE REEIED
A RMEH RN EAARFIE-
—NAANEFAZRSBIEEZRIK £
S TEBESTEER PN E
E WR—NANNFEKT EREEE
BEEEBWERETE - EHRIABKR
ERE—BREESTHMECERe
BEERMWERETI(E-

REEE - Ntk REFTBRE®SR
BRARERBIEE —%c/%EEJH ERA

RAFRIEE  BEREMMETENNE
‘\’Tfﬁﬁ%/\ ° T&?ﬁé%fiﬁ%%%*‘i'ti :
zj%:k %x%ﬂﬁ/iﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ 7$ﬂﬁEM{§l
H URET+_RET=ZEEEREE
HEERE BT EEFEESHEEN
PEERESE ZE.F%‘\Z%/@KHTTI:'T’E““
BlAARIE BRABRBEAERE - K
TMARBEE T Hxﬁﬁﬁ@jﬁiiﬁﬂﬂ
-

Annual Report 2008 =% 444 4]



PAMl China Oriental Group Company Limited 58 5 Jy 48 I8 1 I A B 4 7]

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EER SR ERABNBEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Wong Man Chung, Francis, aged 44, is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 20 years of experience in
auditing, taxation, management and financial advisory. Mr. Wong
is currently an independent non-executive director of Digital China
Holdings Limited and Wai Kee Holdings Limited whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong
has tendered his resignation as an independent non-executive
director of Lightscape Technologies Inc., a company with its shares
listed and traded in the OTC Bulletin Board of the United States of
America. He was once the independent non-executive director of
Sys Solutions Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange and the independent non-
executive director of Yardway Group Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is a director of
Union Alpha C.P.A. Limited, a professional accounting firm, and a
founding director and member of Francis M.C. Wong Charitable
Foundation Limited, a charitable institution. Previously, Mr. Wong
worked for an international accounting firm for 6 years and the
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited for 2 years. Mr.
Wong is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and Association of
Chartered Certified Accountant of the United Kingdom. Mr. Wong
is also an associate member of Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and a member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants & Auditors, Hong Kong. Mr. Wong holds a Master
Degree in Management conferred by Guangzhou Jinan University.

BYEYITESw)

BEXR W+WME A—REES
Bl - RER - Bl EERVBERE S
EBEBB-TH&R - HEERBEIMN
HEERER AR RBLEBRBER AR
WEZIENTES 2SR5 H
RRXGMERLET - EEECHFHE—ME
£ OTC Bulletin Board £ A AH) 7
VHERTEERS - mAETE AEA
REZERAERAT(ERORRZ S8
R _ET) RSN EE AR A B (ERD R
REGFMERLEMNBLIERITES - &
SEEB BT ESHMEBKFTBR QRN
BEERENFRAEESCERAGMNEIH
BEERERAELZA BEEER
—E BB S MERT TIEAF - ¥R
BEBPREEER AT IIEMSE - |k
EAEBEBSHAE  BEANKES

REBHFARSFMAGEREE -
REBBEEBRNEASFAMASEE
REBEAGHAGEE - @ALLR
BEMNEBMASREREELET -

=




Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Information EER 5 ERASNBEEER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Yu Jianshui, aged 41, is a Deputy General Manager of Jinxi Limited.
Mr. Yu was a metallurgy graduate at Hebei Polytechnic University.
He joined the Group after graduation until May 2005 and had over
17 years management experience. During the period, he received
the awards of County Technological Selected Talent (&K
4 AF) , Ten Outstanding Youths in the County (&+X&EHS
££) |, Outstanding Youth in Post of Tangshan City (FILTH&5F =
§2F ) , Workers’ Model in Hebei Province (aldb& 45 8hi8ss) |
The First Class Honour of Technological Improvement in Tangshan
City, The Third Class Honour of Technological Improvement in
Hebei Province. He was employed as the deputy general executive
manager of Shanxi Province Xiaoyi City Chengcai Iron and Steel
Company in May 2005 and then joined Jinxi Jinlan in April 2006.

Chan Siu Kay, aged 49, is the Financial Controller of the Group. Mr.
Chan holds a master’s degree in Business Administration from The
University of Strathclyde, Britain and a master’s degree in Corporate
Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a Certified Public Accountant of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also an associate member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He joined the Group in
January 2009 and has over 25 years in audit, accounting, taxation,
corporate financing and IPO in an international audit firm and listed
companies.
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The Company is committed to sound corporate governance
practices designed to promote greater transparency, investor
confidence and the ongoing development of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), having always as its ultimate objective,
the best long term interest of the Group and the enhancement of
value for all shareholders. The Company also believes that sound
corporate governance practices benefit the Group’s employees and
the community in which the Group operates.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(“CG CODE”)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
CG Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2008, except for the deviation with explanation disclosed
below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”)

The Board currently comprises eleven Directors and the composition
is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Jingyuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhu Jun (Executive Deputy General Manager
and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Liu Lei (Deputy General Manager)
Mr. Shen Xiaoling
Mr. Zhu Hao
Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee
(appointed on 2 January 2009)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler
(appointed on 2 January 2009)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(appointed on 2 January 2009)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Qingju

Mr. Yu Tung Ho

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it
has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience, which can
meet the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 21 to 26.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

»  Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof;

Approval of dividends;

Reviewing and approving the interim and annual reports;
Ensuing good corporate governance and compliance;
Monitoring the performance of the management;

Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and disposal
of assets and other material transactions.

YV V V V V

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business, family relationship among the Directors. All of them are free
to exercise their independent judgment.

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategy
that have been approved. During the year, nine board meetings
were held and the principal business transacted included approving
interim and annual results and reports and assessing business
development, business performance and implementation. The
attendance record of each Director during the year ended 31
December 2008 is set out as follows:

Board of Directors

BER

Mr. Han Jingyuan BERIUR ST A
Mr. Zhu Jun KELAE
Mr. Liu Lei R E
Mr. Shen Xiaoling TLREIR A
Mr. Yu Jianshui FEKEAE
Mr. Zhu Hao VN e

Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee
Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler

Muktesh Mukherjee 4t 4

Mr. Ondra Otradovec Ondra Otradovec 5t &
Mr. Gao Qingju SIBERLE
Mr. Yu Tung Ho REVELAE
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis BRI AE

Jean-Paul Georges Schuler 5t 4
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

Notes

1.

Kl China Oriental Group Company Limited H [583 J5 45 F 4% e A FR A ]

resigned on 2 January 2009
appointed on 2 January 2009

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Board
has Chairman to provide leadership to the Board in terms of
establishing policies and business directions and monitor the
daily operation of the Group.

Mr. Han Jingyuan currently serves as the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
Board believes that there is no immediate need to separate
the roles of Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company because the role of chief executive officer/general
manager of the Company’s major operating subsidiaries are
performed by other persons.

The Board will consider the segregation of the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
the future.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three Independent Non-
Executive Directors of whom Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
financial matters.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

C.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board as a whole is responsible for the selection and
approval of candidates for appointment to the Board and does
not therefore establish a nomination committee.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. At each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not greater than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that notwithstanding
anything therein, the chairman of the Board and/or the
managing director of the Company shall not, whilst holding
such office, be subject to the retirement by rotation or be taken
into account in determining the number of the Directors to
retire in each year and the Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall not be taken
into account in determining which particular Directors or the
number of Directors who are to retire by rotation.

Taking the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code into
consideration, Mr. Han Jingyuan, the Chairman of the
Company, is willing to retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-election. The
Company will consider amending the Bye-laws to comply with
the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code in the future.

During the year under review, all the Directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Currently, Mr. Liu Lei, Mr. Zhu Hao, Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee,
Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler and Mr. Ondra Otradovec are
appointed for a fixed term of two years. All Independent Non-
Executive Directors, Mr. Gao Qingju, Mr. Yu Tung Ho and Mr.
Wong Man Chung, Francis are appointed for a fixed term of
one year. Additionally, the Chairman, Mr. Han Jingyuan, the
Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Zhu Jun and Mr. Shen Xiaoling are
appointed for a fixed term of three years.

During the year under review, no Director was appointed to fill
any causal vacancy or otherwise.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

D.

KYA China Oriental Group Company Limited H [85 J5 45 F ¥ e A R A

Responsibilities of Directors

The Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as Directors
of the Company.

New Director will be given an introduction to the Group’s major
business activities, induction into their responsibilities and
duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors of the Company’s securities transactions on terms
no less than the required standard set out in the Model Code
of Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and
all Directors have confirmed with the Company that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions during the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

F. Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance, the Board
has established the following committees whose authorities
and functions, compositions and duties are set out below:

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since 2005.
It comprises three independent non-executive directors
during the year under review in compliance with Rules
3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee’s term
of reference includes those specific duties as set out in
the code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. Pursuant to
its term of reference, the Audit Committee is required,
amongst other things, to consider and recommend
to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors and to approve their
remuneration, to review the interim and annual financial
statements, to review the Group’s financial controls,
internal controls and risk management system and to
consider any findings of major investigation of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response. The Audit
Committee should meet at least twice each year and
when the need arises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

F.

Board Committees (continued)

(1)

@

KXW China Oriental Group Company Limited H7[F 55 48 75 B 45 BR 4 5]

Audit Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, four
committee meetings were held, one to consider the
annual results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2007 including the discussion of internal
control report and one to consider the interim results of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2008.

The attendance record for each member of the Audit
Committee during the year is set out as follows:

Committee members

ZE888

Gao Qingju =5 R
Yu Tung Ho REE
Wong Man Chung, Francis ER

Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.1 of the CG Code, a
majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
should be Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Currently, the Remuneration Committee consists of the
Chairman of the Company and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”) (continued)

F.  Board Committees (continued)

@

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee’s term of reference
includes those specific duties as set out in the Code
Provision B.1.3 of the CG Code. Pursuant to its term
of reference, the Remuneration Committee is required,
amongst other things, to review and recommend
to the Board the compensation packages of the
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and senior
management, to review and approve performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to
time; to review and approve the compensation payable
to Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that such compensation
is otherwise fair and not excessive for the Company;
and to ensure that no Director is involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
should meet at least once a year and when the need
arises.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, a meeting
of Remuneration Committee was held. The attendance
record of each member during the year is set out as
follow:

Committee members
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to prepare
financial statements of the Company for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
ensure that financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Company.

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and, having
made appropriate enquires, it considers that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis accordingly.

Internal Controls

The Board recognizes that constant changes taking place in the
business environment call for periodical reviews of the system of
internal controls. Well-managed internal controls enable effective
and efficient operations, ensure the reliability of internal and external
reporting and assist in the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board recognizes that it has overall responsibility for the Group’s
system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness.
Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is primarily
responsible for designing and implementing the policies and
procedures of the internal controls, which the Board and the Audit
Committee oversee the actions of senior management and monitor
the effectiveness of the controls previously established.

The Company'’s internal audit function is performed by Internal
Audit Department which reports to the Chief Operating Officer and
has direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The
Chief Operating Officer report directly to Chief Executive Officer.
The internal audit functions include (i) review and report on internal
and operational controls, (i) follow-up on the suggestion made by
external auditors, (i) ongoing monitoring and reviews on different
operating cycles; and (iv) special review of areas of concern identified
by senior management.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal Controls (continued)

In 2007, the Directors had engaged a professional firm to conduct a
review on the system of internal control. The internal control review
report had been approved by Audit Committee and the Board on
19 March 2008. By the end of the year 2008, the Chairman of the
Audit Committee organised a full scope of review on the connected
transactions and continuing connected transaction of the Company
and noted that due to incorrect interpretation of the Listing Rules by
a senior management (“Responsible Senior Management”) whom
has been designated by the Board to be responsible for overlooking
and monitoring compliance of the Listing Rules, a transaction was
incorrectly classified inducing a non-compliance of the Listing Rules.
After a meeting between the Board and the Responsible Senior
Management, the Board had taken immediately actions to change
the reporting channel and re-write the internal control system on
reporting transactions.

However, internal control can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against errors or deliberate attempt to defraud
the Company. The Board and the Audit Committee confirms to
closely monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group. Periodical meetings will be held and
guidance notes and training will be issued and provided to the senior
management where appropriate, to ensure an efficient and effective
system of internal control is in place.

External Auditor

During the financial year ended and up to the date of this report, the
external auditor of the Group is PricewaterhouseCoopers. Fees of
auditing services and non-auditing services (including interim review
and others) for the year ended 31 December 2008 are RMB3.30
million and RMB2.50 million respectively.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Risk Management

The Group’s business, financial conditions and results of operation
may be affected by risk and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s
business. The factors set out below are those that the Company
believes could result in the Group’s financial condition or results of
operations differing materially from expected or historical results.
There may be other risks in addition to those mentioned below which
are unknown to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Operation Risk

The Group’s results are affected by trends in the industry in which
it operates. Income from the operations is dependent upon the
conditions in global iron and steel market and therefore there can
be no assurance that changes in these conditions will not adversely
affect the Group’s financial conditions and results of operations.

Market Risk

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the Mainland, China. The Group operates in
highly competitive and rapidly changeable market. The intensification
of price competition by existing competitors, product innovation or
technical advancement could adversely affect the Group’s financial
conditions and results operations.

Credit Risk and Interest Rate

Credit risk arises from a number of areas. These include the
possibility that a counter-party in a transaction may default during the
settlement process. It also arises from lending, settlement, treasury,
transaction and other activities undertaken by the Group. During the
year under view, the Group has not undertaken any activities in any
hedging or derivative instruments.

The Group has not established any risk management committee.
The day to day credit management is performed by the Operation
Department of Jinxi Limited and Jinxi Jinlan with reference to the
creditworthiness, the type and value of collateral available and the
length of business relationship with the counter-parties.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to the Group’s financial conditions
and results of operations arising from movements of foreign
exchange rates. The Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily arises
from the procurement of iron ores and the relevant products from
overseas suppliers. Foreign exchange rates fluctuate in reaction to
the macro-economic performance of different countries and fund
flows between countries arising from trade or capital movements.

IMPACT ON NEW LEGISLATION, POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

As mentioned before, over 90% of the operations of the Group
are carried in the Mainland, China. Any change in the policy and
procedure may have adverse effects on the Group’s operation and
results.

Also, the introduction of new legislation of rules by the Stock
Exchange, Securities and Futures Commission and other regulatory
bodies in Hong Kong and overseas may induce changes in market
conditions that in turn adversely affect the operating results of the
Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circular.

The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for exchange
of views between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman
of the Board, the Directors and Senior Management of the Group
and where applicable, the Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors) are available to answer questions at the
Shareholders’ Meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolution at Shareholders’ Meeting are contained in the
Company’s Bye-laws. Details of such right to demand a poll and
the poll procedure are included in all circulars to Shareholders
which will call for a general meeting and will be explained during the

proceedings of the meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ Meeting on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

The Company continues to enhance communication and
relationship with its shareholders. Enquiries from Shareholders are

dealt with in a formative and timely manner.

To promote effective communications, the Company also maintain
a website at www.chinaorientalgroup.com, where information are
updated on the Company’s business developments and operations
and other information are posted, including all the regulatory
announcements relating to the Company and the poll results on the

business day following the Shareholders’ Meeting (if any).

Upon the implementation of the amendments of the Listing Rules
with effect from 1 January 2009, all resolutions proposed at
shareholders’ meetings will be voted by poll. The poll voting results
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.
hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.chinaorientalgroup.com)

immediately after the relevant general meetings.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors” ) of China Oriental
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) presents their annual
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008.

INCORPORATION AND LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability on 3 November 2003 under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and the shares of the Company were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 2 March 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the Company’s principal activity is
investment holding. The principal activity of the Group is the
manufacture and sales of iron and steel products. The nature of the
principal activity has not changed during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Over 90% of the Group’s consolidated sales and contribution to
results are derived from the PRC and mainly from the production and
sales of iron and steel products for the year ended 31 December
2008 and are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2008 and its consolidated balance sheet as at that date,
together with the balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December
2008, are set out in the financial statements on pages 58 to 61.

At a Board meeting held on 3 April 2009, the Directors confirmed
that no dividend have been declared for the financial year ended 31
December 2008 and the book will be closed from 29 April 2009 to
30 April 2009 (both date inclusive) for the purpose of establishing
entitlement of shareholders to vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated financial results and assets, liabilities
and minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years, is

set out on page 220.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 7 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital
during the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year

are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2008, the Company’s accumulated losses

amounted to RMB73.1 million (2007: RMB113.3 million).

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s retained earnings amounted to

RMB2,618.9 million (2007: RMB2,907.1 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to

existing shareholders.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the total Group’s consolidated
revenue for the year.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the total Group’s consolidated
purchases for the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Jingyuan

Mr. Zhu Jun

Mr. Liu Lei

Mr. Shen Xiaoling

Mr. Yu Jianshui
(resigned on 2 January 2009)

Mr. Zhu Hao

Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee
(appointed on 2 January 2009)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler
(appointed on 2 January 2009)
Mr. Ondra Otradovec
(appointed on 2 January 2009)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Gao Qingju

Mr. Yu Tung Ho

Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis

In accordance with Bye-laws 86(2) and 87 of the Company, Mr. Han
Jingyuan, Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee, Mr. Jean-
Paul Georges Schuler, Mr. Ondra Otradovec and Mr. Yu Tung Ho
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, the annual fee
specified in each of Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr.
Muktesh Mukherjee, Mr. Jean-Paul Georges Schuler, Mr. Ondra
Otradovec and Mr. Yu Tung Ho’s existing service contracts
are HK$400,000, HK$300,000, HK$300,000, HK$300,000,
HK$300,000 and HK$350,000 respectively. The basis of
determining the Directors’ fee was based on the mutual negotiation
between the Directors with reference to the range of prevailing
directors’ fee for directors of listed companies in Hong Kong. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, other than Mr. Han Jingyuan and
Mr. Shen Xiaoling, Mr. Muktesh Mukherjee, Mr. Jean-Paul Georges
Schuler, Mr. Ondra Otradovec and Mr. Yu Tung Ho do not have any
relationships with any directors, senior management or substantial or

controlling shareholders of the Company.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions as disclosed in Notes 10 and 42 to the
consolidated financial statements, no director had a material interest
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the

Company are set out on pages 21 to 27 of the annual report.

Y.¥W China Oriental Group Company Limited H 5 75 48 Ml 75 Bt 45 B4 7]

=10 )

$E%inrh%ﬁﬁﬂ%13 512 1& - BAUR %

« JLBEFS Y04 Muktesh Mukherjee %t
E + Jean-Paul Georges Schuler 44 -
Ondra Otradovec e EMRAE L E S B
WIRBRBELHMENEZFEAS AR
400,000/ 7T * 300,000/ JT * 300,000
7 7T+ 300,0007% JT * 300,0007% 7T &
350,000 7T - EEERNEEFHILHKR
EEMEETBELERSLMARES
BRIZCEEWE/KFEMETE - RAF®W
Fri FRE SN - BREBEUR LA TILEIS L
A G Muktesh Mukherjee %4 Jean-Paul
Georges Schuler 5¢4 + Ondra Otradovec
FEMRGE R EBBEERRQR] ZEM
BEEX SREBABRETEHITERE
BEMBAER -

BIELETRAUESA3E  RAGIEEE
BABMIFRITESTHNFE R LER
HEB M - XRRREMBBYIERTT

BEENESNER

B4R A B SRR 1042 R BRI
S50 BERFREEERNDRSHET
B ARG LM ANEEXFBERKN
I & 4P A EARERS -

EENSREBAEBNEEESR

AR EENGREEAEBNERFE
N FERE21E27H ©




Directors’ Report EE/R#H %

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Three Executive Directors have service contracts with the Company
for a fixed term of three years while the remaining three Executive
Directors and all Non-Executive Directors have service contracts with
the Company for a fixed term of two years which may be terminated
by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing.

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors have service contracts
for a fixed term of one year.

Mr. Han Jingyuan, Mr. Zhu Jun and Mr. Shen Xiaoling (executive
directors of the Company and its subsidiary) have service contracts
with the Company’s subsidiary on 9 June 20083 for a fixed term of five
years commencing from 9 June 2003 which are exempted under the
Listing Rules. Actual amount of salary was not specified in the service
contracts other than the clause which stated that after probation,
the employees will be paid according to the salary of the post. The
service contracts may be terminated by the Company’s subsidiary
by paying compensation equivalent to the unfulfiled contract’s salary
and one month’s salary for each year of service completed. The
aforesaid services contracts with the subsidiaries are expired.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

EENRBEN

—UMTEREARRGLRBEEH
BETHAM-FMBR T UAITES
MPTB FEATTE SR AR BIRT LAY AR5
BROEREEHRIME - ZFAHK
ERHEMN-TELEAIPR=ZEANE
EEA T AR LE ©

BB IFRITETZRBANTEE
EFHAH—F -

WHUREL  KRERESLBEK ALK
RAREMBRARNRITER )N _ZEF
=FRANBEARRBNERBRZR
B BEEHE —TT=F AN
FESHOLST  WERBEVEREL
mARRER R - FRIIBFEE KR H A
BARE R SN F 2 RSN - IRTE
BHTEERAFHFENERSHE - ZFR
BEOAAARRRME QBB
BHEFRGORNFRNFELAET
BR—FREPHIN—EAHE) TUK
b o BB AR Z RIS A R Eim o

B EXPriRERE SN - BN R IR R A F
AREg FEEEENESMERRRFR]
VR —FRATAIRNBEECEERER
SN AR LR IRFS B4

Annual Report 2008 =R /)\4F4EH W)



Directors’ Report EE/#H %

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EENRENERZRAAE
SECURITIES

At 31 December 2008, the long and short positions of the Directors, N-ZEENE+_A=1+—H " RIEZE
chief executives and their associates of the Company in the shares, ENEIEEM ([ B5 L HEEM ) E 352
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated G B R B M ATEC &% - iR £
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and MARZEFETESFR HMIRESFEIR
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to NEI R REME  KRARIEE - £
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the EITBRABREABEA LR ARG HE
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for R EE (TR REAREAEIEHFE XV
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as BOHIRR D - FERINR D NMIESES LA TR

follows: wRKE
Number of shares held and nature of interests in the Company: BEARAARIRKRMNE R RN AT ERS
Mg -

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

capital
Corporate Personal {54&AFE  Long/Short
Interest Interest BITRA Position

DERER B ARz MED KR

Mr. Han Jingyuan (Note 1) 1,317,502,849 - 44.98% Long (%7)
BEUR A (FIEE1) - 2,800,000 0.10% Long (4F)
Mr. Zhu Jun - 2,400,000 0.08% Long (&F)
KERE

Mr. Liu Lei - 2,400,000 0.08% Long (4F)
e

Mr. Shen Xiaoling - 2,400,000 0.08% Long (#F)
TLEERS S

Mr. Gao Qingju - 1,686,000 0.06% Long (%7)
SRR E
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Note:

1. At 31 December 2008, Mr. Han Jingyuan beneficially owned
63.15% of the issued share capital of Wellbeing Holdings
Limited (“Wellbeing”) and held 16.09% of the issued share
capital of Wellbeing in trust for the benefit of certain employees
of the subsidiary of the Company. Wellbeing beneficially
owned 1,255,849,124 shares of the Company representing
approximately 42.88% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Mr. Han is also the beneficial owner of 100% of the issued share
capital of Chingford Holdings Limited which beneficially owned
61,653,725 shares of the Company representing approximately
2.10% of the issued share capital of the Company at 31 December
2008.

At 31 December 2008, Mr. Han Jingyuan personally holds
2,800,000 shares representing approximately 0.10% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section of “Equity-settled share
option scheme” below at 31 December 2008, none of the directors
and chief executives and their associates had any interest and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme for all directors and any
employees of any company in the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds an equity interest.

At the date of this report, pursuant to the unconditional mandatory
cash offer — the option offer by Mittal Steel Holdings AG on 14
January 2008, all the grantees with share options granted on 27
October 2007 have accepted the option offer and all the outstanding
share options have been redeemed and cancelled accordingly.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) IR REEE B RETS )

On 24 February 2009, 21,200,000 options are granted to Directors N_ZEETNF_AFA=-+MDTABH-
and Senior Management as follows: 21,200,000 g EE R TEE MR
BEEAE  FHBOAT :

No. of options

exercised/  No. of options No. of options
No. of options cancelled/  outstanding at granted on
outstandingat ~ No. of options  lapsed during 31 December 24 February
1Jan2008  granted during the year 2008 2009
R-EENE the year REERE  W-FBNE R-EENE
-A-A REER  TE/#8/ T-B=t-B  Exerciseprice  “AZtEB  Exercise price
RTER B3 P RTER per share B3 per share
BREHE BREHE BRERE BREXE SROKE BREHE BRITEE
(HKS) (HKS)
(&%) (1)
Mr. Han Jingyuan - - - - - 2,900,000 1.39
BHRTE
Mr. Zhu Jun - - - - - 2,600,000 1.39
RERE
Mr. Liu Lei - - - - - 2,600,000 139
HErt
Mr. Shen Xiaoling - - - - - 2,600,000 139
iy
Mr. Yu Jianshui 2,400,000° - 2,400,000 - b -
TRkkE
Mr. Zhu Hao - - - - - 2,600,000 1.39
NGy
Mr. Gao Qingju - - - - - 2,000,000 1.39
BERAE
Mr. Yu Tung Ho - - - - - 2,000,000 1.39
AUERE
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis - - - - - 2,000,000 1.39
BRAE
* granted on 27 October 2007 * RZZBZBLF+AZTEAET

The accounting policy for equity-settled share option is stated in the NIREEENBRENSHEIREGS
Note 2.20 to the consolidated financial statements. BIFSSRR T 2.20 9 71 o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate granted to
any Director or their respective spouses or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or were the
Company or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Company’s
Directors, their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and the transactions as disclosed in
Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries have any contract of
significance with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2008, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO are as follows:

EEABRODESFHEF

B EXFTBEESN  RERERER -
BECNEFLREZENEB/IKD
TABNFRERAIEBEERNRRL
EAEAME A B K EFMERN
R - ATE RS ER - MAREK
HAER AR - FERNE R R E
NEBER L EAR Y BEARAE
= RESEORBIABTNA\ERNTF
R BRI E AN E R AZFER

EXEN

B £ XTI ERE SN AR A IS SRR MY T
W2FTRBEORHIN - R E A
B /B8 2 ) A N 4 B R ) Sl EL Y BB
REIFIMATAERGHL -

FERR

RZZEZENF+A=+—H BREXR
NANRIRE 7 KB IRDIF 336 1RFATF E
MR B MR - BRAL(RARRE
ERTBITRABRINRAR B K
MR DEANERIORBIT

Percentage of the
Company’s issued

Number of share capital Long/Short

Name shares held {hARATEHIT Position
£28 sl E A BAE D BKE
Wellbeing Holdings Limited 1,225,849,124 42.88% Long (&F)
Mittal Steel Holdings AG 867,711,151 29.62% Long (&F)
(“Mittal Steel”)(Note 1) (fE3E—) 509,780,740 17.40% Long ()
ING Bank N.V. (Note 2) (f§:T =) 289,990,800 9.90% Long (%7)
289,990,800 9.90% Short (%)

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft 220,934,306 7.54% Long (&F)
(Note 3) (#7E=) 219,801,940 7.50% Short (%)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

1. As at the date of this report, Mr. Lakshmi Niwas Mittal and Mrs.
Usha Mittal directly own 36.24% and indirectly own 36.24% of the
issued share capital of ArcelorMittal which indirectly holds 75%
interest in Mittal Steel that beneficially owns 867,711,151 shares
of the Company representing approximately 29.62% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

On 30 April 2008, Mittal Steel entered into a put option agreement
with ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft and
pursuant to the terms and conditions as contained therein,
Mittal Steel granted an option to ING Bank N.V. and Deutsche
Bank Aktiengesellschaft respectively for an aggregate amount of
509,780,740 shares of the Company, representing 17.40% of the
issued share capital of the Company.

2. On 30 April 2008, Mittal Steel and ING Bank N.V. entered into
a put option agreement whereas Mittal Steel granted an option
to ING Bank N.V. to sell 289,990,800 shares of the Company in
accordance with the terms and conditions contained therein. As at
the date of this report, ING Bank N.V. owns 289,990,800 shares
of the Company representing 9.90% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

3. On 30 April 2008, Mittal Steel and Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
entered into a put option agreement whereas Mittal Steel granted
an option to Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft to sell 219,789,940
shares of the Company in accordance with the terms and conditions
contained therein. As at the date of this report, Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft owns 220,934,306 shares of the Company,
representing 7.54% of the issued share capital of the Company

Save as disclosed above and in Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities section, at 31 December 2008, no person,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Sl China Oriental Group Company Limited H 58 5 Jy 48 I8 3 I A B4 7]

FERR®
Bt

1. PAAREREH - Lakshmi Niwas Mittal 504
FMUsha Mittal AKX E# % B ArcelorMittal
BEITRMI62U%E=MNEEES
ArcelorMittal 2 21T 15 36.24% 25
ArcelorMittal 5 #E B Mittal Steel 75% 7
wo WEEEAARRFS67,711,151 K
BEAD - #91h AR A R B B ITIR A 29.62%
MRS o

RZZTZTN\FMA=1+H - Mittal Steel
% BIIE2ING Bank N.V. #l Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft 2 5] 7 — 173300 Hi#E
R AR IR B B E3K - Mittal Steel 55
¥ ING Bank N.V.#lDeutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft —fEZH B4 - A
509,780,740k f& 17 - KR AR~ EI 2 &
TIRRARA7.40% HERS o

2. RIZZTZNFMA=-+H ' Mittal Steel
B2 ING Bank N.V.%85] 7 — 10200 s
WEMIRIEARIEF  Mittal Steel iR T
ING Bank N.V. —{E:Rf i A H & AN
7]289,990,800% %5 + AR E HING
Bank N.V. 378 289,990,800 f% - #IME7
NAIEEEITIEA 0.90% % -

3. RIZZN\FWA=-H - Mittal Steel
81 Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
BRI T —HOREHAERRLRESR
B8 & 3% - Mittal Steelf® F Deutsche
Bank Aktiengesellschaft —{E52f Bf#E
A & R A F]219,789,940 % A% 17 -
MATREH - Deutsche Bank AGH A
220,934,306 fx & 17 - KIh AR EI 2 #
TIRRAR 7 .54% s o

BREXFEBEEAREENE SN ER
MxE MO RZFZENEFE+ A
=t— B REARAZREZFLAE
=PI 2E 336 ERFrTF B HIBC R A - BEEA
T(RRBEFHETZTBRABRINK
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant connected parties and connected transactions
of the Group under the Listing Rules are set out as below.

On 9 October 2007, Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan Cold Rolled Sheet Co.,
Ltd. (“dinxi Jinlan”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into a continuing connected transaction
with Foshan Jin Lan Imports & Exports Co., Ltd. (“Jin Lan I1&E”), a
company controlled by the daughter of Mr. Zhou Weijie, a substantial
shareholder of Jinxi Jinlan for the sale of iron and steel products at a
selling price not lower than the prevailing market price for the period
from 7 October 2007 to 31 December 2009.

On 3 December 2008, the Company announced that the annual cap
for the continuing connected transaction between Jinxi Jinlan and Jin
Lan I&E was exceeded due to incorrect interpretation of Listing Rules
by a senior management of the Company. The revised cap for the
above continuing connected transaction for the financial years ended
31 December 2008 and 31 December 2009 was ratified, approved
and confirmed by shareholders of the Company in a special general
meeting held on 11 February 2009.

On 28 April 2008, the Company entered into a master supply
agreement with ArcelorMittal Sourcing S.A. for the supply of iron
ore and relevant products for the period from 28 April 2008 to
31 December 2010 which constituted a continuing connected
transaction to the Company.

On 3 December 2008, Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel Company Limited
(“Jinxi Limited”) entered to master supply agreement with 75 5%5E
FBEMBR ST QA (Qianxi County Longba Charging Company
Limited) (“Longba Charging”) and BFI& & ETE2£ AR A7) (Qianxi
County Jinxin Mining Company Limited*) (“Jinxin Mining”) for the
supply of lime products and iron power and relevant products for the
period from 3 December 2008 to 31 December 2010 respectively
which constituted continuing connected transactions to the
Company.

BREXS

AEERE EMRUNERBEALR
FEXSHFBEN T

RZZFZELFTHANA - EAESH
REABARAR(RALE ) ANAFME
BEFREHRANMBLRR - BELSH
ENERAR(T2MELO ] —AR
RREEWMEBERRARGRLEELTME
HE AR - RANMER TS E B EHR
BEMETHERERS BH_TZTL
FTALtHEE_ZTAF+_A=1+—
HiE -

RZZZENF+ZA=H0 " ARARM
HRARB —ESMEBRABH TR
AEMAREENSMBESHMEL D
IREREXSBHEF LRI - %
SEMERSGZBE_TTNF+ A
=tT-BM-ZEEAF+_A=t+—H
ZEEINEF EREBEHBRRR =
ZETNF A+ -—BRERFIAGE
R HOEMFER o

RZZEZNFUNA-+N\B  AQFH
ArcelorMittal Sourcing S.A. & #1E 4 A #E
BEM L —HBREEBZLENIFE
BERS  BZZTEN\FMNA=1+/\ARH
E-T-FTF+-H=+—Hik -

RZZEZNF+ZA=H " FdLEEH
#HIR AR AR (NEFHHE )R8 %
REENBREEAF(EFER DM
BB EREARAA(2EREED
RAREmMmMBHNBBEMRTZ—0
BHERELBERSERERS A=
ZENF+_AZHEZ-TF+
A=t—HI-
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

As at 31 December 2008, Jinxi Limited and Jinxin Mining, have
entered into certain agreements and an authority mandatory
agreement under which Jinxin Limited granted the management and
operation right of BFEFESTEE AR AR (Qianxi County Jinjin
Mine Company Limited) (“Jinjin Mine”), for a certain period. Jinxi
Limited and Jinxin Mining holds 51% and 49% equity interest in Jinjin
Mine respectively.

In the opinion of the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company, these continuing connected transactions were entered
into:

1.1 in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

1.2 fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company
are concerned,;

1.8 on normal commercial terms;

1.4 in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable;

1.5 inthe interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

2.1. the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transaction
between Jinxi Jinlan and Jin Lan I&E for the year ended 31
December 2008 amounted to approximately RMB76.0 million
(excluding value added tax);

2.2 the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transaction
between the Company and ArcelorMittal Sourcing S.A. for the
year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to approximately
RMB49.9 million (excluding value added tax);

2.3 the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transaction
between Jinxi Limited and Longba Charging for the year ended
31 December 2008 amounted to approximately RMB17.6
million (excluding value added tax);

BEXS#E)

Hz2_ZZEN\F+_A=+—8"2H
MEEeEREAT —FEHAERNER
KEBRBRCBREARAR(ESRE
¥NEEETHBRKEHENEZTER
ik o RTEMBE NS ERENRIH A
BIEE51% IRAEZ M 49% IR A HE RS o

ARBVBUIFATEETRRELTER
B

11 BAEETLFERHEEES:

1.2 BARRBREMSBAFMERE

1.3 B REBIEHREE

1.4 RBREMREZXXZHNEMGE LK
R BRERRATFRERE &

15 HAKRAEREREERS -

21 BEZEZNFTA=T—AHILF
- E2RcRESHEND  FER
EX SR BENR/ARET,603.98
TN EIBER)

22 BEZEENFITZA=T—HILHF
€ » ZR/A A8 ArcelorMittal Sourcing
SAZHEMERSRASEAR/A

R#4,086.6 B(T21LEH) :

23 BEZZTEZEN\FFTA=T—HIEF
[ RN R R E R 2 AR
RS BRFTRBHRARE1,757687T
(MEBER)




Directors’ Report EE/R#H %

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2.4 the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transaction
between Jinxi Limited and Jinxin Mining for the year ended 31
December 2008 amounted to approximately RMB15.5 million
(excluding value added tax).

In accordance with rule 14A.38 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed-
upon procedures on the above continuing connected transaction on
a sample basis in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related
Service 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures
Regarding Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor reported their factual
findings on the selected samples based on the agreed procedures
as follow:

(1) have been approved by the Board of the Company;

(2)  for transactions involving provisions of goods and services by
the Group, are in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company;

(8) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions;

(4) have not exceeded the relevant caps disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 6 May 2008 and 16
December 2008 respectively.

Save as disclosed above and in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no other transactions required to
be disclosed as non-exempt connected transactions in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

BEXS#E)

24 BEZEZNFTA=T—AHILF
B - EANEEe SR RS
RS R B R/ARKE,550.587T
(TEIBER) °

REEEMARIMBRAGERLM
MAIE14A3816 EEZREEEARQF
ZHAIZBEASTMASELNES
FRRA AR TS 2RI 4400( FLEA TS BRI T E
RREAER] Y EBERER ZHETE
FHERRF - XEMEREHEREFH
FHgBAABZEEARBENT ¢

(1) ZEXFGEEAREELRILE

@ #HRFREAKEREE MRS
MZERS HEBREBRARF

HE BERRHETTRY 5
B ZEXFIRERBHREZZTIZHNIE

AR ETTHY

@) ZEXZNEBLEBUARRRN
—EE)N\FRARNBM-_ZTNF
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the
Company’s shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25%
of the Company’s total number of issued shares as at the date of this
report, the latest practicable date to ascertain such information prior
to the issue of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold

or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the years
ended 31 December 2007 and 2008.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events are set out in
Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR
PriceWaterhouseCoopers retired and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
China Oriental Group Company Limited

Han Jingyuan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 3 April 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report & % &R S

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORKES SR

To the shareholders of China Oriental Group Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 219,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

HHERASEEZERERARAKRRK
(REFRZAMA LI BRAA])

Az A (A T RGHE [ 24P ]) B BZIIH
RESSEE19BFER T EEIERAR
REI([ERRDRERBARIUATAHE
[BE5E ] NEEMB®RE - WREUK
BREBER-_ZZEN\FT_A=1+—~8
M kAR EERBREBREZHE L
FENGABRAER  GKAEaEHRM
FERERER  UREEZGTBRE
BN B AB T AR o

BRI BRI BAENEE

BERAEFARERBEETEGTMAS
MM BB R EER RIZREB(R
ARPDMBEBEREREMEEMA it
SR EHEEMBRE - EETERER
i BREREERRREIAEEMA T
IR A5 R BB R N BDAE B - AR R
BRI AR RGF SR M B B
EAS#ERBR R ENERBEE NS
R RIEER MEREEN G AR
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

ZEEIRE
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Opinion 1

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and BMRE ZESAVBRRCIBES
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at B EREENEEMAFHRBREAR
31 December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the FIREERR-_EENE+_A=1+—
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting HOEEK AN EEEEZZBIEFE
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the MAERIRERE  WEIHRBRE (AT

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. RN RN T AiRE -
PricewaterhouseCoopers BORKBEMERAT
Certified Public Accountants HEDEED

Hong Kong, 3 April 2009 B —ETNFMOA=H
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
GmeEEEAER

(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINRARE TARR ) TREN) R-TT/\F+_HA=1t—H

Note
FiwE
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - B KR 7
Leasehold land and land use rights ARG 1 K 1 b {5 AR AR 6
Investment properties BB 8
Intangible assets mEE ©
Investment in an associate kol g2 11
Loan receivable R E R 14
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EMBEE 15
Deferred income tax assets RIS EE 28
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 16
Trade receivables FEU B SRR 17
Other current assets Hibme&EE
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - ek
other receivables H b fE YR TR 19
Financial assets at fair value RAFEBBER
through profit or loss SARA I TS B = 18
Amounts due from related parties Uk BA RS 5 SR IE 42(c)
Prepaid current income tax B HEAA S
Restricted bank balances IR HI R TAERR 20
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 20
Total assets mEE
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to A2 T EHE AEL
equity holders of the Company B #E
Ordinary shares TR 21
Share premium IRAD BB 21
Other reserves Hib 22
Retained earnings Biriles
Minority interest in equity DHR RS
Total equity EmEasT

5t China Oriental Group Company Limited H 58 5 Jy 48 I 3 A B4 7

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2008 2007
—EBEENE —TTLHF
8,286,788 6,405,538
74,790 76,441
18,400 19,328
7,667 -
10,120 8,122
130,000 -
188,100 -
7,461 3,194
8,723,326 6,512,623
1,567,437 1,836,997
1,733,991 488,825
9,894 4,037
731,570 447,156
140 146
14,620 11,055
264,555 -
361,698 171,690
728,826 689,591
5,412,731 3,649,497
14,136,057 10,162,120
311,669 311,444
2,189,695 2,185,964
1,144,963 1,144,182
2,618,902 2,907,100
6,265,229 6,548,690
224,711 147,414
6,489,940 6,696,104




Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

REEERER(E)

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2008

(BB HEAN MAESRONARETTAEN) R-TENFT-_A=1+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
Note 2008 2007
I —EENE —TTLF
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities ERBARS
Borrowings B3k 25 489,230 765,000
Other long term payables HAth R B FR 26 847,934 -
Deferred revenue RIEYA 27 62,756 =
Amounts due to related parties FE 1S A 5 SRR 42(c) 65,055 55,733
1,464,975 820,733
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables BN B SRR 23 2,219,395 715,535
Accruals, advances from customers HEREM - BREFPIUAR
and other current liabilities = UN=E 24 2,034,745 1,371,328
Amounts due to related parties FE 1< S 5 SRR 42(c) 207,013 8,571
Other long term payables E b REAFE R
— current portion — RS 26 19,888 -
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAaE - 88,382
Borrowings EEN 25 1,697,230 460,000
Dividends payable FERIAR S 2,871 1,467
6,181,142 2,645,283
Total liabilities =l 7,646,117 3,466,016
Total equity and liabilities EERBEET 14,136,057 10,162,120
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(BE) EETE (768,411) 1,004,214
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 7,954,915 7,516,837
Han Jingyuan Liu Lei
B 2=
Chairman and Director Director
FTEREE EE

The notes on pages 64 to 219 are an integral part of these financial FE64E219 BT R IR A IS

statements. S o

N
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Company Balance Sheet
NAEEREBR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) As at 31 December 2008

(BABIEAN ESEINARBTIREN) R-ZTNFT-_A=1—H

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—AH
Note 2008 2007
FaE —EENFE —_TTLHF
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B KR 7 1,037 12,359
Investment properties "B 8 - 19,328
Investments in subsidiaries B ARIRE 10(a) 382,121 382,121
Loans to subsidiaries MIB A RIER 10(b) 2,328,517 2,003,039
2,711,675 2,416,847
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - 2k
other receivables Hith e U BR 5k 19 1,403 1,486
Financial assets at fair value BN EERER
through profit or loss SEERM I I A E 18 140 146
Amounts due from related parties FELUL RAEE 5 FRIE 6,513 10,883
Restricted bank balances ZRRHIIRITAERR 20 - 47,305
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEEY 20 62,238 95,723
70,294 155,543
Total assets HMERE 2,781,969 2,572,390
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to ~ Z<A Gl EE AEWL
equity holders of the Company R &
Share capital A& 21 311,669 311,444
Share premium 10 B 21 2,189,695 2,185,964
Other reserves EfbfH 176,631 176,631
Accumulated losses RETEE (73,111) (113,285)
Total equity EmEasT 2,604,884 2,560,754
LIABILITIES =
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables T E SRR 4,295 5,269
Accruals and other current liabilities TEIRER REMRBAE 12,527 6,205
Borrowings &3 25 160,160 -
Amounts due to related parties A BAES 5 5 E = 84
Dividends payable R E 103 78
Total liabilities =l i=ras 177,085 11,636
Total equity and liabilities ERRkE8EaF 2,781,969 2,572,390
Net current (liabilities)/assets hE(BE) BETFHE (106,791) 143,907
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAE 2,604,884 2,560,754
Han Jingyuan Liu Lei
BHE 25
Chairman and Director Director
TEREE o

The notes on pages 64 to 219 are an integral part of these financial FOAE219ENM TRV B HRRAEEE
statements. 7 e
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Consolidated Income Statement
— = 32
mEBERK
(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1t—HLEE

Note 2008 2007
FfaE —ZEEN\F —ETLF
Revenue WA 5 19,388,183 13,498,555
Cost of sales SHES AR 31 (18,870,988)  (11,581,115)
Gross profit EA 517,195 1,917,440
Other income H YA 30 35,639 2,116
Distribution costs PaK =)D N 31 (80,319) (46,689)
Administrative expenses 1THER 31 (281,942) (373,452)
Other expenses HtEHA 31 (10,228) (5,324)
Other (losses)/gains - net Hith (B518) sm— 558 29 (1,364) 12,730
Operating profit LR 178,981 1,506,821
Finance income BN 33 24,249 12,118
Finance costs BT RN 33 (91,627) (68,810)
Finance costs - net BI TSR AN — H 58 (67,378) (56,692)
Share of profit of an associate FEAG B = A A Al 11 1,998 225
Profit before income tax FRETS T AT & A 113,601 1,450,354
Income tax expense Fristi & R 34 (70,643) (256,617)
Profit for the year FERA 42,958 1,193,737
Attributable to: FE1G -
Equity holders of the Company RAEIERFFEA 44,032 1,159,657
Minority interest DER R IR (1,074) 34,080
42,958 1,193,737

Earnings per share for profit FARATERIFTEA

attributable to equity holders of FEAR & FI 9 = %5 R

the Company during the year (AR

(expressed in RMB per share) RMB RMB

— basic —HAR 37 AR¥0027x AR 0407T

RMB RMB

— diluted —¥E 37 AR#¥0.02;7t AR 0407T

Dividends KA 38 167,088 319,225

The notes on pages 64 to 219 are an integral part of these financial F 4R 210 BERMIzE B FESIRFT A EEE L
statements. 4 o

N
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgExR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

Balance at 1
January 2007

Profit for the year
Employee share
options scheme:
- Value of employee
services
- Proceeds from
exercising share options
Dividends relating to 2006
Dividends relating to 2007
Acquisition from a
minority shareholder

Balance at 31
December 2007

Balance at 1
January 2008

Profit for the year
Employee share

options scheme:

- Proceeds from

exercising share options

Profit appropriation

to statutory reserves
Dividends relating to 2007
Dividends relating to 2008
Acquisition from

a minority shareholder
Minority shareholder’s

injection

Balance at 31
December 2008

Note
L
RIEELE
— A — B
FEafl
EEERETE :

-EERBHER 22
a4
P 50E 21
—TENERE
“ZTLFRE 38(a)

KB RS

R-FRtHF
TZRA=1T-RivEER

RZZBENE
—B—BH&t

EREH

EERIRETE :
—{7{PEE R
Fi8s0a 21
AT R R
ezl ol 22
“EELFRE
T N\FRE

B BB R ER

PERRTE

RZZENE
+ZR=1-AHLeE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
MESBANARBTIREN) #E_ZT\GT_A=1T—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company
FAREREE AES
Share  Share  Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
BA RHEE HitRE SFKE H)

309,340 2,151,085

984,296 2,034,456 5,479,127

Minority
interest Total
DY equity

hREE BRa

122,322 5,601,449

- 1,169,657 1,159,657

34,080 1,193,737

- - 159,886 - 159,886 - 159,886
2104 34929 - - 37,033 - 37,033
- - - (182,149) (132,149) (4,329 (136471)
- - - (154,864 (154,864) (5370) (160,234)
- - - - -4 704
2104 34929 150886 872,644 1069563 25092 1,004,655

311,444 2,185,964

1,144,182 2,907,100 6,548,690

147,414 6,696,104

311,444 2,185,964

1,144,182 2,907,100 6,548,690

147,414 6,696,104

- - - 44032 44032 (1074) 42,958
25 3,731 - - 3956 - 395
- - 181 (8 - - -
- - - (164,361) (164,361)  (7.042) (171,409)
- - - (167,088) (167,088)  (7,546) (174,634)
- - - - - (25655 (25,655)
- - - - - 118614 118614
25 3,731 781 (288,198) (283461) 77,207 (206,164

311,669 2,189,695 1,144,963 2,618,902 6,265,229 224,711 6,489,940

The notes on pages 64 to 219 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

((YA China Oriental Group Company Limited H 58 5 Jy 48 8 3 A B4 7]
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mEEERER

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=T—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-H=1t—-HLEFE

Note 2008 2007
Btk —EENE C—ETLFE
Cash flows from operating activities REKEFHNRSRE
Cash generated from operations REELNRS 39 626,172 1,363,930
Interest received BEFIE 15,519 10,976
Dividends received from financial assets KRR T EEBERZED
at fair value through profit or loss B R B IR AR B 11 2
Interest paid BRFE (65,941) (70,722)
Income tax refund FrSHiRE 5,854 =
Income tax paid BIFEH (433,701) (229,944)
Net cash generated from
operating activities CEEBELNRSFE 147,914 1,074,242
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHNHEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BERHRE 39 (953,649) (833,047)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE R&fE
plant and equipment TS UR 39 - 336
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HEER EEMSHE - 4,408
Investment income on loan receivable [ E % B s 8,308 -
Increase in loan receivable M E I (130,000) -
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets A E MR N (188,100) -
Cash received relating to FLE A B R B
other investing activities e 153,000 =
Cash paid relating to other investing activities FEMEBEEBEZANRE (400,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities REERHFTENR 58 (1,510,441) (828,303)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEEA (FTiE) EE
before financing activities RIR &5 (1,362,527) 245,939
Cash flows from financing activities REWMEFHNRSRE
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BITE ARG HREA 3,956 37,033
Proceeds from current borrowings mENE TS5 IE 1,608,836 550,000
Repayment of current borrowings EEREER (626,617) (534,000)
Repayment of borrowings from related parties (& & BIE ;£ = (7,000)
Proceeds from non-current borrowings IEREE RS RIE - 424,230
Repayment of non-current borrowings BEIERBER = (149,230)
Dividends paid BRRE (331,450) (293,099)
Capital injection by minority shareholders DERRFEE 85,300 =
Proceeds from borrowings from
a minority shareholder DB ERPTR A 170,000 =
Proceeds from sales and leaseback transaction & R EIFA 515208 26 800,000 -
Cash paid relating to sales and FHERLARSE
leaseback transaction IREHEE (100,280) =
Increase in restricted bank balances pledged {EBREIRITIE A E AR
as security for current bank borrowings R BISRIT AR N (200,000) -
Net cash generated from financing activities REEBDELANRSFE 1,409,745 27,934
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re kR e SEMEINTE 47,218 273,873
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INIE T SR B B ) 2 2 (7,983) (19,187)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 4134 RIESZEY 689,591 434,905
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year FRBE NESEEY 20 728,826 689,591

The notes on pages 64 to 219 are an integral part of these financial £ 64 E 219 BRI 5T A B MwER A B30

statements. e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

({8 China Oriental Group Company Limited 7[5 J7 4 % B A FR A 5

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oriental Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 November 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda as a result of a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

Following the completion of the global offering, the Company’s
shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 2 March 2004.

The Company together with its subsidiaries are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the Group. The Group is mainly
engaged in the manufacture and sales of iron and steel
products. The Group has manufacturing plants in Hebei
Province and Guangdong Province of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and sells mainly to customers located in the
PRC.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of RMB, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 3 April 2009.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

—fRER

FERAEEZERERAA(TAR
ADR-_ZZ=F+—A=HARER
RE-NN—FRREEBFREIM
A RERRAREMERAR - XEM
e —IREEEHAE(EME]) -

ZRA B A9 %5 EE Hb i A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

RRIRERSAE - AR TRBR=
TEME= AR EEAHARSH
ARAF L -

AR REMBRARR T XHERA
S8 AEEE RN ELENIHEN
HEM AEEETFEARANE
(Bl mibE REREREGEER
o WEEHEURPREESHET
$HE °

BRBEAIN - NRERBHREAA
RETTTE2Y - A e BEHRREL
HEER(EERDN_ZETNFN
A=B#tETE -

EREBERRBE

MENGEVBHRREBNEIESE
BRENTX - RRBERI - HF
BREMZINABEFERNEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B EBRANARE T TREN)

(BRRAEHEI -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRS”). They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately RMB
768 million. In the opinion of the directors, considering
the impact of the macro-economics stimulation plan
adopted by the PRC government on iron and steel
industry, the operating cash flows of the Group in the
year 2009 will be better than that of year 2008. As at
31 December 2008, the Group had undrawn bank
facilities of approximately RMB 812 million and the
Group is currently negotiating with certain major banks to
obtain additional bank facility or renew short-term bank
borrowings. As at the date of these financial statements
were approved, the Group obtained a letter of intention
from a major bank who would additionally grant bank
facilities to the Group amounting to RMB 750 million.
Short-term bank borrowings of approximately RMB 180
million were renewed and will fall due after 31 December
2009. Based on the aforementioned considerations, in
the opinion of the directors, these consolidated financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

B RAR A

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \FE+-_A=1t—HIEE

2. EREFBERRBEE)

2.1

B AE

AEBHERA M BHRERTIRE
TR BREEMN(EEHB
WEEA D RH - SRAMBR
RERBELRAEGESR A
MR FEEERDSLERNE
THBEERMBAE (BT
AT H)MEMIEHRERT -

AT A B BPBERE LN
MBEHRRFEERE THRS
HEE - ENREEEEERE
AASE ST RFBREFTITRE
H e - p R EHE RS
EEMENEE 305 REEK
BB MRELEBAREMG
B - M4 IREE -

R-ZFZENF+-A=1t—81"
AEENRBHREBLERS
BESZHARKTB8ETL - &
ERR - ZED P EBT LM
1T S BRE A R BB R AT
e AEER_TTAH
FHEERSRBL-FTTN
FHLEBRER/E - R=F
ZENFE+ZA=+—H &%
EERPHAORTEERED
AR¥812(EL - EAKER
RFIEEETEEERBITHE
ARG REIMNRITEERE XA
HIREMRITIEE - BEZEN
BHRXELHERR  KEEE
WE—REEBERRTZER
K EASEINR T AKBIRTT
EEREEARKTSRET B
HIRITIEENARK1.8ETE
EBEMI BN _ZETNF+ =
A=+—B#&8m- - ERX Lt
ZE EERR ZFEEHM
MR TR B SRR

Annual Report 2008 —%% )\4E4EHK M)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE®)
(a) Amendments and interpretation to standards (a) R-SSI\FEFHHHE
effective in 2008 RIHBTRRE

e  The HKAS 39, 'Financial instruments: s HBEHERIEI
Recognition and measurement', amendment BRI A R

on reclassification of financial assets permits EEt2] EFofE
reclassification of certain financial assets WBEEEZIEETD

out of the held-for-trading and available- TR A R E G

for-sale categories if specified conditions ZERT #&&T

are met. The related amendment to HKFRS MBEERFEAE

7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, EERAEMATHE
introduces disclosure requirements with EEBPEFDLE

respect to financial assets reclassified R o ¥ BB B TS

out of the held-for-trading and available- WELEAF7TR 2

for-sale categories. The amendment is BT HE %5 24

effective prospectively from 1 July 2008. &5 - 5l AE 8

This amendment does not have any impact REBFEEERAE K

on the Group’s financial statements, as AR EHER R E

the Group has not reclassified any financial MORUBEER

assets. BEHRE - FHE

AIR—ETNFL
A—HELEX- /A
SN E TR N
MM BEELETE
oo RULAE
RS EupiEe
RIWBAEAE o

((JiM China Oriental Group Company Limited 58 5 Jy 48 I8 3 A B4 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESTHBERBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE®)
(a) Amendments and interpretation to standards (a) M-BESN\FEHRHE

BIMETRRE @)

effective in 2008 (continued)

HK (IFRIC)-Int 11, 'HKFRS 2 — Group and
treasury share transactions', provides
guidance on whether share-based
transactions involving treasury shares
or involving group entities (for example,
options over a parent's shares) should be
accounted for as equity-settled or cash-
settled share-based payment transactions
in the stand-alone accounts of the parent
and group companies. This interpretation
does not have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements as the Group
has already adopted the principles that are
consistent with HK(IFRIC)-Int 11.

s BEBERMB®RS
BEZES) 2
SR F BB
e EAE25R —
SEEEFBRN R
51 B REFR
NI REEEE
BB AR D A L/t
RN (I R
[SENCINE S 3
BESESARR
SBERRIE LK
B AARRSEiRiE
HnEEERERS
SHEEARNDAE
BAKOR HIRM
Bl HRAKE
ERAEEE (B
MumERERE
g)—BEF115%—
BERA - Hut @
Bre U AgEHy
RAVBRRELE
EREAFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 BEEE®)
(b) Interpretations to standards effective in 2008 (b) R-EBESN\FEHEERZX
but not relevant SHEERRYENRE
The following interpretations to published AT B AR ZE
standards are mandatory for accounting periods HARZEZENF—H—H
beginning on or after 1 January 2008 but are not 32 R FRIE B S EA R B
relevant to the Group’s operations: A BEASENSER

%

e HK(IFRIC)-Int 12, 'Service concession e FHE(BEBRMB®RE
arrangements'. ZELZEE) 2E
F 1255 RS IFRTHE

ZHE]
o HK(FRIC)-Int 14, ‘HKAS 19 — The limit on e FHE(BEBRMB®RE
a defined benefit asset, minimum funding ZREZEE) ZE
requirements and their interaction’. F4R[ BB GFE

HIZE195% — RER
MNEERSE &K

B ERKREMEE
AR -

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations (c) PFREBMEEEIFESA
to existing standards that are not yet effective RERABER - TR
and have not been early adopted by the REEARE
Group
The following standards and amendments to AR R E A 5 B 22 Bl 2
existing standards have been published and are REEREER] - AR
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods EEARZ_ZEZNF—H—
beginning on or after 1 January 2009 or later Bz BRRE &t B
periods, but the Group has not early adopted SR Z HARIER AN - (BASE
them: B AR P ERAN -

((Ye China Oriental Group Company Limited 58 5 Jy 48 8 1 I A B4 7




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RAR A

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKAS 1 (Revised), 'Presentation of financial
statements' (effective from 1 January
2009). The revised standard will prohibit
the presentation of items of income and
expenses (that is, 'non-owner changes
in equity') in the statement of changes in
equity, requiring ‘non-owner changes in
equity' to be presented separately from
owner changes in equity. All non-owner
changes in equity will be required to be
shown in a performance statement, but
entities can choose whether to present one
performance statement (the statement of
comprehensive income) or two statements
(the consolidated income statement and
statement of comprehensive income). Where
entities restate or reclassify comparative
information, they will be required to present
a restated balance sheet as at the beginning
comparative period in addition to the
current requirement to present balance
sheets at the end of the current period and
comparative period. The Group will apply
HKAS 1 (Revised) from 1 January 2009.
Management is assessing the impact under
the revised disclosure requirements of this
standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEREE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE®)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations (c) PEREHRMEREFESR
to existing standards that are not yet effective REFMER - ETR
and have not been early adopted by the Group BRAENMRE 2
(continued)

e  HKAS 23 (Revised), 'Borrowing costs' o F[HEGFERAZFE23
(effective from 1 January 2009). The SOEIEE) [ &
amendment requires an entity to capitalise ERA] (AZEE
borrowing costs directly attributable to the NnNFE—R—BE4E
acquisition, construction or production of a ) o ZIEETHE B
qualifying asset (one that takes a substantial NS - ZiEsk
period of time to get ready for use or sale) EEAIREE(RE
as part of the cost of that asset. The option HE RER A aLE
of immediately expensing those borrowing E 78 5+ AT A =k 7]
costs will be removed. The Group will apply HEMRRENEE) B
HKAS 23 (Revised) from 1 January 2009. EREEERAE
It does not anticipate any material impact b tERZIEE
on the Group’s accounts as the Group has ERAKR—ZD o
already followed the principles of capitalising 16 B B 7 A BB
borrowing costs for qualify assets in REBRANRIER
accordance with existing HKAS 23. WEUE - ANE B

—ZETNEFE—H
—BREREES

FTZERIZE 2355 (445
7]) c MHAT g H A
SEEBELTM
BAEE ALXK
EERMNEBRITE
B e ERIFE 235
BHENEREER
B ANE AR AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

o HKAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ (effective
from 1 July 2009).The revised standard
requires the effects of all transactions with
non-controlling interests to be recorded in
equity if there is no change in control and
these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The standard
also specifies the accounting when control
is lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is
re-measured to fair value and a gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss. The Group will
apply HKAS 27 (Revised) prospectively to
transactions with non-controlling interests
from 1 January 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHEREZE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 BEEE®)
(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations (c) PEREHRMEREFESR
to existing standards that are not yet effective REFMER - ETR
and have not been early adopted by the Group BRAENMRE 2

(continued)

YA China Oriental Group Company Limited H 58 5 Jy 48 I 1 A FR 4 7]

HKFRS 2 (Amendment), ‘Share-based
payment’ (effective from 1 January 2009).
The amended standard deals with vesting
conditions and cancellations. It clarifies that
vesting conditions are service conditions
and performance conditions only. Other
features of a share-based payment are
not vesting conditions. As such these
features would need to be included in the
grant date fair value for transactions with
employees and others providing similar
services, that is, these features would not
impact the number of awards expected
to vest or valuation thereof subsequent to
grant date. All cancellations, whether by the
entity or by other parties, should receive
the same accounting treatment. The Group
will apply HKFRS 2 (Amendment) from 1
January 2009, but it is not expected to have
a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B RAR A

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business combinations’
(effective from 1 July 2009). The revised
standard continues to apply the acquisition
method to business combinations, with
some significant changes. For example, all
payments to purchase a business are to
be recorded at fair value at the acquisition
date, with contingent payments classified as
debt subsequently re-measured through the
consolidated income statement. There is a
choice on an acquisition by acquisition basis
to measure the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets. All acquisition-
related costs should be expensed. The
Group will apply HKFRS 3 (Revised)
prospectively to all business combinations
from 1 January 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHEREZE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE®)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations (c) PEREHRMEREFESR
to existing standards that are not yet effective REFMER - ETR
and have not been early adopted by the Group BRAENMRE 2
(continued)

e HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial o FBEMBmEER
instruments: Disclosure’ (effective from 1 FBTRUEFTA)
January 2009). The amended standard (&R TH: HE]
introduces a three-level hierarchy for fair (BT hF—A
value measurement disclosure and requires —HRBAER) - &
some specific quantitative disclosures for & 5T R 5| A — &
financial instruments in the lowest level in “EEREBERAR
the hierarchy. In addition, the amendment AFEFERE -
clarifies and enhances existing requirements RIS R VA2
for the disclosure of liquidity risk primarily 1 s R K
requiring a separate liquidity risk analysis e T AEEHE
for derivative and non-derivative financial THEE/HEE-
liabilities. The Group will apply the HKFRS 7 AN - BB R RIB
(Amendment) from 1 January 2009, but it is WIEBRE R E S
not expected to have impact on the Group’s 2 B B0 4% BB 9 ER 1T
consolidated financial statements. RE TEERY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’ (effective
from 1 January 2009). HKFRS 8 replaces
HKAS 14, ‘Segment reporting’, and aligns
segment reporting with the requirements of
the US standard SFAS 131, ‘Disclosures
about segments of an enterprise and related
information’. The new standard requires
a ‘management approach’, under which
segment information is presented on the
same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. The Group will apply HKFRS 8
from 1 January 2009. Management believes
that this standard will result in an increase in
number of reportable segments presented.
In addition, the segments are reported
in a manner that is more consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008

A HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation
of financial statements’ (effective from
1 January 2009). The amendment
clarifies that some rather than all
financial assets and liabilities classified
as held for trading in accordance
with HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’
are examples of current assets and
liabilities respectively. The Group will
apply the HKAS 1 (Amendment) from
1 January 2009. It is not expected
to have an impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERREBE@®
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE®)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations (c) MEREMmMEREIFEA
to existing standards that are not yet effective REFMER - ETR
and have not been early adopted by the Group BAERRRE )
(continued)

e HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS e BHHEFFMAER
published in October 2008 (continued) —EENFE+AA
BB RE

LRI BNHE (48)

A HKAS 16 (Amendment), ‘Property, A BEGER
plant and equipment’ (and %165173(@;1
consequential amendment to HKAS ) [ -
7, ‘Statement of cash flows’) (effective %5 K&
from 1 January 2009). Entities (RAMmEHE
whose ordinary activities comprise BEET R E
renting and subsequently selling 7THRIBERE
assets present proceeds from the =] 1EH E’]T"{
sale of those assets as revenue and ) (B=EE
should transfer the carrying amount h&—A—H
of the asset to inventories when RAED) B
the asset becomes held for sale. A BEEEEME
consequential amendment to HKAS EMERTE
7 states that cash flows arising from BEZERG
purchase, rental and sale of those HERZEE
assets are classified as cash flows R PSR 27
from operating activities. The Group A - BIfE
will apply the HKAS 16 (Amendment) % B ERK A
from 1 January 2009. It is not expected FEE I & B A
to have an impact on the Group’s BEMKRAEE
financial statements. EERTTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (continued)

A HKAS 20 (Amendment), ‘Accounting
for government grants and disclosure
of government assistance’ (effective
from 1 January 2009). The benefit of a
below-market rate government loan is
measured as the difference between
the carrying amount in accordance
with HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’ and
the proceeds received with the benefit
accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 20. The Group will apply the
HKAS 20 (Amendment) prospectively
to government loans received in
periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (continued)

A HKAS 23 (Amendment), ‘Borrowing
costs’ (effective from 1 January
2009). The definition of borrowing
costs has been amended so that
interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method defined
in HKAS 39 ‘Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’.
This eliminates the inconsistency of
terms between HKAS 39 and HKAS
23. The Group will apply HKAS 23
(Amendment) prospectively to the
capitalisation of borrowing costs on
qualifying assets from 1 January 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (continued)

A HKAS 28 (Amendment), ‘Investments
in associates’ (and consequential
amendments to HKAS 32, ‘Financial
Instruments: Presentation” and HKFRS
7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’)
(effective from 1 January 2009).

— An investment in associate is treated
as a single asset for the purposes of
impairment testing and any impairment
loss is not allocated to specific assets
included within the investment,
for example, goodwill. Reversals
of impairment are recorded as an
adjustment to the investment balance
to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the associate increases.
The Group will apply the HKAS 28
(Amendment) to impairment tests
related to investment in associates and
any related impairment losses from 1
January 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (continued)

— Where an investment in associate
is accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 39 Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement’ only
certain rather than all disclosure
requirements in HKAS 28 need to
be made in addition to disclosures
required by HKAS 32, ‘Financial
Instruments: Presentation’ and
HKFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments:
Disclosures’. The Group will apply
HKAS 28 (Amendment) from 1 January
2009. The amendment will not have
an impact on the Group’s operations
because it is the Group’s policy for an
investment in an associate to be equity
accounted in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BEEEEN  FESEOUARBETIREN) BE-TTN\GF+_A=1+—RILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHEEREZE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE®)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations (c) PEREHRMEREFESR
to existing standards that are not yet effective REFMER - ETR

and have not been early adopted by the Group BRAENMRE 2

(continued)

e HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS s ABSHAAER
published in October 2008 (continued) —EENFE+AR
M RBIM GRS

AR BE ()

A HKAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment A BHEGEEL
of assets’ (effective from 1 January £ 365 (& 7]
2009). Where fair value less costs ) [BER
to sell is calculated on the basis of Bl (A=ZZEZE
discounted cash flows, disclosures hE—A—H
equivalent to those for value-in- RAER)
use calculation should be made. ANEEREE
The Group will apply the HKAS 36 BN 2 R BR T
(Amendment) and provide the required WIREMEF
disclosure where applicable for & B MZETE
impairment tests from 1 January 2009. HARE R A

BEFEHE
B AEEE
BT hF
—A— B
REBEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE-TEN\FT-_A=1T—HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (continued)

A HKAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible
assets’ (effective from 1 January
2009).

— A prepayment may only be recognised
in the event that payment has been
made in advance of obtaining right of
access to goods or receipt of services.
The Group will apply the HKAS 38
(Amendment) from 1 January 2009. It
is not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (continued)

— The amendment deletes the
wording that states that there is
‘rarely, if ever’ support for use of a
method that results in a lower rate
of amortisation than the straight
line method. The Group will apply
HKAS 38 (Amendment) from
1 January 2009. The amendment will
not currently have an impact on the
Group’s operations as all intangible
assets are amortised using the straight
line method.

A HKAS 39 (Amendment), ‘Financial
instruments: Recognition and
measurement’ (effective from 1
January 2009).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (continued)

— This amendment clarifies that it is
possible for there to be movements
into and out of the fair value through
profit or loss category where a
derivative commences or ceases to
qualify as a hedging instrument in cash
flow or net investment hedge.

— The definition of financial asset or
financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss as it relates to items that
are held for trading is also amended.
This clarifies that a financial asset
or liability that is part of a portfolio
of financial instruments managed
together with evidence of an actual
recent pattern of short-term profit-
taking is included in such a portfolio on
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (continued)

— The current guidance on designating
and documenting hedges states that
a hedging instrument needs to involve
a party external to the reporting entity
and cites a segment as an example
of a reporting entity. This means
that in order for hedge accounting
to be applied at segment level, the
requirements for hedge accounting
are currently required to be met by the
applicable segment. The amendment
removes this requirement so that
HKAS 39 is consistent with HKFRS 8,
‘Operating segments’ which requires
disclosure for segments to be based
on information reported to the chief
operating decision maker.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (continued)

— When remeasuring the carrying
amount of a debt instrument on
cessation of fair value hedge
accounting, the amendment clarifies
that a revised effective interest rate
(calculated at the date fair value hedge
accounting ceases) are used.

The Group will apply the HKAS 39
(Amendment) from 1 January 2009.
It is not expected to have an impact
on the Group’s consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (continued)

A HKAS 40 (Amendment), ‘Investment
property’ (and consequential
amendments to HKAS 16) (effective
from 1 January 2009). Property that
is under construction or development
for future use as investment property
is within the scope of HKAS 40.
Where the fair value model is applied,
such property is, therefore, measured
at fair value. However, where fair
value of investment property under
construction is not reliably measurable,
the property is measured at cost until
the earlier of the date construction is
completed and the date at which fair
value becomes reliably measurable.
The Group will apply the HKAS 40
(Amendment) from 1 January 2009.
The amendment will not have an
impact on the Group’s operations,
as investment properties held by the
Group are measured by cost model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

° HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (continued)

A There are a number of minor
amendments to HKFRS 7, ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’, HKAS
8, ‘Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors’,
HKAS 10, ‘Events after the balance
sheet date’, HKAS 18, ‘Revenue’,
HKAS 20, ‘Accounting for government
grants and disclosure of government
assistance’, HKAS 34, ‘Interim
financial reporting’ and HKAS 40,
‘Investment property’ which are not
addressed above. These amendments
are unlikely to have an impact on the
Group’s financial statements and have
therefore not been analysed in detail.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) Interpretations and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and not
relevant for the Group’s operations

The following interpretations and amendments to
existing standards have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009 or later
periods but are not relevant for the Group’s
operations:

° HKAS 32 (Amendment), 'Financial
instruments: Presentation', and HKAS 1
(Amendment), 'Presentation of financial
statements'-'Puttable financial instruments
and obligations arising on liquidation'
(effective from 1 January 2009).

° HKAS 39 (amendment) 'Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'
— 'Eligible hedged items' (effective from 1
July 2009).

° HKFRS 1 (Amendment), 'First time adoption
of HKFRS’” and HKAS 27 'Consolidated and
separate financial statements' (effective from
1 July 2009).

° HK(IFRIC)-Int 13, 'Customer loyalty
programmes' (effective from 1 July 2008).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERREBE@®
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE®)

(d) Interpretations and amendments to existing (d RFRENBREEEEE
standards that are not yet effective and not EFENHRBEINRE
relevant for the Group’s operations (continued) (#&)

e HK(IFRIC)-Int 15, 'Agreements for o  FHE (BB HRE
construction of real estates' (effective from 1 2RLEe) 2R
January 2009). F15% [ E i E E

71;‘11-57:’3 EF}'JZJ ( EE — 7 7
NE—HA—BRELE
) °

e HK(IFRIC)-Int 16, 'Hedges of a net o  HE(BEHBHRE
investment in a foreign operation' (effective ZEZE®)RZE
from 1 October 2008). E165%[ ERgINE

BRERE| (A=F
ZENFTA-BRE

ERR) °

e  HK(FRIC)-Int 17, 'Distributions of non-cash o BHH(EHRKY KR
assets to owners' (effective from 1 July HERELZEe) %
2009). %;;m?yﬁ [ 17 ¥ &

/)Eifiﬁ/i*ﬁEJ
( EE —ETNFEA
—BRBE) -

e HK(FRIC)-Int 18, ‘Transfers of Assets from . Eﬁ%(ll@\ MsmE
Customers' (effective for transfers on or after uﬁéé Ba) 28
1 July 2009). 185ﬁf?ﬁé@ﬁ%&€$v

Vé?l (H=EZE
NFE+tA—Hzz
& RBAER)
e HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS . %.5/% TR AE R
published in October 2008 = 2)\@ +AR
i 3 & WS
HERI| A B
A HKAS 19 (Amendment), 'Employee A BBEEEER
benefits' (effective from 1 January £195% (& 5]
2009). ) 1E B %E:E'l
Ml (B==F
NE—A— El
HBAERK) o
A HKAS 27 (Amendment), ‘Consolidated A BESEEL
and separate financial statements' F275 (18 F]
(effective from 1 January 2009). ) [538 ME
S BF TS Sk
(H=-ZTZT AN
F—H—A
ER) o
A HKAS 29 (Amendment), 'Financial A BAEEER
reporting in hyperinflationary F295% (&3]
economies' (effective from 1 January ) [ BEBER
2009). B TSR
HEl (B=ZE
ZNF—A—
HEEER) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERREBE@®
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEM@)

(d) Interpretations and amendments to existing (d RFREMBRETEEEE
standards that are not yet effective and not EFENHRBEINRE
relevant for the Group’s operations (continued) (%)

e HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRS e AHFSHEAZR
published in October 2008 (continued) —EENFTAR
1 3 BB B 7 R

HEBI| Y BACHE (42)

A HKAS 31 (Amendment), 'Interests A BEGEER
in joint ventures (and consequential F3158 (87T
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS ) [EERE
7) (effective from 1 January 2009). ] (REH

BEETERE
32 5% R B
SRS
755 B 4B FE {5
i) (=TT
hE—A—H
HBAERKD) o

A HKAS 41 (Amendment), 'Agriculture' A BEGEER

(effective from 1 January 2009). FA15E (B FT
)[EZE] (f
ZEENF
—A—HBR4E
B0 e

A HKFRS 5 (Amendment), ‘Non-current A BEVB®RE
assets held for sale and discontinued AERIZE 5 5R (15
operations' (and consequential FIAR) [351EH
amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘First-time ERIEREE
adoption’) (effective from 1 July 2009). ENBE &K

B (R
BB B WS

HRIE1HR
R ] B4R
FEER]) (A=

ZTNF LA

—BRBER) -

e The minor amendments to HKAS 29, e HERBBZER
'Financial reporting in hyperinflationary F295% [ Bx BB IR
economies' and HKAS 41, 'Agriculture’, £ B B T R
which are not addressed above. These REBEELZE
amendments will not have an impact on the 4157 [ B2 | BE8 i
Group’s operations as described above. CHEX R DE

%o 10 £ Rt
U 2 465 BT 5 T

AEENEEELE
ve-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

Except for those companies composing the
Group upon the Reorganisation, which have been
accounted for on the merger basis, the results
of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHEREZE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued) 22 #EERE@®
(@) Subsidiaries (continued) (a) KMEBATE)

The purchase method of accounting is used to AEBERABEEER
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the AEBWHEKRE AR A
Group except for those subsidiaries composing iR EREAmMAEKR RS
the Group upon the Reorganisation. The cost B H T B A mIBR AN o UkEE
of an acquisition is measured as the fair value AR EELQ T
of the assets given, equity instruments issued B BBEITRATARR
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date RHBEEIFRENERE
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to Wi B ZEER KA
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and itE o REBRAWAER
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a Frus g rl s R EEE B B B
business combination are measured initially at LR B EVIRIERIE
their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective AR AFERE - EE
of the extent of any minority interest. The excess YRR S AR o i
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of B N8 2N 55 [ PR A P Uik
the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets BRI A EEFEN AT
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of BEREREINIERE - il
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net BRANMERATUEEN B A
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference RIEEFEMNATE - Al
is recognised directly in the consolidated income ERAENGEERRE
statement. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEGHHBERE@)
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued) 22 #EKRE @
(@) Subsidiaries (continued) (a) MEAT G

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (Note 2.9). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the

EENATMOZS &
EPNGEPTOTTE Y
BT A8 - RER
BB A - HE2
AMEHEEEHBER
A BT BR EI R
AR BRI R O T
H—H -

ERXRAMEEREBR
N B R RIRE THIRK
7R BB TS 18 7 8 51 BR
(KfEE2.9) ° A1 A # B4

basis of dividends received and receivable. BRAREEED WM IE
IR B AR ARR o
(b) Transactions with minority interest (b) HIBEFRERETHE
2

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interest as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals to minority
interest result in gains and losses for the Group
that are recorded in the consolidated income
statement. Purchases from minority interest result
in goodwill, being the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.

7N £ ) g R o £ D B R
RETHR HEEEAR
SEIRALTETHRS
FRIZHRER o M BIRR
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ERE Vit A&GaBsE
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DEVERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c)

I{W China Oriental Group Company Limited H 58 5 Jy 48 I 3 I A B4 7

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised
at cost. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of
any accumulated impairment loss. See Note 2.9
for the impairment of non-financial assets including
goodwill.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c) Associates (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those
of other business segments. A geographical segment
is engaged in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment that are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of segments
operating in other economic environments.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi, which is the functional
and presentation currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHEREZE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.4 HNEIAE ()
(b) Transactions and balances (b) XHER#EER

Foreign currency transactions are translated into INER SR 5 A RER
the functional currency using the exchange rates REHMEXRFHARZ
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or BEFTER/RNEE - kK
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign RERZABRLEELEE ER
exchange gains and losses resulting from the REREEHREHEE
settlement of such transactions and from the BRI EERREIN - &
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary B ER G E M E A A
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign KiGLAINE BB E
currencies are recognised in the consolidated MEEEB FERFENE
income statement, except when deferred in equity RIQE M B A SN U 25
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net LEERGEEIBRRPE
investment hedges. R o

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to HEFARRERASE
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are BV E W ke
presented in the consolidated income statement BRirEEER [ BB
within “finance income or cost’. All other foreign A A] R38R - 7B
exchange gains and losses are presented in the HafER e RkERS
consolidated income statement within ‘other RiraEmx [ E(E
(losses)/gains - net’. B)/ W= —F8] A%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EESHBERE @)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued) 2.4 HNEIAE ()

(c)

Net investment in foreign operation

The Company and some subsidiaries have certain
monetary items that are receivable from or payable
to a foreign operation within the Group. An item
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur in the foreseeable future is, in substance,
a part of the entity’s net investment in that foreign
operation. Such monetary items include long-term
receivables or loans, which do not include trade
receivables and trade payables.

Exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms a part of the Group’s net investment in
a foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss in
the separate financial statements of the reporting
entity or the individual financial statements of
the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the
financial statements that include the foreign
operation and the reporting entity (consolidated
financial statements when the foreign operation
is a subsidiary), such exchange differences, if
appropriate, is recognised initially in a separate
component of equity and recognised in profit or
loss on disposal of the net investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BEEEEN  ESEOUARBTIREN) BE-TTN\GF+_A=1+—RILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EESHBERE @)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 W - WEKEZME

I[N China Oriental Group Company Limited H [835 J5 4 F ¥ e A FR A

Property, plant and equipment, comprising
buildings, machinery, furniture and fixtures, leasehold
improvements and vehicles are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any gains/
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs or revalued amounts to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives (Note 4.1), as follows:

Estimated useful life

Buildings 10-20 years
Machinery 5-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Vehicles 4-10 years
Leasehold improvements 2-5 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTZT \F+_A=1+—HILEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B EBRONARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within other (losses)/gains-net, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs
of construction and acquisition. No provision for
depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available for intended
use. When the assets concerned are ready for their
intended use, the costs are transferred to property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as stated above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned
and no individual land ownership right exists. The Group
acquired the right to use certain land. The premiums paid
for such right are treated as prepayment for operating
lease and recorded as leasehold land and land use
rights, which are amortised over the lease periods using
the straight-line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

J{0PA China Oriental Group Company Limited H [55 J5 45 F % e A R A

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the companies in the consolidated Group, is classified as
investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at
depreciated cost less accumulated impairment.

Fair value is determined and disclosed based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
These valuations are reviewed annually by the directors.
Changes in fair values are not recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives of 20 years.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRANARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties (continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment,
and its carrying amount at the date of reclassification
becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Property
that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property is classified as property, plant
and equipment and stated at cost until construction or
development is complete, at which time it is reclassified
and subsequently accounted for as investment property.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
the transfer does not change the carrying amount of the
property transferred, nor does it change the cost of that
property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Intangible assets

(@) Goodwill

Goodwill either on acquisition of subsidiaries or
on transaction with minority interest is included in
intangible assets. Separately recognised goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwiill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating
segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

Iron ore mining licenses

Iron ore mining licenses purchased are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of licences over their estimated
useful lives (5 years).

Iron ore mining licenses should be derecognised
on disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of
iron ore mining licenses should be determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds,
if any, and the carrying amount of the asset. It
should be recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates
and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity financial assets and available-
for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determine
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHEREZE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued) 210 BIFEEE#®)
2.10.1 Classification (continued) 2101 &)

(@  Financial assets at fair value through profit or @ EATFEEAEZR

loss AR IS EE
Financial assets at fair value through profit BEATFEBEBEZ
or loss are financial assets held for trading. EENARIEER
A financial asset is classified in this category BB 75 & EE o fw ik
if acquired principally for the purpose of ENETZEMNAE
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also RHALEE - B8
categorised as held for trading unless they BEESBE IR
are designated as hedges. Assets in this Ale TET A TS
category are classified as current assets. ERBIEEE K
FHEEHETER

EEMRERSE -
RN EED R

(b)  Loans and receivables ) EBERREWERR
Loans and receivables are non-derivative ERREVRERA
financial assets with fixed or determinable FTAETEHMKE
payments that are not quoted in an active E BEAEBETEHA
market. They are included in current assets, RIETFE  MHEILE
except for maturities greater than 12 R E BB T %
months after the balance sheet date. These ITRE -BEBE
are classified as non-current assets. The RREBEENRN - &
Group’s loans and receivables are classified TEEINHBE R
as ‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash HEHEsE121E A
and cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet E(HEERRE
(Note 2.13 and 2.14). W BR ZX 51 1 FE I &

BE) AKEMNE
XK FE U BR SR 51 A
BEBEBEERNIE
5 R H th R AR 3K
MBAERESF
BEY] (MiEE 213 &
2.14) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRANARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.1 Classification (continued)

(©

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. If the Group were to sell other than
an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
financial assets, the whole category would
be tainted and reclassified as available-for-
sale. Held to maturity financial assets are
included in non-current assets, except for
those with maturities less than 12 months
from the balance sheet date; which are
classified as current assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to
dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.

For the years ended 31 December 2008
and 2007, the Group has no financial assets
categorised as held-to-maturity.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHEREZE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued) 210 BIFEEE#®)
2.10.2 Recognition and measurement 2102 R RRTE
Regular way purchases and sales of financial MBEE —MEENR
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the S8 (AASEAFEEE
date on which the Group commits to purchase or SHEEEER) R
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised HRWIEIE AT EEBE
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial RN S EEREY)
assets not carried at fair value through profit or IRIR A T E IR 5K AN T
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through R AT EFE BB
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, RIS E EVIRIRA T
and transaction costs are expensed in the income BEER MR ENAEKE
statement. Financial assets are derecognised B Ak - MEEET)
when the rights to receive cash flows from the RWEIR 2R = BRI fE
investments have expired or have been transferred B E MASEES
and the Group has transferred substantially all FERAEEN—TRR
risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets KBl - A AR
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently R AT EFEREBEmC
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are RN BEEERERIZAT
carried at amortised cost using the effective BAR - ER R EWKERRK
interest method. Available-for-sale assets of the PAE R A=A R D HEK
Group are investments in equity instruments that RABR o NEEE Z A
do not have a quoted market price in an active EEEANERMS I E
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably MGMEREAFEEE
measured, which are measured at cost less A FEFTEMMRRATEAER
provision for impairment, if any. ®E - HIRNRARURE R

B (A)FIER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHERBEZE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued) 210 BATEEE #)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (continued) 2102 R REHE (@)

Gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value

[RAFEBBERC
ROPBEE | ERINA

through profit or loss’ category are presented in T EZEmEENRE
the consolidated income statement within other TIAEEBENGEIER
(losses)/gains — net, in the period in which they RIHM(EE) s —

arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payment
is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security. The
translation differences on monetary securities are
recognised in profit or loss; translation differences
on non-monetary securities are recognised in
equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary and
non-monetary securities classified as available for
sale are recognised in equity.
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e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHEREZE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued) 210 BIFEEE#®)
2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (continued) 2102 R REHE (@)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated A EEES N R
using the effective interest method is recognised BERMZETE - tERHE
in the consolidated income statement as part e — A RERE B
of other income. Dividends on available-for- RIER o Al EEERS
sale equity instruments are recognised in the TEMRE  EAREEK
consolidated income statement as part of B0 FlkT VA SR (=h
other income when the Group’s right to receive Etzm— o Rere 8
payments is established. TR HERR ©

The fair values of quoted investments are based WMEHRENATFERET
on current bid prices. If the market for a financial BEAEETE - MUBEE
asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the MBERENER (I AIE
Group established fair value by using valuation EWESH)  AIAREEHR
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s REEREEEATE -
length transactions, reference to other instruments HEFEREEARIIE
that are substantially the same, discounted cash DAREETHRS - &
flow analysis and option pricing models, making EHMABHERNIA -
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little R MEITIR DT K R
as possible on entity-specific inputs. EEERX - THOFERAME

BWARB REARER A&
B EERNIMAIER -

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date AEERSESEE BRI
whether there is objective evidence that a financial ERERBRERTN
asset or a group of financial assets in impaired. A BEEED A LR
Impairment losses recognised in the income WA - BiiEm T BN
statement on equity instruments are not reversed RERRERBEBTIZE
through the income statement. Impairment testing MBmEREE - ERE S
of trade and other receivables is described in Note AR A Rk (8 ORI & P MY 5
2.13. 2.13 At -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHERBEZE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities 211 PTASR T A NEREEGE

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The method
of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designed as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as
either:

(1)  hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge);

(2) hedges of a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable
forecast transaction (cash flow hedges); or

(8) hedges of net investments in foreign operations
(net investment hedge).

The Group documents, at the inception of the
transaction, the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents
its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an
ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a
non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity
of the hedge item is more than 12 months, and as a
current asset or liability, if the remaining maturity of the
hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives
are classified as a current asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

(continued)

(@)

JBWA China Oriental Group Company Limited H [55 J5 45 F ¥ e A TR A

Cash flow hedge

The Group accounts for a hedge of foreign
currency risk of a firm commitment as a cash flow
hedge on the following basis:

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges are recognised in equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement
within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled
in the consolidated income statement in the
periods when the hedged item affects profit or
loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is
hedged takes place). The gain or loss relating to
the effective portion of forward foreign exchange
contracts hedging export sales is recognised in the
consolidated income statement within ‘revenues’.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’. However, when
the forecast transaction that is hedged results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for
example, inventory or fixed assets), the gains and
losses previously deferred in equity are transferred
from equity and included in the initial measurement
of the cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are
ultimately recognised in cost of goods sold in the
case of inventory, or in depreciation in the case of
fixed assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRANARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

(continued)

(@)

(b)

Cash flow hedge (continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing in equity at that time remains in equity
and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the consolidated income statement
within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for
hedge accounting and are accounted for at fair
value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair
value of these derivative instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement
within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2.

I EREUARE T TAEM)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

212

213

IB¥'W China Oriental Group Company Limited Hv[F 5 75 48 75 Bt A5 BR 4 7]

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises design costs, raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the receivable
is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement within ‘distribution
costs’. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against ‘distribution costs’ in the
consolidated income statement.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRANARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

217

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

EESHBERE @)

2.14

2.15

2.16

217

RekAeEEY

RekReFEMEERE
RITBAER RIBPER=
B ASAT e E MR R DR
HRE - UARIRITE

LN

BB B RS - BEITH
P B P s 428 B 9% AR R O T B K
AT HE 2t R 51 4% P 15 SR IH B R
D (EEBIA) ©

B 5 R E AR AR

B 5 REMEMNERRIIGRA

FEER  MERNRABER
MR EIRE B AFTE -
f& R

fEFRENAFEGREES
R B ) HER o R EIRIZ
EESHR AR - FSFA (N
BFREX B ) HLE B B (E 2
T Z RN ME K EIE B B A
AR E Baa R T HER

Annual Report 2008 =FF /)\F4E#H

115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

217

2.18

219
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Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings at nil or low interest rates from government
are treated as government assistance and recognised
initially at the cost of consideration received.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of any qualifying
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sales are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in equity.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHERBEZE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.19 BHINEREFTSH ()

The current income tax charge is calculated on the EHMEHEREANA RE
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted B AR K& QR EREL
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the 45 0 EE A FE AR B UR A R P TE
Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate BIREAEAEEMKES &
and generate taxable income. Management periodically ERGHREERTE - £8
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to AR EREFRENBR
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject T EEEe T BT EERN
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where RSN - MBS IRTBH A B
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid TSR TR BB TR -

to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability BREMSMRKBABERREE
method, on temporary differences arising between the MBEMHEREERE VB
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying WMEMEDEREEENTR
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. MERBER - AN WIELER
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for SEMREERS (TBEEBE
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in B R EES B BN YR E
a transaction other than a business combination that at R MERZRIZESE
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor FERTEEE - A DERER - 1B
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined EAMSTHRAEAEE BATER
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or SEEER  WEEBELER
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are SHEEERIELEMSHE
expected to apply when the related deferred income BEERBEHABSEROHRE
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is (FoRf) MEEE °

settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the EEFEHREEJIRLA Al 88
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 7R 2R JE RR A v 1) T L Utk AT Eh R
available against which the temporary differences can be TR E R MER o

utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

2.20 Employee benefits

(@) Pension obligations

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). Under the MPF
Scheme, the Group and its Hong Kong employees
make monthly contributions to the MPF Scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation, subject
to a cap of Hong Kong dollar 1,000 per person per
month and any excess contributions are voluntary.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group has arranged for its PRC
employees to join a defined contribution retirement
benefit plan organised by PRC government.
The PRC government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired employees payable under the
plan as set out in Note 32. The assets of this
plan are held separately from those of the Group
in an independent fund managed by the PRC
government.

The Group’s contributions to the defined

contribution retirement benefit plan are charged to
the consolidated income statement as incurred.

JBES China Oriental Group Company Limited H [85 J5 45 F ¥ e A7 TR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted, excluding the impact
of any non-market service and performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected
to vest. The total amount expensed is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EESHBERE @)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued) 2.20 BEERH @)

JWAIN China Oriental Group Company Limited H [55 J5 45 F % e A FR A

(b) Share-based compensation (continued)

Where options are granted to employees of
subsidiaries within the Group, in the consolidated
financial statements, such share-based
arrangement is accounted for as equity-settled.
The fair value are accounted for as contributions
and recognised as part of the cost of investment in
the Company’s standalone financial statements.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Government grants

A government grant in the form of subsidy or financial
refund is recognised when there is a reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attached to the grant and that the grant will be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the life of a depreciable asset by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EESHBERE @)

2.23 Revenue recognition 2.23 WAMER

(a) Sales of goods produced (a) EREEHER
Revenue comprises the fair value of the WABEEREENEE
consideration received or receivable for the sale of (B BREPHEERRR
goods and services in the ordinary course of the BrE K KR EN R
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value- FAE - AR A
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and ToRE - BT -
after eliminating sales within the Group. VAR 1 SH N &2 B N SH &S R

B3R o
The Group recognises revenue when the amount FLLA T Pt H 2N 2 [ %18
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable EEME  ERASEERE
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity AISEaT 2 @ AR RAE R
and specific criteria have been met for each of = ERREERAEBUR
the Group’s activities as described below. The REFRIZER - ANEE
amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably e ERKA - fFEATA &
measurable until all contingencies relating to SHE B RR S A SRR
the sale have been resolved. The Group bases SRET - WA SR e
its estimates on historical results, taking into HRAER] TRIFEETE © A%
consideration the type of customer, the type of B BEEENGHTHE
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. WMBHEZEREIEF A
Al RSWER LA KK IEH
ZHEMEIRIBR,
(b) Interest income (b) FIRUA

jW#8 China Oriental Group Company Limited H [55 J5 45 F ¥ e A TR A

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When
a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23

2.24

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

(d) Leaseincome

Lease income from operating leases is recognised
in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor), including upfront payment made for leasehold
land and land use rights, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.

mE MR RR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EESHBERE @)

2.24 Lease (continued) 2.24 HE @)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. Contingent rents
is charged as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the consolidated income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

If there is reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term, the property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance
lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying
amount is deferred and amortised over the lease term.
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25

2.26

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain events not wholly within the control of
the Group. Contingent assets are not recognised but
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Dividends distribution

Dividends distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BEEEEN  ESEOUARBTIREN) BE-TTN\GF+_A=1+—RILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EESHBERE @)

2.27 BBERED

2.27 Financial guarantee contracts

jWAM China Oriental Group Company Limited H [55 J5 45 F ¥ e A FR A

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised in respect
of the financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
to the contract holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially
at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. The fair value of financial guarantee is
determined as the present value of the difference in net
cash flows between the contractual payments under
the debt instruments and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligation. Where guarantees in relation to loans or other
payables of subsidiaries or associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of investment. After initial recognition, such contracts
are measured at the higher of the present value of the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation and the amount initially recognised
less cumulative amortisation.
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REKELNEK -

MBEREDE I FEMER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B EBRONARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity
other than ordinary shares, by weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in
ordinary shares issued during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted
average number of shares assumed to have been
issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

mE MR RR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTZT \F+_A=1+—HILEE
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2.28 Fi%m F
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e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. B E bR E R
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 FBERAEZE

AEENRS AR ZEHRBRE
k2 MBRAR(BREAFERNE
R\ - 3R E A K E R RSN
ERR) - FERBRIMABES
B - AEENEBEEREE
AHEI BB 5 5 RO RETROR
M YSRBEREHAEE
MR ENBETNEE -

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial market and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

jWAS China Oriental Group Company Limited H [55 J5 45 F ¥ e A FR A

flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the
Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets. The Group’s exposure to changes
in interest rates is mainly attributable to its
non-current borrowings. All non-current
borrowings bear variable rates and expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. The
maximum exposures to the interest rate risk
have been disclosed in Note 25.

The Group has not used any derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

(a) Market risk (a) THEEE
()  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk ) ReERERATHE
== [ B
The Group’s income and operating cash B AR & 3 1

M ERXKEEE
E MAEBERHIK
ARKEERERE
EARERZHIGF
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MBS K o FT A 3E
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% o B AKX R B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRANARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The directors do not consider the exposure
to foreign exchange risk is significant to
the Group’s operation as the Group mainly
operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions denominated and settled in
RMB. Therefore, the Group has not used
any derivatives to hedge its exposure to
foreign exchange risk for the year ended 31
December 2008.

The major foreign exchange risk exposure
arises from its exporting activities and
the related trade receivables, which are
mostly denominated in United States
Dollars (the “US$”). The Group also has
certain bank deposits, financial assets and
financial liabilities that are denominated in
foreign currencies, mainly US$, Euros and
Hong Kong Dollars (the “HK$”), which are
exposed to foreign currency translation risk.
The maximum exposures to the foreign
exchange risks are disclosed in Note 17, 20
and 25 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

3. BXRRERE®

3.1 UBERAEZE@®)

(@) TWRmEE

(i)
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BEEEEN  ESEOUARBTIREN) BE-TTN\GF+_A=1+—RILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HERMEE@)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BBRBEZ@)
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) THBE @)
(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (i) BURELTRHE
The following table summarised the T 2R B AR £R B B
sensitivity of the Group of financial assets BEERVKEEE
and financial liabilities to interest rate risk and 12 A = B b K2 51 &
foreign exchange risk. [B\ T BRI BURSE o
The sensitivity analysis for interest rate ) 2= & e K 71 B [
risk and foreign exchange is based on the B 1) BURRE 9 1T 2
assumption that: ESNPIN H
(@ Interest rate had been 15% lower/ @ FE®RFRK
higher from the year end rates with T/ BT
all other variables held constant (for 15%  MmATA
example, 8.05% or 5.95% instead of Hfh & 213
7%); REFDE(H
% : 8.05FE =k
5.95[% - T3k
TE)
() RMB had weakened/strengthened by b)) AR¥EHE
10% against US$ and HK$ with all TR BT R
other variables held constant. ' / F @&
10% - MM A
Hin&# 2R
R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

mE MR RR

For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BRREEBAIN - FTESTEIUARBTLREN) BE-TT/\F+-A=T—HILLEFE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BHSEREEw
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBEREZR@®)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)  Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued)

31 December 2008

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted bank balance
Loan receivable

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Other long term payables

Total increase/(decrease)

31 December 2008

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted bank balance

Trade receivables

Deposits and other
receivables (Note 19)

Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables (1)
Borrowings

Total increase/(decrease)

(a) THIBEE @)
(i)  BREE DTt )

Interest rate risk

Fl=ER
-15% +15%
Carrying
amount Profit Equity Profit Equity
REE &F 2 Exm RN R
“ZE\F+=A=1-H
HKEE
B4 RIS Z(EY) 728,826 (315 (315 315 315
XRFIRITEEER 361,698 (155 (155) 155 155
FEME R 130,000 (873) (873) 873 873
BEEE
EE (2,186,460) 11,077 11,077 (11,077) (11,077)
Hfth = BRI 3R (867,822) 3,386 4,259 (3,386) (4,259)
&M/ (D) 13,120 13,993 (13,120) (13,993)
Foreign exchange risk
SNERK
-10% +10%
Carrying
amount Profit Equity Profit Equity
REE &F 2 Exm RN R
“ZE\F+=A=1-H
HKEE
B4 RELZ(EY) 728,826 6,640 6,640 (6,640) (6,640)
ZRFIF TR 361,698 18 18 (18) (19
[EE 585 1,733,991 28 28 (28) (28
e REMER
BR5R (FiiE19) 497,116 117 117 (117) (117)
BEEE
BB 5 R (2,219,395) (5,081) (5,081) 5,081 5,081
H fth FERFRIE (1) (678,399) (574) (574) 574 574
EEo (2,186,460) (16,016) (16,016) 16,016 16,016
SHEM/ (D) (14,868) (14,868) 14,868 14,868
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

For the year ended 31 December 2008
MESBANARBTIREN) #E_ZTN\GT_A=1T—HLFE

() Other payables include payables
for purchase of property, plant and
equipment, customer deposits,
employee deposits and other
borrowings of overdue as stated in

Note 24.

JBCYA China Oriental Group Company Limited H [55 J5 45 F ¥ e A TR A

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HERMREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBERBREZE®)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) THEERE =)
(i) Summarised sensitivity analysis (continued) (i)  BRE D ATEEA ()
Interest rate risk
alESE]
-15% +15%
Carrying
amount  Profit Equity  Profit  Equity
FEE af  BEE &N Bs
31 December 2007 —E2tF+-A=1+-H
Financial assets BEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBReEED 689,591  (667) (667) 667 667
Restricted bank balance RSB TEER 171,690  (171)  (A71) 171 171
Financial liabilities BaE
Borrowings R (1,225,000) 7,005 7,006 (7,005) (7,005)
Total increase/(decrease)  &#in/ (H2) 6,167 6,167 (6,167) (6,167)
Foreign exchange risk
INERBR
-10% +10%
Carrying
amount  Profit Equity  Profit  Equity
FEE af  BEE &N Bs
31 December 2007 —E2tF+-A=1+-H
Financial assets BEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBReEED 689,591 10,625 10,625 (10,625) (10,625)
Restricted bank balance XRHIRITAER 171,690 4,731 4,731 (4,781) (4,731)
Trade receivables W E 580 488,825 7,604 7,694 (7,694) (7,694)
Financial liabilities BaE
Trade payables 2 ZHRZK (715,535)  (629) (629) 629 629
Total increase/(decrease)  &#in/(H2) 22,421 22421 (22,421) (22,421)

) HfENFIA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRANARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets. The Group
does not have significant credit risks arising from
off-balance sheet items. The Group’s credit policy
for the sales of products is mainly delivery either
on cash or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes
with maturity dates within six months. For bank
and financial institutions, the Group has policies
that deposits are put in reputable banks. Credit
quality of financial assets are further disclosed in
Note 13, 14, 19 and 42(c) respectively.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents,
together with adequate banking facilities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

3. BXRRERE®

3.1 UBERAEZE@®)

(b)

()
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S EI B B /RN (B A AR SR
TEHEZRTERE -
HRRITR B BHE - K
EBHBUR 2 1877
RBEEENIEIT - BEE
ENEEEE 5 RIEMTE
13, 14, 19F142(c) NiE—
AR o
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(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HERMREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BBRBEZ@)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) WHEEE =

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2and Over
iyear 2years 5Syears 5years
158 1225 2E55 S5FHUE

At 31 December 2008 R=BBN\F+=A=t-H

Borrowings A 1,697,230 404,230 60,000 25,000

Interests payments on X HEFRFLE ()

borrowings () 78,038 14,359 5,589 208

Trade payables R E SRR 2,219,395 - - -

Other payables HitERz0a 678,399 - - -

Amounts due to related parties FE{ BB A 50E 207,013 10,000 55,055 -

Other long-term payables Hi REBEMZ 19,888 142,639 705,295 -

At 31 December 2007 R-EE+E+-A=+-H

Borrowings fE2k 460,000 275,770 444,230 45,000

Interests payments on S AHEFRFLE ()

borrowings ) 61559 41,716 17,331 756

Trade payables ENESER 715,535 - - -

Other payables Hi e z0a 474,743 = = =

Amounts due to related parties 1S BB 5 0R 8,571 - 55733 =

()  The interest on borrowings is calculated i BEINEE-_ZFZFT
based on borrowings held as at 31 TtER_FENF
December 2007 and 2008 without taking t-—A=+t—8#%
into account of future issues. Floating-rate BWERE T
interest is estimated using current interest ZREMAKE
rate as at 31 December 2007 and 2008 A e hZEjJ R 2 73 Bl
respectively. BE_ZTTLFR=

TTNF+-A
=+—BHEBF
EfhH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BREEEAN ERBANARSTTAEN) BE-ZTN\F+A=1+—HLFE
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HBRMBEE
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EAwvEBERE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
Total borrowings include current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.
The Group regards its borrowings and equity attributable
to the Company’s equity holders as its capital.

AEENESEERE 2R
BASBERSEREEEREE
BEZREN  UAKRRERE
W FSREEMEDSREEA
BFE W RENEARE
BAREE SR

REFAHABELER A&
B RE 2B N T RERMK
S8 MEREEES #
TR BB ERIKET ©

HERNHMAR K AEH
NRRIEEREES L RER
BARMMR o EREEERIARRD
A FA ARG ED IR
BRERBL R - BRERE
REABEERBRMTAORE
RIFRBER - REBHELE
RRA DB EEFFA ARGE

BRAARENER
2008 2007

t 208 —TTAF

Total borrowings (EEEGEE 2,186,460 1,225,000
Equity attributable to the iIN/NC Py

Company’s equity holders BB AR 6,265,229 6,548,690
Debt-to-equity ratio BIE B 2R b K 34.90% 18.71%

Annual Report 2008 =FF /)\F4E#H

135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
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(BRBEEEIN  FrESEIUARBT TAEN) BE_TT/\F+_A=+—HILEFE
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HBRBEE
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEMHET

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date.

The nominal value less impairment provision of trade and
other receivables and payables approximates their fair
values.

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and

are based on historical experiences and other factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

China Oriental Group Company Limited H [ 5 Jy 45 B ¥ B A FR A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

A EBRONARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The resulting accounting

estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market condition as at the balance
sheet date and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews property, plant and equipment
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.9. The
recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has
been determined based on higher of value-in-use
and fair value less costs to sell.

mE MR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \FE+-_A=1t—HILEE
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BRETHETIRHAE @
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
4.1  Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued) 41 BEgEesHE R @E)

(b)

JECiM China Oriental Group Company Limited H [85 J5 45 F % e A7 FR A

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(continued)

The Group determined that there was an
impairment indication relating to a production line
of a subsidiary which manufactures galvanised
and cold rolled sheets. This production line was
identified as a cash-generating unit.

The Group measured the value in use and fair
value less costs to sell by discounting the future
estimated cash flow deriving from the production
line. These calculations required the Group to
estimate the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

As at 31 December 2008, the value in use and fair
value less costs to sell approximated RMB 210.8
million and RMB 205.3 million respectively. The
Group considered that the recoverable amount
was the higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell. The recoverable amount of the
production line approximated its carrying amount
(Note 7).

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1  Critical accounting estimates and assumyptions (continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(continued)

If the estimated gross margin in all forecast
years had been 10% lower or higher than the
management’s estimates at 31 December 2008
(for example, 18% or 22% instead of 20%), the
Group would have recognised the impairment as

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

4. BREHETTRAE @

41 8%

(b)

erHhEt MR @)

W% BERBMREE )

R BT TER F E /G st
FNERREBER-_ZT
NE+-A=+—HBEL
B &R K sk 1R = 10%
({720 5 18% % 22% - i

follows: TRE20%) « BIA&EE
ROBET :
2008
—BEN\F
10% Lower  10% Higher
& 10% =10%
Impairment of property, Y%~ BB MR ERE
plant and equipment 30,567 -

If the estimated pre-tax discount rate applied to
the discounted cash flows had been 10% (for
example, 9% or 11% instead of 10%) lower or
higher than management’s estimates, the Group
would have recognised the impairment as follows:

WARBEFRBALREN
EETBRB AT IR R R B 1R
B{EH B EHRESIRE S
10% (ff 20 9% 8 11%
MmAZ10%) « BIAREE
HFERRELAT

2008
= LI

10% Lower 10% Higher

Impairment of property, Y%~ SN ERE

plant and equipment

£ 10% =10%

- 14,282
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BRETHETIRHAE @
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
4.1  Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued) 41 BEgEesHE R @E)

(c)

J¥IVB China Oriental Group Company Limited Hv[F 5 75 48 75 B A5 BR 4 7]

Useful life of the property, plant and
equipment

Useful life is the period over which an asset is
expected to be available for use by an entity. The

depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a
systematic basis over its useful life (Note 2.5).

The following factors are considered in determining

the useful life of an asset:

(i) Expected usage of the asset

(i)  Expected physical wear and tear

()

W3 - B R ER Y ] fE
REH

A ERFEHAEERYA
HERBERNER - BE
MR T E S RN HE A E A
FHRNREGREELETH
e (FHEE2.5) ©

EETEENAEREH
- BEBIATHEE

) ZBEENTEHRS

(i) TEEAMERER

(i)  Technical or commercial obsolescence (il HEEZTHHUR
arising from changes or improvements in S IZHZIEEE
production, or from a change in the market By 2 ot =k AR 75 & 1
demand for the product or service output of B SR E B ifn 35 K
the asset USRS LS

(iv)  Legal or similar limits on the use of the asset

The useful life of an asset is reviewed at each
financial year-end and, if expectations differ from
previous estimates, the change will be accounted
for as a change in an accounting estimate in
accordance with HKAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

vy ERZBREERHN
ERTIRLIR S

BEMNAERFHNESH
BERERETRE - WA
I R] 2 4R A SR A T AF
MEETBMAR - RIAR
EPRaREFEE;TE
AIEBRIBFTERR &
AHERTE R RRE | 1F
RETHEEFTN—HEBA
BE o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
ESBEANARBTIREN) BE_ZTN\FT_A=1T—HILFE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BB AEHEI -

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

CEA-EarhcEs] - 1)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting 42 ERERESIBURAREEAE
policies
(a) Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation (a) FEEBRESELEHEE
5% 3

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset are those borrowing costs that
would have been avoided if the expenditure on
the qualifying asset had not been made. It may
be difficult to identify a direct relationship between
particular borrowings and a qualifying asset and
to determine the borrowings that could otherwise
have been avoided. Such a difficulty occurs,
for example, when the financing activity of an
entity is co-ordinated centrally. As a result, the
determination of the amount of borrowing costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
a qualifying asset is difficult and the exercise of
judgement is required.

Borrowing costs capitalised into property, plant
and equipment are shown in Note 7.

WiE - ERALERER
BEBEERRBENEENX
AR R ER S BERE
EFHFAZ R ERNE
ERAR o 8 Bl E 18 R B
BERBEENERBRE -
VAR B TE RJ i o O 5 701

Al RE e HIRNEE - a0 -
EERNBEEYEHT
RGE pgHBEEH -
Bt - AETERBSE
REEBEREENEENX
REFE - WATTEHE -

REOEERARHET
FHIR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FIEERENARBT TAEN) BE-TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

(=B

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting

policies (continued)

(b)

VYA China Oriental Group Company Limited H[F 5 75 48 75 B A5 R4 7]

Distinction between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as investment property. In making its judgement,
the Group considers whether the property
generates cash flows largely independently of the
other assets held by the Group. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used
in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for administrative purposes.
If these portions can be sold separately, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property
is accounted for as investment property only if
an insignificant portion is held for administrative
purposes. Judgement is applied in determining
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.

For the year ended 31 December 2008

4. BREHETRAE @

42 FERERSAT KM 6

(&)

(b)

REMREREBRAME
#9353 51

AEEBE -BAUEED
MAREBRRREME - &
TEHFIEGE - AEEEE
BRZMEMELNEDR
ERBEANTRAEER
BREMEEMTE - %
TERMEMELENRE
mE TEERBZD
% TRERAREESH
JERIEREMEE o

Ry RETH—HD 2
RUARBE S HIER/ER
REREMFEN - Mx
— B AR EETEA
& o fiWax % B0 Al B AL
& ARBEHZENS
B o MxEB T
AIABYHE - BIZYE
EerEETERED AE
TTER & T #58 B e AR A
REW* - EEEHER
B BEREARABKIR
MEITEERRNED
X BIELHE - A
BEELHE RSB E
BEEME -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

5. SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - GROUP 5. HEERSHER-—FKEE
(@ Sales @ SHERE
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and REBFENREEEREEH
sales of iron and steel products. Sales recognised for EmeHE_ZETN\F N
the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as EE+FEF+_A=+—HILHF
follows: EABRKSHERENT !
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Sales: SHEFE
Gross sales, less discounts HEARERITHIRERE
and returns
— billets — IR 3,990,747 896,776
— strips and strip products — 758l % 75 8l 2R 2ZE o 8,574,492 7,441,792
— H section steel products —H A= & 5,672,508 4,330,279
— galvanised sheets —JEER 708,746 682,118
— cold rolled sheets —RELIR 612,100 158,044
— others —HAfh 14,633 22,844

19,573,226 13,631,853
Less: Sales taxes R SHETIE (185,043) (33,2998

19,388,183 13,498,555

(b)  Segment information (o) PHEF

No business segment information is presented as over HRAEEHE R LS
90% of the Group’s sales and operating profits are A2 38 90% 2K B $H & iff ﬁ% oA
derived from the sales of iron and steel products, which (R R EBELRRE & E R
is considered as one business segment with similar risks A —EXBHE)  WITEZR
and returns. EBDEERS o

No geographical segment information is presented as HRAEENHEREREE

over 90% of the Group’s sales and operating profits are A8 8 90% JR 1A R [ - ﬁﬁﬁ%
derived within the PRC and over 90% operating assets E B3 90% & & B E IMER
of the Group are located in the PRC, which is considered (A8 B EEBELRR & B R
as one geographic location with similar risks and returns. BE—fEHR) - B /SR

DEERL o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent the prepaid operating lease payments and their net
book value are analysed as follows:

Opening HA%T)
Amortisation of prepaid operating

lease payment (Note 31, 39) (Pff&E31 ~ 39)

As at 31 December 2008, the net book value of leasehold
land and land use rights pledged as security for the Group’s
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB 62 million (2007:
RMB 24 million) (Note 25).

The Group’s leasehold land and land use rights are located in
the PRC and the remaining lease period is between 44 years
to 47 years.

AN ETEE IR

HET R ERE - XK

AREBEEHRE L & £ b5 R #E
HIETENELRERE @ WEEEF
BN T:

2008 2007
—EENF —EFTLEF
76,441 78,092
(1,651) (1,651)
74,790 76,441

R-ZEENE+_-_A=+—H BA
AEBEERMEROEE i &+
FEARENRAFENAAREE,200
BL(ZZZ2+F . ARK24008
7t) (fgzE25) °

AEBMHEE -t & 1 o AL R
R R TN T 44 FF 47 F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. PE- - BERRE
The Group N
Furniture Leasehold Finance
and improve- leased
Buildings Machinery  fixtures Vehicles ~ ments CIP  assets Total
HENE HERE
BF HERE BORG A& i HEIE BE h
At 1 January 2007 RZZEtE-B-A
Cost A 1346713 3924966 28063 50421 1337 234277 - 5585477
Accumulated depreciation and ZIMERHE
impalrment (173877) (105,156  (8212)  (22,141) (783) - - (910,169
Net book amount FRFE 11728% 3219810 19851 27980 554 234017 - 4675308
Year ended 31 December 2007  HZ-FFtE+=R
=t-HILEE
Opening net book amount EEATE 117283 3219810 19851 27,980 554 234077 - 4675308
Addions HE 8252 19257 5084 9878 - 2115807 - 2158348
Transfers ot 99,514 155,486 1997 - - (256997) - -
Reclassfication EFipLs] 182670 (182,670) - - - - - -
Disposals (Note 39) EE (f339) P54 (2859 (426) (706) - - - 65%)
Depreciation (Note 31, 39 178 (a1 - 39) 16960 (474%) (4678 @140 (72 - - (438566)
Reversalof impaiment (Note 31, 39) (BRI (Hi3E31 - 39) 534 M2 21 18 - - - 1690
Closing net book amount EREAFE 1380095 20872824  218% 28125 482 2,093,177 - 6405538
At 31 December 2007 R-EEtE+ZA=1-A
Cost A 1630971 3907895 32584  A7139 1337 2093177 - 7723103
Accumulated depreciation SHMERNE
and impament (241,876) (1035,071) (10749  (29,014) (855) - - (1,317,569)
Net book amount BEFE 1380005 20872824  218% 28125 482 2,093,177 - 6405538
Year ended 31 December 2008 HZ-EZNE+=F
=t-HIEE
Opening net book amount EEEFE 1,380,005 2872824 21835 28,125 482 2,003,177 - 6405538
Addions HE 18337 22393 5059 35370 - 2,376,303 - 2452462
Transfers Ere 752816 3,035320 26,759 2 - (3,814917) - -
Sale and finance lease FERREHEDS
back (Note 26) (Fizk26) - (800,000) - - - - 800,000 -
Disposals (Note 39) 2 (H339) = (19) (14 (247) = = = (276)
Depreciation (Note 31, 39) e (W31 39) (95,381) (418,208  (5,885)  (13,850) (5) - (37,557) (570936)
Closing net book amount EREAFE 2050867 4712314 47754 49420 47 654563 762,443 8,286,788
At 31 December 2008 RZEENE+ZA=1-A
Cost A 2307124 6008373 64343 88078 1,337 654563 800,000 10,013,818
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTERGE
and impaiment (337,257) (1,206,059  (16,589)  (38,658) (910) - (87,55T) (1,727,030)
Net book amount FE5E 2,059,867 4712314 47,754 49420 427 654563 762,443 8,286,768
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group (continued)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated

income statements as follows:

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses

VIS8 China Oriental Group Company Limited Hv[F 5 75 48 #5545 BR 4 7]

HEMA
TTERE M

As at 31 December 2008, the net book value of buildings
and machinery pledged as security for the Group’s
current and non-current borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB 1,406 million (2007: RMB 1,396
million) (Note 25).

For the year ended 31 December 2008, borrowing
costs amounting to approximately RMB 63 million
were capitalised into the cost of property, plant and
equipment (2007: nil) at an average capitalisation rate of
6.59% approximately.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the directors of
the Company considered that certain production line
in relation to production of galvanised and cold rolled
sheets belonging to a subsidiary was carried at more
than its recoverable amount (Note 4.1).

The recoverable amount of a CGU (cash-generating unit)
is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the galvanised and cold rolled
sheets business with which the CGU operates.

7.

W MERRE =)

AREE ()

ERGFaBarxPHRNTER M
T

2008 2007
“EENEF  CFELF
539,515 428,958
31,421 9,608
570,936 438,566

RZEBEZENF+ZA=+—
H EAAEBRDRIERD
BRMBERNEFT KR RE
WEREFENRARKE14.06 18
T(ZZEZLF  ARK13.96
87T ) (fizE25) °

HE_TTZN\F+ZA=1+—
HIEFE  FERAHNARE
6,300 BT (=TT +LF : BB
BREGE R EL6.59% & AR
U=t/ E &G - 1:0)p % N

TTENER_TTLHF
ZA=+—H ARRES
R ERBR—HNEB AR
EEFEHRESERBENE
FIREEZDIRBBETRE
SEYIR (MisE4.1) -

unl _|_ %
| |

ReELBEMNATRE SRR
EREERNE ZEAEER
THRARSRERA - HKE

EEREENTFRMEE
HE-BARAFHNRERER
THm R IERRER - 2K
R eBBARRSELEM
B R EFFR SR LR E TS EY
REIFIIERER -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. ¥ -BERRE®

The Group (continued) AEE (&)

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations
are as follows:

Gross margin FEF=
Growth rate 1 5k
Discount rate HTIR R

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market
development. The weighted average growth rates used
are consistent with the forecasts included in industry
report. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

The impairment charge arose from the fact that the
production line has not been fully utilised during the
market development stage. The Group reassessed the
impairment and no additional provision for/reversal of
impairment was made for the year ended 31 December
2008.

Impairment of the Group’s property, plant and

equipment has been credited to the consolidated
income statement as follow:

Cost of sales (Note 31, 39)

SHERA (HFE31 ~ 39)

SRR AR EA T T
HEBER

2008 2007
“EENEF  CFELE
6.13% 6.38%
2.00% 2.00%
13.69% 14.42%

EEERBEERRALEYT
BLERRNEY EEREEHN
o AR MNEFHERE
BITRME A TRR — B -
FAREITRE SRR E
[RBRT EARRA D B A BE A A B
g

AREEREMSFHERBKR
WAEDHNA BWELREE
Ao REBSEHETRENT
b RBE-_TT/\F+-A
St HALEFEYERIMNE
1%,/ BEERE

WA AEBNYE - K
FERREORE SRR AKZE
BEmRER

2008 2007
—EENF —ETTEF
- (16,980)
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e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. YE BERRE®
The Company NAA]
Furniture Leasehold
and improve-
Buildings  fixtures  Vehicles ments Total
HEW=

BT WORB i % EH

At 1 January 2007 R-ZE+tF-A—H
Cost AR 12,764 679 1,513 1337 16,293
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (904) (286) (819) 783  (2,792)
Net book amount REFE 11,860 393 694 554 13,501
Year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE_—ZZ+F+_-A

=+—HILEFE
Opening net book amount FORESE 11,860 393 694 554 13,501
Additions nE - 39 - - 39
Depreciation e (708) (128) 273) 72 (1,181)
Closing net book amount FEREEFE 11,152 304 421 482 12,359
At 31 December 2007 R=BE+tF+=-A=1+—H
Cost 5% 12,764 718 1,513 1337 16,332
Accumulated depreciation 25E (1,612) (414)  (1,092) (855) (3979
Net book amount REFE 11,152 304 421 482 12,359
Year ended 31 December 2008 #HZE-EENE+=A

=+—-HILEE
Opening net book amount FORAFE 11,152 304 421 482 12,359
Additions wE - 138 690 = 828
Disposal RE (10,925) (11) (18) (427)  (11,381)
Depreciation e (227) (137) (350) (55) (769)
Closing net book amount FEREEFE - 294 743 - 1,037
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEENE+ZA=1—-H
Cost AR - 801 2,179 = 2,980
Accumulated depreciation Z2EHiE - (507) (1,436 - (1,943)
Net book amount REFE - 294 743 - 1,037

VR China Oriental Group Company Limited Hv[F 5 75 48 75 B4 BR 4 7]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRRAEHEI -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group

The investment properties are located in the PRC and their net

book value are analysed as follows:

At 1 January 2007
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2007
Opening net book amount
Depreciation (Note 31, 39)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2007
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2008
Opening net book amount
Depreciation (Note 31, 39)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2008
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

R=-ZEEt+tHF—H—H

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008

FIESBONARBTTAEN) BE-—TT/\F+_A=1t—HLFE

WEMEMRPE - REEEFED
MranR:

AN 21,985
Ritine (1,557)
R FE 20,428
BZ-_ZZtHF+-A=1+—HILEE

FYRREFE 20,428
e (BIsE31 ~ 39) (1,100)
FREEFE 19,328
R-EEtHE+=-A=+—H

DN 21,985
R E (2,657)
BREFE 19,328
BE-ZZ)\E+-A=+—HIEE

FYEREFE 19,328
W& (FF5E31 ~ 39) (928)
FAREEEFE 18,400
R-ZBENF+=-A=+—H

RS 21,985
RitinE (3,585)
BRMEFE 18,400

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the rental income
arising from investment properties amounted to RMB 1.78

million (2007: RMB 1.92 million) (Note 30).

As at 31 December 2008, the directors of the Company

assessed the fair value of the investment properties to be

approximately RMB 32.9 million based on prices in an active

market (2007: RMB 32.1 million).

BE_TT/N\F+_A=1T—HLF
B REVEMEENHEHERABA
REBATBET(—ZTZLF : AR%K

et —

192 &7T) (MiFE30) °

W-ZEZENEFE+-_A=+—0 &K
RAEEFREBERKERM SR E
BEBEREMENATFENARAR
BI20B (=T LF : ARK
3,210&7T) °
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e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BREEEBIN  FTESEIUARBTTAREN) BEZTT/\FTA=T—HLEFE

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 8. REWXw
The Company PiN/NG)|
The investment properties are located in the PRC and their net WEMEMAF R - REEEFED
book value are analysed as follows: T -
At 1 January 2007 R-ZEE+tHFE—H—H
Cost BN 21,985
Accumulated depreciation RitinE (1,557)
Net book amount BRE A 20,428
Year ended 31 December 2007 BE-ZEtE+t-A=1+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FHAREFE 20,428
Depreciation e (1,100)
Closing net book amount FRAREFE 19,328
At 31 December 2007 R-BELF+ZA=+—8
Cost B 21,985
Accumulated depreciation BEE (2,657)
Net book amount AR FE 19,328
Year ended 31 December 2008 BE-ZZN\E+=-A=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FHAREFE 19,328
Depreciation e (458)
Transfer to a subsidiary HE—HNB AR (18,870)
Closing net book amount FRAREFE -
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEENF+-A=1+—H
Cost PR AR =
Accumulated depreciation R E =
Net book amount BRAEVHE -

China Oriental Group Company Limited = [ 5 Jy 4 B % B A F A 7




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEINARBETTRERN)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 9.

At 1 January 2007
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2007
Opening net book amount
Deduction

Amortisation charge (Note 31, 39)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2007
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2008

Opening net book amount

Acquisition from a minority
shareholder (Note 10 (a) (i)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2008

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

R-2Tt5-A—-H
BZN
R

EEFE
BE-SRLFT=A=t-ALFE
EREHE

D

B (M1 - 30)
EREEHE
R=BBLEt=A=+-A

A

Rty

AREHE

BE-2F/\F+-A=1-HLHFE
FHREFE
[ D EBR U (YEE10(@) ()

FREEFE

R-ZB\F+=-A=1-H
BZN
R EHENRE

AREHE

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \FE+-_A=1t—HIEE

BILEE-T5KE

Iron ore
Goodwill mining licenses

HE ERRRTTE

7,667 -

7,667 -

7,667 -

7,667 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

JISYA China Oriental Group Company Limited H [535 J5 45 F % e A TR A

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwiill

Goodwill is allocated to the subsidiary acquired from a minority
shareholder during the year, which was identified as the group
of cash-generating unit (CGU Group).

The recoverable amount of a CGU Group is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below.

The key assumptions other than the financial budgets covering
a five-year period, use for value-in-use calculations are gross
margin, growth rate and discount rate of 6.40%, 2% and
13.69% respectively.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market
development. The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry report. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segments.

BEEE-—X£8 1w

AR E A

TR BEELARIBEREEZ
MELR  BERREEEBMLARNR
A ((ZARSEEEM]) -

SRR 4 7 A B A AT W) S BB T AR
BERBENETEET - REHE
TR A TR B A TR MM B TS TR
H o BB RS RESEL - BE
IR SN 7 TYIR T AT A £
548 R BT o

BRAFHNTHEEEIN  ARERE
BARENFEBRZAENE R
ERFTIRE - 55 /F6.40% - 2% &
13.69% °

EEEREEBERTREEMSEER
MIEMEEREEN X o ER M HE
PR R REHATTERS TR —
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10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - 10. MIBARIRERER —FKAH
COMPANY
(@ Investments in subsidiaries @ MBAREE
2008 2007
—BEN\E —ETLF
Unlisted investments, at cost JEETMIKE - KA 382,121 382,121
The particulars of subsidiaries at 31 December 2008 and 2007 R-BZENFR_ZTLF+ A
are as follows: =+—BHBARMFIBNT :
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AEEELRER
£ IMRULERAS  iEEREA BAlt  BEORMERE EERE  TZEER
Gold Genesis Development British Virgin Islands Limited liabilty 100% US$ 1 US$50,000  Investment holding
Limited (‘Gold Genesis’) ("BWI") company (Directly held)
21 February 2008
Gold Genesis Development ~~ REABRES BREEAT 100% 1% 5000057 REER
Limited ([Gold Genesis |)  ([RB4RREE]) (E#HE)
ZER=ECACT-H
Good Lucky Enterprises BVI Limited liabilty 100% US$ 1 US§50,000  Investment holding
Limited (‘Good Lucky’) 21 February 2008 company (Directly held)
Good Lucky Enterprises RBARRES BREEAH 100% 11 50000%T  RARR
Limited! ([ Good Lucky ) “EE-E-f-1-H (E%EE)
First Glory Services BVI Limited liabity 100% Us$ 2 US§50,000  Investment holding
Limited (‘First Glory’) 16 October 2008 company (Directly held)
First Glory Services ABAARES BRERAA 100% e 50000 REER
Limited ([First Glory ) “TE=%1A+AA (E%5E)
Accordpower Investments BVI Limited liabilty 100% US$2 US§50,000  Investment holding
Limited (*Accordpower’) 30 November 2004 company (Directly held)
Accordpower Investments RE4RRRE G 100% YEIH 5000057 KEER
Limited ([ Accordpower])  ZFEME+—F=1H (E#HE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(FREEHEAN  MEEEIUARBTIREN) BE_ZZT)/\F+_A=t—HILFE
10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - 10. MIBARIRERER —AKAH (&)
COMPANY (continued)
@@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @ MWBRAREE @)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR

£ IMRULERAS  EERREN BAl  EERARARRA EERE  TEXH

Fullero Investments BV Limited liabilty 100% US§2 US§50,000  Investment holding
Limited (‘Fullhero”) 3 May 2005 company (Directly held)

Fulhero Investments EBkERES EREFAA 100% VET 50000%FT  REAER
Limited ([Fulhero ) “E2RFRACH (BEHA)

Hebei Jinxi Iron and PRC Joint stock 97.6%  RMB 228,635,573 RMB 228,635,578  Manufacture and
Steel Company Limited 24 December 1999 company with (Indlrectly held) sales of iron and
(*Jinxi Limited’) limited liabity steel products

MERRRERNERAD  HE RARAEAT 97.6% NG ARE  EERHEREER
(Nzm#g) “E (BiA) 2863579 2286355737

tZA=THA

Foshan Jin Xi Jin Lan PRC Limited liabilty 81.5% US§ 55,152,400  US$55,152,400  Manufacture and
Cold Rolled Sheet 26 December 2003 company (Indlrectly helo) sales of steel products
Company Limited
(*Jinxi Jinlan’) ()

BlzmeRAR hE RREEAR 815%  55152400%T 55150407 4ERBEREER
ARAT -83= (FEHE)

(NEEeR 0 TZAZ17H

Origntal Fullhero Leasing PRC Limited liability 100% 1S 65,000,000  US$ 65,000,000  Leasing and financial leasing
Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Leasing’) 23 September 2005 company (Indlrectly helo)

RAREHERRAR hE RREAEAR 100%  65000000%% 65000000%w HERRPARE
(IRYIRE]) “ETREAACT=R (FEHE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - 10. MIBARIRERER —AKAH (&)
COMPANY (continued)
(@  Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @ MWBREE @)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR
£ IMRILERAE  EERREN BAl  EERARHERA EERE  TERH
Hebei Jinxi Section Steel PRC Limited liabilty 80%  RMB350,000,000 RMB 350,000,000  Manufacture and
Company Limited 30 May 2008 company (Indlrectly held) sales of steel products
(Jinxi Section Steel’) (i)
ML ERRRER A H BREEAH 80% ARE ARE  EERAEEEER
([ AR ) (i) “TE\ERA=TA (FE%E) 3500000007 350,000,0007
Tangshan Jinxi Mining PRC Limited liabilty 51% RMB 2,000,000  RMB2,000,000  Management service
Company Limited 20 December 2004 company (Indirectly helo) for mining rights
(‘Jinxi Mining”) (i)
BILEERXERAA Gl BREEAH 51% ARE ARE  ERAEE
(it £ 3011 “EEMET-A-TA (REHA) 20000007 2,000,007
Jinxi Hong Kong Trading Hong Kong Limited liabilty 100% HKS 1 HK$ 10,000 Import and export of goods
Company Limited 27 Qctober 2008 company (Directly held)
(‘HK Trading’)
REARELOERAA B BREFAT 100% 1T 100004 EHAK
=) “TENE (BR#A)
+A-t++R
Suifenhe Cty Jinyin Trading PRC Limited liabity 100% RMB 10,000,000 RMB 10,000,000  Import and export of
Co,, Ltd. (\Jinyin Trading’) 24 September 2008 company (Indirectly held) goods and technology
BANTREESRRAD 4 BREFAT 100% N ARE  ERREWRES
((25E5]) “ZT)\f (REHA) 10,0000007 100000007
AA=tmA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - 10. MIBARIRERER —AKAH (&)
COMPANY (continued)
(@)  Investments in subsidiaries (continued) @ MWBRAREE @)
Percentage of
equity interest Issued
Place and date attributable and fully Authorised
Name of incorporation Legal status to the Group paid capital capital  Principal activities
AREELRR
£ IMRULERAS  EERREN BAl  EERARARRA EERE  TEXH
Qianxi Gounty Jinxi Yunda PRC Limited liability 100% RMB 500,000  RMB500,000  Transportation service
Transportation Co., Ltd. 4 September 2008 company (Indlrectly held) for goods
(Yunda Transportation’)
BREEREREE hE EREAAT 100% AR® ARE  ERENRE
BRAR(EEEs]) ZEE)\E (A 500,000 7C 500,000
NARA
Ping Quan County Jinyin PRC Limited liabilty 60% RMB 2,000,000  RMB2,000,000  Manufacture and
Charging Co,, Ltd. 8 July 2008 company (Indlrectly held) sales of charging products
(*Jinyin Charging’)
TREZRER el BREALA 60% ARE ARE  HERBERHER
BRAR ([EH ) EE)E (BEHA) 20000007 2,000,000
tANA
Tangshan Fengrun PRC Limited liability 1% RMB 50,000,000 RMB 50,000,000  Manufacture and
Qu Zhengdalron 19 December 2008 company (Indlrectly held) sales of steel products

and Steel Co., Ltd.
(‘Zhengda Iron and Steel’) (i)

BLmEEREEES hE BREADA 1% PN AR
BRAR(EEEE)Y  ZEENE (FikRE) 5000000070 50,0000007 AEREEEHER
t-At+hA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B EBRANARE T TREN)

(BRRAEHEI -

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@ Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

M

On 18 February 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into
an agreement with Foshan Jin Lan Aluminum
Company Limited (“Foshan Jin Lan”) (the minority
shareholder of Jinxi Jinlan) and Accordpower to
acquire 21.50% and 13.21% equity interests of
Jinxi Jinlan held by these two parties respectively
with cash consideration of US$ 4.69 million
(approximately RMB 33.31 million equivalent) and
US$ 2.88 million (approximately RMB 20.75 million
equivalent).

On 20 February 2008, Accordpower, Jinxi Limited
and Foshan Jin Lan entered into a capital injection
agreement to increase the paid-in capital of Jinxi
Jinlan by US$ 25.35 million.

On 29 April 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into
an agreement with Accordpower to acquire
16.29% equity interests of Jinxi Jinlan held by
Accordpower with cash consideration of US$
8.98 million (approximately RMB 62.86 million
equivalent).

The share purchase agreements and capital
injection agreement were effective upon approved
by the relevant state government authorities and
thereafter, Jinxi Limited, Accordpower, Foshan Jin
Lan’s share holding in Jinxi Jinlan was 51%, 30.5%
and 18.5% respectively.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \FE+-_A=1t—HIEE

10. MBERARARERER-ALQT @

@ MWBREE @)

U)

RZZEZNFZHTN
H - ErEHE e L e
AR AR(#HLE
Bl CEESEN L ER
) B Accordpowers] 3 17
# - NRBREERES
RILAIE & R (B 469 EETT
(FRERHARES,3318
7)) K 288 &%t (FHER
HAREE 20758 7T) Wik
B LM 2RI RE
785 3 21.50% & 13.21%
P&t o

R-ZEZENF-_AZ-+
H  Accordpower » 7
H R L S RIR] LI E
i EEASHERE
AN HN2,535 BETT

R=ZZZ/\NF M A
Z+ N8 - JE e
Accordpower 5T 155
IR RE8I8EET(AE
ERHAR6,286 ET)
W 8% iy Accordpower £
B % 78 @ 5 16.29% H) iR
E o

PR i 8 o 1 i B 5 Hp 5
16 A B R AT R B
HERER - Ih1% - 2P
# - Accordpower 1L
eHORFEEASH
51% ~ 30.5% % 18.5% &
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

10.

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

(i)

IS} China Oriental Group Company Limited H [55 J5 45 F ¥ e A FR A

Jinxi Section Steel was incorporated on 30 May
2008 by Jinxi Limited and Qianxi County Hui Yin
Trading Company Limited (“Hui Yin”). The paid-
in capital of Jinxi Section Steel is RMB 350 million
and Jinxi Limited held 80% equity interests.

On 5 June 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into
a cooperation agreement (the “Cooperation
Agreement”) with Mr. Shen Xiaoling, the director
of the Company. Pursuant to the Cooperation
Agreement, from the date of the Cooperation
Agreement to 31 December 2010 (the “Grant
Period”), Jinxi Limited conveyed to Jinxi Mining,
the management and operating rights to use the
iron mine assets which comprise mining licenses
of 18 iron mines, leasing interests of Gao Jia Dian
Mine and associated mines and equity interests
of Tangshan Fei Cheng Kuang Ye Limited, Qianxi
County Xin Ye Machinery Casting Limited, Qianxi
County Hong Yuan Trading Limited, Qianxi County
Fu Cheng Trading Limited and Qianxi County Xin
Cheng Trading Limited.

In addition, Jinxi Limited transferred 49% equity
interests of Jinxi Mining to Mr. Shen and conveyed
to Mr. Shen the voting rights on the financial and
operating policies of Jinxi Mining during the Grant
Period. Mr. Shen is exclusively entitled to the profit
and net assets accumulated by Jinxi Mining during
the Grant Period. As a return, Mr. Shen paid a
total cash consideration of RMB 80 million and
a deposit of RMB 10 million refundable after 31
December 2010.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
MESBEANARBTIREN) #HE_ZTN\GT_A=1T—HLFE

10. MBRARARERER-ARDQT @

(@)

WERRIEE ()

(i)

(i)

2 7R A 8 F 3 7 S 6 B0
AREFETEFRAA
(DESR D RZ=ZFENEFH
A=+ Bz - 2
AN BERERBARKE
35f&IL EAEMERE
H 80% f&#E o

R-ZFZENFAARA -
ERMEEARRESL
BRI ELERI LA EhE
([BEHZELD - RIEAE
ek BinEAHEE—
T—TF+-A=+—H
(T M) - 2R
HHBEELSEERE
By RmEE - 2%t
AR RBERT A RE =
RIEHERE R ERLME
ERNREILRKBEERS
IRAR] - BPSRIT A
BEARRR  BAERL
EEHERARF - BAEK
EXREZARARMEN
FEXESHARARK
1o

1 NRID==Tvi3 = 2= ie] -
K 49% W T SRR Tk 5E
o WERTILEERET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B EBRANARE T TREN)

(BRRAEHEI -

10. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY (continued)

(@)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

(iv)

The company accounted for the above
arrangement as an operating lease. Therefore,
the RMB 80 million consideration is recorded as
deferred revenue and recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the Grant Period. Jinxi
Mining’s accounts will not be included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group
during the Grant Period.

Zhengda Iron and Steel was incorporated on 19
December 2008 by Jinxi Limited and two third-
party individuals. The paid-in capital of Zhengda
Iron and Steel was RMB 50 million. Jinxi Limited
held 71% equity interests.

Loans to subsidiaries

Loans to subsidiaries forms a part of the Company’s net

investment in foreign subsidiaries.

The loans to Jinxi Limited amounting to approximately

US$ 106.7 million (RMB 729.3 million equivalent) are
unsecured, interest-free and with a repayment term of 20

years. The directors have resolved that these loans will

not be settled upon maturity and regarded these loans

as part of the Company’s net investment in Jinxi Limited.

Other loans to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \FE+-_A=1t—HIEE

10. MBERARARERER-ALQT @

(@)

BRI E ()

EA/NGI) Sl b i 271N <
SHE - Fit - REAR
# 8,000 & 7T 7 73 iR AT IR
AILRE T BB A A E £
ETRERRBWN o EATREE
MERE AR T HEAKS
SRINAREE S E WS
HERA -

(v)  IE3 S P =2 v S 6 K
BE=AALTR_ZTZEN
F+-At+NABEMK
M o IEZEHE N EWE AR
AR 50008 7T © =F
70 8 85 7 A H 71%H)

ﬁo

MEARER

MEBRRERBERARRRE
SN A R E SRR — B D

HEAHEHEEFRL A 1.067 &
ET (IHERARE7.293 18T
BEEE - 28 - BFHEA20
F-REFHGE ZZENE
BIEDHEEE - MBIEAXR
AR TR AT E IR B F R
B—&5 o

BB ARMEMERG RE
B 2B RERETEERD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
(FREEHEAN  MEEEIUARBTIREN) BE_ZZT)/\F+_A=t—HILFE
11. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP 11. BHEQARRE-ZXKH

2008 2007
—BEN\F _TTLF

At 1 January n—A—H 8,122 7,897
Share of profit (Note 39) FEfRim A (F5E39) 1,998 225
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 10,120 8,122
The information of the unlisted associated company is as JEEMERERRIMERAT !
follows:
Percentage of
Place and equity interest
date of attributable
Name incorporation  to the Group Assets Liabilities Revenues Net profit
dEMRIBHE  AKEES
A% B BRADL BE af g A
Qianxi County PRC 35% 84,025 55,475 85,084 5,709
Zhongxing Iron 21 May 2002 (indlirectly held)
Mine Co., Ltd.

(“Zhongxing Iron Mine”)

BROG EEE i 35% 84,025 55,475 85,084 5,709
BRAR “TE-F (F&HE)
([ HEEE]) AA=+—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. £€RT A (RER)
The Group RE
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through Available-
receivables  profit or loss for-sale Total
BOYE
ERR ERBR AHHE
RS TRINEE BREE st
Assets as per consolidated SREEEER
balance sheet FimEE
31 December 2008 —EE\$+-fA=1+-H
Loan receivable (Note 14) FEWET (IzE14) 130,000 - - 130,000
Available-for-sale g EREEE (MiE15)
financial assets (Note 15) - - 188,100 188,100
Trade receivables (Note 17) R E S8R (HiE17) 1,733,991 - - 1,733,991
Deposits and other e REEKER (FixE19)
receivables (Note 19) 497,116 - - 497,116
Financial assets at fair value BATEERERTR
through profit or loss (Note 18) mEt AR (Fiz18) - 140 - 140
Amounts due from related FEN A 7 508 (Fit=E 42())
parties (Note 42(c)) 14,620 - - 14,620
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) X MR T4 (13 20) 361,698 - = 361,698
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) B4 RELZEH (I 20) 728,826 - - 728,826
Total @t 3,466,251 140 188,100 3,654,491
31 December 2007 ZRRHETA=t-H
Trade receivables (Note 17) FEWE S (M 17) 488,825 = = 488,825
Deposits and other receivables e REMEUEER (i 19)
(Note 19) 47,013 - - 47,013
Financial assets at fair value BATERBBRLR
through profit or loss (Note 18) mETAE (F318) - 146 - 146
Amounts due from related FE M RRRE 7y 7 0E (FfRE 42(c))
parties (Note 42(c)) 11,055 - - 11,055
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) SR HIRITE (FiFE20) 171,690 - - 171,690
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) B4 RIS ZEY (K 20) 689,591 = = 689,591
Total st 1,408,174 146 - 1,408,320
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. @I A (RER) @
(continued)
The Group (continued) REE (%)
Financial
liabilities

measured at
amortised cost

REBHAATEZ
BEas
Liabilities as per consolidated HEEEEER
balance sheet 7N =R
31 December 2008 —EENF+-_A=+—H
Trade payables (Note 23) FES B S8R5k (FIRE23) 2,219,395
Other payables (Note 24) E Ao AR (i 5E24) 678,399
Borrowings (Note 25) ek (P 25) 2,186,460
Other long-term payables (Note 26) E R HAE S R (3£ 26) 867,822
Amounts due to related
parties (Note 42(c)) FE A RA R 5 50E (B ek 42(c) 272,068
Total et 6,224,144
31 December 2007 —EE+F+-_A=+—H
Trade payables (Note 23) FERSE SRR (BsE23) 715,535
Other payables (Note 24) E Rk (FIRE24) 474,743
Borrowings (Note 25) fak (M45E25) 1,225,000
Amounts due to related
parties (Note 42(c)) JE 1~ B 75 5k 38 (BdRE 42(c)) 64,304
Total “Et 2,479,582
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

12. €@ I E (RER) =)

(continued)
The Company ¥iIN/NC]|
Assets
at fair value
Loans and through
receivables profit or loss Total
BOYE
ERR FRBER
ERER RENEE st
Assets as per company AREERER
balance sheet Fn&E
31 December 2008 ZEZ\$+ZA=1T—H
Deposits and other receivables e REMEKER (FiE19)
(Note 19) 1,165 - 1,165
Financial assets at fair value BATEERERTR
through profit or loss (Note 18) mEt A E (Fiz18) - 140 140
Amounts due from related parties FEM A R 6,513 = 6,513
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) & RIS ZEM (FfizE20) 62,238 - 62,238
Total o=t 69,916 140 70,056
31 December 2007 “ERLEt-A=t-H
Deposits and other receivables e REMERER (i 19)
(Note 19) 1,03 - 1,293
Financial assets at fair value BATERBBRLR
through profit or loss (Note 18) MBI A E (F318) - 146 146
Amounts due from related parties FEM AR 3R 10,883 = 10,883
Restricted bank balances (Note 20) SRR BRI (3£ 20) 47,305 - 47,305
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) & RIS ZEM (FfizE20) 95,723 - 95,723
Total o=t 155,204 146 155,350
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

For the year ended 31 December 2008

FIEERENARBT TAEN) BE-TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

12. €@ I E (RER) =)

(continued)
The Company (continued) ZiN/NCINE )
Financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
Bi7g: 5] D%
STEZHMBERE
Liabilities as per company AREEEBR
balance sheet =t
31 December 2008 —EENF+_A=+—H
Trade payables BB SRR 4,295
Borrowings (Note 25) & (MiEE25) 160,160
Total et 164,455
31 December 2007 —EE+FE+-_A=+—H
Trade payables FERTE SR 5,269
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~} B G 5 3R IE 84
Total 45T 5,353
13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 13. MIBEENEFEERR

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due
nor impaired can be assessed by types of the financial assets
and by reference to historical information about counterparty
default rates. The group categorise its trade receivables into
the following:

China Oriental Group Company Limited = [ 5 Jy 4 B % B A F A 7

WA IR B RENS B EENE
SRR AREMEEERR - X2E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

o Group 1 — Bank acceptance notes

o Group 2 — Trade receivables due from customers with no
defaults in the past

o Group 3 — Trade receivables due from customers with
some defaults in the past

Trade receivables

Group 1 F—%g
Group 2 <Nt |
Group 3 F=4%7

Credit quality of “Loan receivable”, “Deposit and other
receivable” and “Amounts due from related parties” of the
Group is disclosed in Note 14, 19 and 42 (c) respectively.

The Group categorise its cash in banks into the following:

° Group 1 — Major International bank (the Development
Bank of Singapore Limited, the Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, Hangseng Bank, Standard
Chartered Bank and Goldman Sachs)

o Group 2 — Top 4 banks in mainland PRC (China
Construction Bank, Bank of China, Agricultural Bank of

China and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China)

o Group 3 — Other large local banks in mainland PRC

13. BIREENEENRR @)

s FR-RITANEER

s FR-BUBEEERIE
NEFEE 5 RN

s F-B-RBUBEHIBERXR

EENEFEHE SN
FEUE 5 BRTK
2008 2007
—EENF —ETTEF
1,704,094 371,447
29,897 117,378
1,733,991 488,825

REB [FERER]  [HERHAME
WERZ | & [ el A 08 | MiEE
AR BRI EE14 ~ 19K 42(0)HEE °

REBEREBFITRESBMOT ¢

s FB—HR-XEZEKRRTEM
i)S'Z RIBTERRD 7‘§§%L
Eﬂfﬁﬁ&m )

s FE_FE-TPBEAMIART (P
BlZRRRT - PRIRTT - FE
BERITRPETART)

e FoE-FEAMEMARE
HIRTT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BrR A HEHI

ESEEAUNARBTIAEMN) #HE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
ZET N\FTZA=T—HILFE

13. CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 13. UBEEMNFEMRR @)
The management considered the credit risks in respect of RS EaEEEFAS AT
cash and bank deposits with financial institution are relatively BIRITEABEAE HIRTT - WER
minimum as each counter party either bears a high credit rating [ER BTN € B#iENIE S RIRIT
or is state-owned bank and large local banks in mainland PRC. GEREERREGK - EEERE &
The management believes the state is able to support the BAGH  RFEBRNERENISZERE
state-owned banks and large local banks in mainland PRC in HRITRARE BN E HERTT ©
the event of a crisis.
Cash and bank and bank deposits IR & BIRTT R ERITIF K
Group Company
AEH ¥ /N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZZTTLF ZTEN\F ZTTLHF
Group 1 F—4 61,414 119,452 61,376 119,410
Group 2 88 660,319 597,537 71 1,235
Group 3 E=47 367,974 144,101 679 22,375
1,089,707 861,090 62,126 143,020
None of the financial assets that are fully performing has been BEEEEANYBEESSEELF
renegotiated in the last year. [EETER ©
14. LOAN RECEIVABLE-GROUP 14. EWER-—FKEEH

The loan was unsecured, bore interest at a rate of 10% per
annum and repayable within three years.

As at 31 December 2008, the fair value of the loan receivable
approximated RMB 146 million.

No provision is required for the year ended 31 December
2008 for the loan receivable. The counter party has no default
history.

JI{M China Oriental Group Company Limited H [85 J5 45 B % e A FR A

ZERRBMIER - LA 10 EAERIE
e AR FREE -
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15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B EBRONARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - GROUP

Unlisted equity interest JE s
The available-for-sale financial assets represent an investment
in a 51% equity interest in Qianxi County Jinjin Mine Co., Ltd.
(“Jinjin Mine”) of RMB 188.1 million (2007: nil). Assets of Jinjin
Mine mainly comprise mining rights of iron ore.

In December 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into certain
cooperation agreements (the “Cooperation Agreements”)
with a third-party shareholder. Pursuant to the Cooperation
Agreements, from the incorporation date 5 August 2008 of
Jinjin Mine to 31 December 2010 (the “Lease Period”), Jinxi
Limited conveyed to the third-party shareholder the voting
rights on the financial and operating policies of Jinjin Mine.

Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreements, the operation
of Jinjin Mine’s mining rights were leased to the third-party
shareholder who is exclusively entitled to the profit or loss
and net assets accumulated by Jinjin Mine during the Lease
Period, and preserve and increase the value of the assets of
Jinjin Mine at the end of Lease Period. The lease payments
are determined based on the local iron powder market price
and are to be adjusted quarterly. During the year ended 31
December 2008, lease payments of approximately RMB 14
million have been received by the Group and accounted for as
rental income (Note 30).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
cannot exercise any significant influence on Jinjin Mine during
the Lease Period and hence has classified the investment in
Jinjin Mine as available-for-sale investments for the year ended
31 December 2008.

This asset represents an investment in an unlisted company
in the PRC that offer the Group the opportunity for return
through operating lease income. As the investment does not
have a quoted market price in an active market, the range
of reasonable fair value estimate is so significant and the
probabilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be reliably measured.

15.

MR RaRH

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-_ZTT \FE+-_A=1+—HIEE

ARHEMBEE -2 KH

2008 2007
—2BN\E —TTtE
188,100 =

AEHENBEERENBAGEZSE
EERAR(ESMEZE]) 51% K
BEBARE1881BIL(ZTEZT £
F:T)  ZEBENBEFTERE
BREAERIBE

RZZZNF+ZR - RAMEESE
= RRFEISLE T & 1E ([ & 1F#
&) REBEAFEHRE  BRSBERT
MRZBEREN—_ZZN\FA\ARA)
BE_Z-—ZTF+-_A=+—HUHA
EHAED  FEMER TE=TBR
BRRE\mENME MG EERERNR

SIE o
REAFHRE  FLBENRBEELZ

BLAWHETE =R ZBER
HERRANBREZAEZSBRER TR
FRBEREEFE  TEAREEH
MR RIERICINECTEENEE
BE - ZFHENZKREEED
MISEREEWIREFEHITHAE - &
E-EEN\E+-_A=1+—HItHF
B AEBEKRNESREHARKE
1,400 87T + W ABRS{EFR EUWA (Kt
5£30) °

ARREERR  NEEALTEER
ERRHEEBETETAERY
& Ait - BE-_ZTT/N\F+_H
=+ RLEFEESRRSHmEMNIR
EDBRAIHEERE -

ZEBEERENTEFLETARNKE -
RAEERHESEBLEHERA
REER - HRZERERNEET S
WETISRE DT ESEENE
EEEER  MSRGEFHORIENE
BERABELE - MARTEER
RENFEBEASEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
(FREEEAN  MEEFEINARBTIREN) BE_ZT)/\F+_A=t—HILFE
16. INVENTORIES - GROUP 16. FE—45KEH

2008 2007
—BEN\F _FTLF

Raw materials and materials in-transit R RAT MR 1,170,972 1,468,598
Work-in-progress R m 223,072 287,613
Finished goods BURK fh 173,393 85,786
1,567,437 1,836,997
As at 31 December 2008, the net book value of inventories RZZBEZENF+_A=+—H BA
pledged as security for the Group’s notes payable and current REBENER KRB ER MR
borrowings amounted to RMB 390 million (Note 23 and 25). FEMNEREFEAARKEI0ET

(fizFE23 % 25) °

As at 31 December 2007, the net book value of inventories RZZZLF+A=+—H BEA
pledged as security for the Group’s notes payable amounted AEBEENZEEMERNFENRE
to RMB 57 million (Note 23). FEAARES 7008 7T (MizE23) °

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in ERER ARSI ASHEK A RITH
cost of sales and administrative expenses amounted to RMB BERNTFERADRIAARK173.44
17,344 million and RMB 9 million respectively (2007: RMB BITRAREIOBIL(ZZEZTLF -
10,337 million and RMB 5 million respectively) (Note 31). DRl AEANRE10337TR TR AR

i —

5008 7T) (MI7E31) °

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 17. EWE SRR —AEE
2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETLF
Accounts receivable FEUARFR 29,897 117,378
Notes receivable (a) FEUEETE (a) 1,704,094 371,447
1,733,991 488,825

JIYM China Oriental Group Company Limited H [53 J5 45 F % e A TR A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued)

(@ As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, notes receivable
were all bank acceptance notes, of which approximately:

(i) RMB 10 million was pledged as security for issuing
notes payable (2007: RMB 92 million) (Note 23).

(i)  RMB 241 million was pledged as security for the
Group’s borrowings (2007: nil) (Note 25).

As at 31 December 2007, RMB 66 million was pledged as
security for issuing letters of credit.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the carrying amount of the
Group’s trade receivables approximated their fair value.

The credit policy usually adopted by the Group for the sales of
products to customers is to deliver goods either upon receipt
in cash or upon receipt of bank acceptance notes with maturity
dates within six months.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables was as follows:

Within 3 months
4-6 months

3EAA
4Z=6{8A

As at 31 December 2008, accounts receivable pledged
by letter of credit issued by the third parties amounted to
approximately RMB 0.3 million (2007: RMB 90 million).

17. EWEZRR —AEE8 (#)

@ RZEEZNFR_ZTZTLF
+-A=+—8 RUEEH
BERITARGIESE  Hp4

() AR¥E1,0008TE 5
AEENEREMER(ZE
TEF: ARE%92005
7L) (MI3E23) °

iy ARE241EIEAELSE
EERmEH( 22T £
F: T)(fFFE25) o

RZBEE+E+_A=+—H ' AR
¥6,6008 TE AFEEAEMER

RZEBEENFR _EE+F+ A
=+—H AEERWKE ZERAAER
AETUNERAFE -

755 B — BRI R S EE B
PR A RIKEUE & SRS H
e/~ 18 A A PO R 1778 4 FE SRS 1
PR 5 -

RZEBEENFR _FEE+F+ A
=+—H BWEZSRERINERRDIT
R

2008 2007
“EENEF  CFELF
1,517,847 431,248
216,144 57,577
1,733,991 488,825

RZZBEENE+—A=+—8 " EK
BRROARBIEL(ZEZLF:
ARH#9,0008T) BEE=HHARNE
FAFEVEH IR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

17.

TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued)

As at 31 December 2008, trade receivables of RMB 30 million
(2007: RMB 27 million) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is
no recent history of default. The directors considered that trade

For the year ended 31 December 2008

17.

FEWE ZRR —AEE(2)

R-ZEZENE+-_A=+—8 " EK
BIRARAREI00ET(ZEE+
F: AR¥270087T) 2 A EBER
B ZERBSRZ RSB HEAR

EHEHNBYES EER A0S
BB = E A N 5 R
WE - ZEREWE B EROER ST
o

receivables that are less than three months past due are not
impaired. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables was

o

as follows:

2008 2007
—BEN\F _FTLF

Within 3 months 3EAR 29,618 26,855

REE W E 5 R REETIAT
SIEHRBEN -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

2008 2007
—BE\F —TTLF

RMB AR 1,733,712 398,302
uss$ EIH 279 90,523
1,733,991 488,825

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP AND COMPANY

18. RAVEZEBRESTRNUKE
E-FEEREQAF

2008
—BEN\F _TTLF

Liquid Reserve Fund - Euro, quoted mENfFEEES —BUT 135 141
BMHHRE

Liquid Reserve Fund - US$, quoted mEfFEEES T 5 5
ETISHE

140 146

The above financial assets were acquired principally for the

Pl HEEEEZRERPHE -

purpose of selling in the short term.

JWAIN China Oriental Group Company Limited H [55 J5 45 F % e A7 FR A ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

The Group
Prepayments for purchase of inventories BEEFEMENKIEA
Deposits and other receivables e R E b EUER K

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the carrying amount of the
Group’s deposits and other receivables approximated their fair
value.

As at 31 December 2008, other receivables of RMB 447 million
(2007: nil) were past due but not impaired. These related to a
number of independent counter parties for whom there is no
recent history of default. Other receivable of RMB 400 million
was pledged by certain property, plant and equipment and
was renegotiated of its payment schedule in January 2009
(Note 43). The ageing analysis of these deposits and other
receivables was as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAR

6-9 months 6= 91EA

The Company

Prepayments TR RUIR

Deposits and other receivables e R E fth EUBR 5K

19. FENKE - RERAMEBRR

2008 2007
—EENF CTTHF

234,454 400,143
497,116 47,013
731,570 447,156

RZEZENFR _TETLF+ A
=t+—8  NEEKE KEMEKER
R BREERE I ENTE -

RZZEZNFE+A=+—H  Hfh
EWERARKE447TRBT(ZEE L
F:F)CBHPERRE ZERE
% 23T W B RS B R 5
HTAR - HMERERARKEAE
TTERETYE  BERREER
! YR _ETNF-AEFHHE
REIR (BEE43) - % FiRE R EAD
FEYRR Z FREC AATIA T

2008 2007
—EENF CZTTHF

400,000 =
47,000 =

447,000 =

2008 2007
—EENF CTTHF

238 198
1,165 1,293
1,403 1,486
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE
20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 2. RERBAEEEBYWURZRHIET
BANK BALANCES EEER

The Group KEH

172

2008 2007
—BEN\F _FTLF

Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 728,826 689,591
Restricted bank balances PR HIERTT AR 361,698 171,690
1,090,524 861,281

As at 31 December 2008, the restricted bank balances were

composed of the following items:

(@)

Restricted bank balances amounting to approximately
RMB 127 million were pledged as security for issuing
notes payable of the Group (2007: RMB 33 million) (Note
23).

Restricted bank balances amounting to approximately
RMB 35 million and US$ 0.04 million (RMB 0.24 million
equivalent) were pledged as security for issuing letters of
credit (2007: RMB 92 million and US$ 6 million (RMB 47
million equivalent)).

Restricted bank balances amounting to approximately
RMB 200 million were pledged as security for current
borrowings of the Group (2007: nil) (Note 25).

China Oriental Group Company Limited H [ 5 Jy 4 B % B A FR A 7

RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H " XR
BRI TAEEABIE IR IR

(@)

BEARAEKREEEMNZEMR
FRZRHEBRTERDEAR
BA127T B (ZET+F : AR

S

#3,300 & 7T) (ffzE23) °

ERFAEEREMEBERNXTR
iR 17 45 81 K0 7 A R %5 3,500
BELR4BET(HERARE
2487) (ZTFLF: ARE

9,2008 7T & 6008 3= T (FEER
AR A4700&87T)) °

B AR R BB 97
ERHRTRBOARR 21ET
—ERLE (W) -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED
BANK BALANCES (continued)

The Group (continued)

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank balances are denominated in the following

currencies:

RMB AR

Us$ =TT

HKS$ BT

Euro BR T

The Company

Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY
Restricted bank balances TR HIRTTE S

As at 31 December 2007, restricted bank balances amounting
to approximately US$ 6 million (RMB 47 million equivalent)
were pledged as security for issuing letters of credit.

20.

HeERRESEEYURZREET
ek

REE #)

RBe LReFEMARZRHIRITHE
FREFREETIA TG BN

2008 2007
—EENF —ETTEF
1,023,455 707,698
61,748 132,784
2,572 20,790
2,749 9
1,090,524 861,281
ViN/NE]
2008 2007

it 2082 —TTAF

62,238 95,723
- 47,305
62,238 143,028

N-BEZLF+-A=+—H8 25
7 B 15 A M 1 8 = R B SR 1T 45 8%
#5600&3%TT (FHER AR 4,700

e —

&8JL) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED 20. RERFESEZEYURZRFILIT

BANK BALANCES (continued) #Eeke)
The Company (continued) RAR(E)
The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and RERBEEFEYARZREIRITAE
restricted bank balances are denominated in the following SREEREES A TS B BB
currencies:
2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
Us$ = 58,832 120,967
HK$ BIT 2,548 20,771
RVB AR 858 1,286
Euro & T = 4
62,238 143,028
21. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM - GROUP AND 21. BRARBE-AKERERQT
COMPANY
Amount
kit ]
Number of
shares Ordinary Share
(thousands) shares premium Total
R #A
(Th) EER RAPEE @t
At 1 January 2007 R-ZEEt&-A—H 2,905,000 309,340 2,151,035 2,460,375
Employee share option scheme: B EBEMETE :

—issuance of shares (Note 22(c) ~ —M&{n %77 (Hiis22(0)) 21,800 2,104 34,929 37,033
At 31 December 2007 R-EZtF+-A=1+-H 2,926,800 311,444 2,185,964 2,497,408
Employee share option scheme: (R BIEMRIES 2] :

—issuance of shares (Note 22(c) ~ — k{2 %77 (fii=22(c)) 2,400 225 3,731 3,956
At 31 December 2008 R-EZENF+-A=1+-H 2,929,200 311,669 2,189,695 2,501,364

iWZS China Oriental Group Company Limited Hv[F 5 75 48 75 Bt A5 BR 4 7]




21.

22,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRANARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM - GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the total number of
authorised ordinary shares is 5,000,000,000 shares with a par
value of HK$ 0.1 per share.

As at 31 December 2008, the number of issued and fully
paid ordinary shares is 2,929,200,000 shares (2007:
2,926,800,000 shares).

OTHER RESERVES-GROUP

21.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

BARGE - AEBRAAT @)

A

ENFR_FTLFF=
—B EAEETBRAHA
00,000 % & % H B 0.1 S TTHY

am X
[ ]

o + M

5,000,

Bedn o

RZEZENF+_HA=+—8"
ERTRBRTARNRMDEHAE
£2,929,200,000% ( = & & + 4 :
2,926,800,000 %) °

22, HithfEE —AEH

Merger Capital  Statutory
reserve surplus reserve Options Total
BiEE  EADR  LERB B E @t
(@) (b) ©)
Balance at 1 January 2007 R-EZ+F- - A4 (599) 19,144 949,006 16,745 984,296
Employee share options scheme: & B iR iE= 2] -
- Value of employee services —EBRBMER
(Note 32, 39) (Fi7E32 ~ 39) - - - 159,886 159,886
Balance at 31 December 2007 R=ZZ+tfF
T A=t AMEER (599) 19,144 949006 176,631 1,144,182
Profit appropriation pindllpaNi - - 781 - 781
Balance at 31 December 2008 R=ZEN\F
TZA=t+-HMER (599) 19,144 949,787 176,631 1,144,963
(@ Merger reserve @ BEOHFE

The merger reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the subsidiaries that had been acquired and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefore pursuant to the Reorganisation.

AEENAGHEBIED KB
BRrREOOEERREES
RARBBAEEMETHARRRK
EERIZHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(b)

Statutory reserve

(i)

(i)

JWAM China Oriental Group Company Limited H [55 J5 45 F ¥ e A7 FR A ]

Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the
Articles of the Association of certain subsidiaries
registered in the PRC, before distributing the net
profit of each year, these PRC subsidiaries are
required to set aside 10% of their statutory net
profit for the year after offsetting any prior year’s
losses as determined under the PRC accounting
regulations to the statutory surplus reserve fund.
When the balance of such reserve reaches 50%
of the share capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory surplus reserve fund can
be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to issue
bonus shares. However, such statutory surplus
reserve fund must be maintained at a minimum
of 25% of the entity’s share capital after such
issuance.

Discretionary reserves

The appropriation of discretionary reserve fund
is proposed by Board of the PRC subsidiaries,
and approved by the shareholder’s meeting. The
discretionary reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or increase share capital.

For the year ended 31 December 2008

22, HihfEE —AEEH»)

(b)

RTEREE

(i)

(i)

EE BRI

RIFFBEDER R A KB R
FE B S A1 6 B BB R BB
HAEER  BF2FE
HAT - ZEDEHRE AR
REBEHESEEARER
HEFNERE  ABHE
FREEFHNN10% E
EERBFEE  BEXR
wEEHRAH50% 5
I ERBEESERL
RERE o AERBRE
A RAEREEFR AR
BATALRR » AT - ROETE
BERFEECANEITR
MEBZRABRAN & D
25% °

ES A

EERENOETIHPE
MBARMNESSES -
WA RA S E L o
EERE BEEHEBE
FE R R B IR Ik
o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRANARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(b)  Statutory reserve (continued)

(iii)

Reserve Fund, Staff and Workers’ Bonus and
Welfare Fund and Enterprise Expansion Fund

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the
Articles of the Association of certain subsidiaries
registered in the PRC, appropriations from net
profit should be made to the Reserve Fund, the
Staff and Workers’ Bonus and Welfare Fund and
the Enterprise Expansion Fund, after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years, and
before profit distributions to the investors. The
percentages to be appropriated to the Reserve
Fund, the Staff and Workers’ Bonus and Welfare
Fund and the Enterprise Expansion Fund are
determined by the Board of Directors of the
PRC subsidiaries. The Staff and Workers’ Bonus
and Welfare Fund is available to fund payments
of special bonuses to staff and for collective
welfare benefits. Upon approval from the Board
of Directors of the PRC subsidiaries, the Reserve
Fund can be used to offset accumulated losses or
to increase capital; the Enterprise Expansion Fund
can be used to expand production or to increase
capital.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

22, HithfEE —AEEH @)

b) JEERE@E

(iii)

REES BIRBERE
NESURGEBRES

REBHBDER RN EIE

iz avaz ezl NGLy)
MEER  REREAESF

B2 REtBRE MR DIk
BNTREER  AQF
BHOREREES B
TREAENESREE
BRET - DEEREE
T BIRBLENES
REEFERESWBDLL
HPBENBARNESS
BEE - BT HRE MR NIE
EAMERX N TR TR
RITEAT MR ER BRI IE
HEE - FHEMBRA
ExgitE®R  REES
A A 35 R T B 1E g
MEAR : EEBRESH
RAREREERIENE
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(©)

Employee share option scheme

As approved by the Board and Shareholders’ meeting,
the share options were granted to the directors and
employees on 30 June 2006 and 26 October 2007
(“Date of Grant”), in an aggregate to 24,200,000 shares
and 89,700,000 shares respectively. The options are
exercisable at any time during the period no later than
ten years from the Date of Grant at the exercise price
of HK$ 1.76 and HK$ 5.24 per share respectively.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

For the year ended 31 December 2008
MESBANARBTIREN) #E_ZTN\GT_A=1T—HLFE

22, HihfEE —AEEH»)

(©

1 B et &l

KEEZRRBRRAGSH AR -
EEZERREREEN=-_ZEZERF
NAZTREERZ=ZZEZTLF+
AZ+ R B(EEBEH])E
BTHBRE 25 FkEH
24,200,000 % % 89,700,000 %
f& 7 o BERRFE ] X B B AR
FT N B 1 4 B A BE IR T LA
1 TEES R AEREKRG
1768 T 5.24787L - NEE

I 48 DAIR & B [0 Bl 4t BB BB A
HYRE S HEERE

Movements in the number of share options outstanding

RARTTER R RESRE REH

and their related weighted average exercise prices were BINEFETEENEIHT ¢
as follows:
2008 2007
—EEBNEF —ETAF
Average Average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price per options price per options
share in HK$ (thousands) share in HK$  (thousands)
BRRE BRI
FIITEE BREHE FHITHRE BRESHE
(3&x) (F13) (A7T) (F1)
At 1 January mn—H—H 5.15 92,100 1.76 24,200
Granted B - - 5.24 89,700
Exercised B171% 1.76 (2,400) 1.76 (21,800)
Cancelled 25 5.24 (89,700) - -
At 31 December WHR+=-—A=+—H - - 5.15 92,100

jWAS China Oriental Group Company Limited H [55 J5 45 F % e A7 FR A




22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(©)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRANARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

Employee share option scheme (continued) (@)

Options exercised for the year ended 31 December 2008
resulted in 2,400,000 shares (2007: 21,800,000 shares)
being issued at HK$ 1.76 each (2007: HK$ 1.76 each).
The related weighted average share price at the time of
exercise was HK$ 6.42 per share (2007: HK$ 4.75 per
share).

Share options outstanding at 31 December 2008 and
2007 have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

Expiry date Exercise price
i B H TEE
HK$ per share

BT/ R

30 June 2016 —T-RFXA=1+H 1.76
26 October 2017 —t+F+A=+<H 5.24

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

22, HithfEE —AEEH @)

B BRI & (@)

BHEZZZ ) N\F+=ZA=1+—
HIEFETEREBRES ST
2,400,000 & (ZZEZ L4 -
21,800,000/%) + BREITZ(E
BE1T6BT(ZEELF &
f&1.76 87T) o 1T R RIAEEE AN
EFHRERER6.428T (=
TELF  GR4T58BTT) ©

R-FENFR-_FTZLF
T-A=+—HAERTENE
PR fEm B A R TR BT ¢

Number of options
(thousands)
BREHE (T14)
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF

- 2,400
- 89,700

- 92,100
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(=B

22. OTHER RESERVES - GROUP (continued)

(©)

JE{IM China Oriental Group Company Limited H [535 J5 45 F % e A FR A

Employee share option scheme (continued)

The fair value of options granted for the year ended
31 December 2007, determined by using the
Binomial valuation model, was HK$ 165.900 million
(approximately RMB 159.886 million). The significant
inputs into the model were share price of HK$5.24, at
the grant date, exercise price shown above, volatility of
45.62%, expected dividends paid out rate of 3.11% and
annual risk-free interest rate of 3.884%. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily
share prices of the Company and other comparable
companies over the last five years. See Note 32 for the
total expense recognised in the income statement for
share options granted to the directors and employees.

On 14 January 2008, Mittal Steel Holdings AG (“Mittal
AG”) made an unconditional mandatory cash offer to
acquire all the disinterested shares. A comparable offer
was also made and extended to option holders for the
cancellation of all share options which were outstanding.
Following the closing of the offer, all outstanding share
options at the commencement for the offer were
accepted and cancelled.

On 24 February 2009, 21.2 million share options were
granted to directors and employees with an exercise
price of HK$ 1.39 per share (Note 43).

For the year ended 31 December 2008
MESBANARBTIREN) #E_ZTN\GT_A=1T—HLFE

22, HihfEE —AEEH»)

(©

& B BTl ()

HAZEAGEEEXREED
BEZZTZE+F+A=+—
HIEFEERHBERENAT
BERI1659EBT(H AR
1.59886187T ) © #a A K HY
FEZ2HANEEHBHNKRE
5247 « LT (R E - RIE
45.62% * TBEHREFE311% Kk
FEERKFIEI.884% © BB
TEFHAR (B Bl ) A IR 2 {7 &= Frat
BHRE - DIRBAAGRE
AL RAFTRBERAFNS
HIRENSRTEH T METEM
- -AHREERESERNE
BENIERRERNERS -
B2 M2 ©

RZZEZNF—A+IA -
Mittal Steel Holdings AG ([ Mittal
AG) 12 tH — T8 £ (& 14 38 sl 14
REWBEL - LKER I E
FMEBERZEND - BINERE
BiERERE A ARL —HES
WUREE E 4 - LARESEFTA ik
TR AR - WHZAE I
% BT RUE B4 R 18 B A
RITEREREDEEM R
8 o

RZZFEZNF-_A=+MEA -
21208 IBRIECIRITRES
BE1.39B TR TESERIES (Ft
F£43) ©




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP

Accounts payable
Notes payable (a)

(@  Asat 31 December 2008, the notes payable represented
bank acceptance notes, RMB 10 million (2007: RMB
91 million) of which were secured by certain notes
receivable (Note 17), and RMB 203 million (2007: nil) of
which were secured by certain restricted bank balances
(Note 20), and RMB 70 million (2007: RMB 79 million)
of which were secured by certain inventories (Noted 16)

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

FEfTERR
FENRIE (a)

and certain restricted bank balances (Note 20).

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the ageing analysis of the

trade payables was as follows:

Within 3 months
4-6 months

7-9 months
10-12 months
Above 1 year

3EAR
4Z=6{8A
72 9@ A
1021218 A
16

23. ENEZRX-FEEH

2008 2007
—EENF CTTHF

1,936,407 545,335
282,988 170,200
2,219,395 715,535
@ RZFETNF+ZA=+—

H BEEEARITHELE
= HAGENE TREREE
(7)) RERABARYE
1,008 T (ZTZ+F : AR
#9,1008 7t ) &Y R 17 & K [E
= UETXZREIRITAER (KT
$20) RER BHARMK2.03
BT(ZZZLF : T)WRIT
EHEZE  ARAETES (KM
FE16) s TR AIRITAE
(M 5E20) BIEH ABBARE
7008BL(Z2EEF: AR

i —

#7 9008 T ) SR T A L [EE

R-BENFR_FFLF+-A

=+—H  BENESRERINERRDIT
R

2008 2007
—EEN\F —EBELF
1,596,939 655,308
586,530 49,100
22,951 3,690
2,473 2,226
10,502 5,211
2,219,395 715,535

Annual Report 2008 =FF /)\F4E#H

181



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

23. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP (continued) 23. ENEZERR—T£EH @)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are AEBEENESRROREETAT
denominated in the following currencies: 5| EHE ARG
2008 2007

—EEN\F —TTAF

RMB ARE 2,153,086 709,061
Us$ £ 66,309 6,474
2,219,395 715,535
24. ACCRUALS, ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS AND 24. FEREA - AREFRERAEMR
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES-GROUP BEaE-AKEH
2008 2007
—EENF —EFTLEF
Accruals JEiIRE 73,873 19,996
Advances from customers TR R FIE 892,796 661,116
Value-added tax payable JERTIE{ERR 206,307 42,883
Other taxes payables E AR IE 15,032 9,068
Other payables (a) HAb BRI (@) 846,737 638,275
2,034,745 1,371,328
(@) The breakdown of other payables as at 31 December @ RZEEZENFR_ZFTFTLF
2008 and 2007 were as follows: +—A=+—HHEMEME
RO
2008 2007

Pension payables and FEIIRIRS R EAFESTS

other social welfare payables R 79,661 91,116
Payables for purchase of BEWMZE - BEX

property, plant and equipment BRI 541,470 349,984
Customer deposits BRE%® 86,710 102,310
Employee deposits BTHs 30,219 22,449
Salary payables ERNFHE 30,875 21,323
Other borrowings of H b g BAfE 5K

overdue (Note 25 (i) (FF5E 25 (i) 20,000 =
Others Hth 57,802 51,093

846,737 638,275

JESPA China Oriental Group Company Limited H [55 J5 45 F ¥ e A R A
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

25. BORROWINGS

25. fE®

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

The Group RE
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
Non-current IERED
Bank borrowings, secured (i) RITIEFR — E () 384,230 640,000
Other borrowings, unsecured (i) ELfth & 5% — AR (i) 105,000 125,000
489,230 765,000
Current B
Bank borrowings — RITER—
Secured () B 4548 () 1,190,930 340,000
Unsecured Sl 486,300 100,000
1,677,230 440,000
Other borrowings, unsecured (i) EL fth f& 5% — £ (i) 20,000 20,000
1,697,230 460,000
Total borrowings HBIER 2,186,460 1,225,000

As at 31 December 2008, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 687 million, out of total secured
borrowings amounting to RMB 1,575 million, were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note
7) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2008, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 130 million, out of total secured
borrowings amounting to RMB 1,575 million, were
secured by certain leasehold land and land use rights
(Note 6) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2008, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 160 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 1,575 million, were secured by
certain restricted bank balances (Note 20) of the Group.

RZZEENF+ZA="+—
H BEEREFREELREAR
15758 TH - RBARYK
6.87 B TH B M EFRIAKRE
Era T - BE R (b
FE7) A o

RZTETZNFF+ZA=+—
H BEEBEREELAEAR
BABT5RTTH - RBARK
1.3 BTN EIRERUARNEER
METHE T &+ b A
(Mi5E6) AR

R=ZBBNF+-A=+—
H BEEBERBRBEREAR
WAL T5BTTH  BREAR
1.60 B ) E HE IR B BUARSE
ErE TRRAIRITER (W
20) R -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(Be= B

For the year ended 31 December 2008
FIESBHINARETLREN) BEZSTNFT_A=T—HILFE

25. BORROWINGS (continued) 25.

ENE )

The Group (continued) AREE ()

JEZW China Oriental Group Company Limited Hv[F 5 75 48 #5545 BR 4 7]

As at 31 December 2008, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 20 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 1,575 million, were secured by
certain inventories (Note 16) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2008, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 200 million, out of the total secured
borrowing, of RMB 1,575 million, were secured by
certain inventories (Note 16) and certain restricted bank
balances (Note 20) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2008, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 300 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 1,575 million, were secured by
certain inventories (Note 16) and certain notes receivable
(Note 17) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2008, except for the secured
borrowings described above, current secured
borrowings amounting to RMB 78 million were secured
by certain property, plant and equipment (Note 7),
certain leasehold land and land use rights (Note 6)
and guaranteed by Foshan Jin Lan pursuant to the
agreement achieved on 12 September 2008. In
accordance with the guarantee contract, Foshan Jin Lan
granted a guarantee in favour of Jinxi Jinlan for bank
borrowing facilities amounting to RMB 150 million.

RZZETZNF+ZA=+—
H BEEBEFREEAEAR
BABT5BTTH - RBARK
2,000 BT E EPEFIALRE
BETEE(MiE16) BIKM

RZZEENGF+ZRA=+—
H BEEBEFREELAEAR
157518 LH - BREARY?2
BTHEEREBERUASEES
FHRE(ME16) kE T 2R
R4S (FIsE20) AEHA -

RZZEENF+_RA=+—
H BEEREFREBEARE
15.75fBTH + RBARBIE
THEEREBERUAEES T
HFE(MsE16) KA TRIKER
(M5E17) BIEA -

R-BENFT+_A=1—
B BLEXMEENSEAE
Fo - EEARBERSEA
R 7,800 B TTAETYE - K
Fh&m (7)) s THEL
b e £ b8 A (FE a2 6) iR
B YhFLEERER_-F
ZENFRATZBERZBZE
HEAER  REERAL -
WEMABBAREASETH
RITERBEERRASMEA
PEfR -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B EBRONARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

25. BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2007, secured borrowings
amounting to RMB 830 million, out of the total secured
borrowings of RMB 980 million, were secured by certain
property, plant and equipment (Note 7) of the Group.

As at 31 December 2007, except for the secured
borrowings described above, current secured
borrowings amounting to RMB 150 million were secured
by certain property, plant and equipment (Note 7),
certain leasehold land and land use rights (Note 6)
and guaranteed by the Company and Foshan Jin Lan
collectively pursuant to the agreement achieved in
January 2006. In accordance with the agreement, the
Company and Foshan Jin Lan granted a guarantee
in favour of Jinxi Jinlan for bank borrowing facilities
amounting to RMB 150 million. The Company and
Foshan Jin Lan shall bear 60% and 40% of the
guarantee obligation respectively.

Other unsecured borrowing represented a borrowing
from the local county government amounting to RMB
145 million which will be repaid from 1 January 2008
onwards at an amount of RMB 20 million per annum.
Interest is charged at the RMB bank deposit rate for
1 year fixed deposit. As at 31 December 2008, other
borrowings of RMB 20 million were past due and
reclassified to other payables (Note 24).

mE MR RR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTZT \F+_A=1+—HILEE

25. &R (#)

REBE ()

(i)

W-FELFT-A=+—
B BT R AR
9.80fETLH - REMAKRKS.30
LS R AR R B
To¥ - BERERE (HE7) A
58 -

RZEZEEtF+_A=+—
H BREXHEBENSERE
N BEBREBERBEA
REA1SEBTUETYE  BE
K5 (KisE7) - A TS
K i R AE (MiRk6) A -
WA AR R R ILSERER
ZEERF-RERZHEE
Bl EER - BIEZHE
AREBILEEHARBA1S5E
THRITEREEREZASH
FEER - ARREBILESH
B9 Rl #EHE 60% M 40% Y HE IR
T

H b R 8 5B B B BT
NERAREE14518TC 0 %2
BREE=EENF—HA—H
REFEEARE200087T -
FERTIRBITARE —FH
EHRFERFEHE - R=ZET
NE+ZA=+—8 ' Hivfg
FARM2,000& T E i H
B E5 A E AR BRFR (I 5E
24) °
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(=B

For the year ended 31 December 2008
MESBANARBTIREN) #E_ZTN\GT_A=1T—HLFE

25. BORROWINGS (continued) 25.

EENE-
The Group (continued) AEE (%)

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group’s borrowings
were repayable as follows:

RZZBEZNFR_ZEZELF+ A
=+—H  AEBEAE KD EER a0
T

Bank borrowings Other borrowings

RITE HAb B
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\FE —TTLF ZBEEN\F —TTLF
Within 1 year 1FR 1,677,230 440,000 20,000 20,000
Between 1 and 2 years 1E24F 384,230 255,770 20,000 20,000
Between 2 and 5 years 2E 54 - 384,230 60,000 60,000
Over 5 years 5 E - - 25,000 45,000
2,061,460 1,080,000 125,000 145,000
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as REHZBNERFENT !
follows:
2008 2007
—EENE —TELF
RMB HK$ RMB HK$
AR¥ BT N BT
Bank borrowings RITIER 5.58%-12.00% 3.14% 6.57%-7.56% -
Other borrowings HABfEFR 4.14% - 2.52% -

FEMBIRITAE R K E AL R AR (B

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current bank

186

borrowings and other borrowings are as follows: RAFERT :
Carrying amounts Fair value
BREIE AFE

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZTTLF Z—TENF ZTTLHF
Bank borrowings HITENK 384,230 640,000 385,943 640,000
Other borrowings Hip g 125,000 145,000 120,938 124,947
509,230 785,000 506,881 764,947

China Oriental Group Company Limited H [ 5 Jy 4 B % B A FR A 7
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRANARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

BORROWINGS (continued)
The Group (continued)

The fair values of current borrowings approximated their
carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
The fair values of non-current bank borrowings and other
borrowings are based on discounted cash flows approach
using the prevailing market rates of interest available to the
Group for financial institution with substantially the same terms
and characteristics of the respective balance sheet dates..

As at 31 December 2008, the carrying amount of the
borrowings amounting to RMB 160 million is denominated in
HKS$, the remainings are denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2007, the carrying amounts of the
borrowings are all denominated in RMB.

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings to interest-rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates are as follows:

6 months or less 61E A=k 61EA
6-12 months 6= 1218 A

25.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

e
AREE ()

ABITREETIKA  RBERNRAF
EANSNEREE - IFRBRITHEK
REMEROZFEERARERE
BEBIRRRERARER NS B
BORITHSANRZRSREERNR
BRI o

NRZBEZENFE+-A=+—8 ' A&
AR 6EITERZEREETIAS
TCETHE © RIBREBD TIAAREETE -

RZZBZ+FE+_A=+—H " BX
ZIREEHAARKEEHE

ARERBIRTTHE P AR B E R K

ANEHERABHOT -
2008 2007
“EENEF  CFELE
1,742,390 635,000
319,070 445,000
2,061,460 1,080,000
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e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(RBEEAN  ESEANARBTIREN) #F

25. BORROWINGS (continued)

The Company
Current RED

Bank borrowings, secured RITER - EHEA
As at 31 December 2008, secured bank borrowings
amounting to RMB 160 million were secured by restricted
bank balances of the Group, carrying at RMB 180 million. The
borrowings were denominated in HK$ and repayable within
one year. As at 31 December 2008, the effective interest rate
was 3.14%.
The fair values of current borrowings approximated their
carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
The exposure of the Company’s bank borrowings to interest-
rate changes and the contractual repricing dates are within 6
months.

26. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES-GROUP

Non-current ERED

Finance lease obligations (i) R FEE AR ()

Performance guarantee deposit (ii) B HIEARIZ 2 (ii)
Current T E

Finance lease obligations (i) AT & AHE ()
Total other long-term payables HihnREIEN AR

China Oriental Group Company Limited H [ 5 Jy 4 B % B A FR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2008
ZEEN\FTZA=T—HILFE

25.

26.

e
P /NC]
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
160,160 =

R-ZTENFEF+-_A=+—H A
AR 6EITEHMIEITERAR
EEZREBEITEBRAREASET

B o ZEERTIABTTEHEL A
N—FAREE - R-_ZTZTN\F+_A
=t+—H BEEREFEXEII4E -
AT EWTEA - REEXR
ZAFEEEEEERERS - AQFER
ITIEFAEF RXEBHHNRAKBREENE
FEBHEANEAR °
HtRHAESR —AER
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLHF
717,934 =
130,000 =
847,934 =
19,888 =
867,822 -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRANARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

26. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP (continued)

(0

In July 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into an asset sale
and leaseback agreements (the “Sale and Lease
Agreement”) with certain financial institution. The sales
proceeds of the property, plant and equipment was RMB
800 million. The lease term was 60 months and the lease
payments were adjusted annually and reset according
to the primary rate announced by the People’s Bank of
China (the “PBOC”). The purchase option at the end of
lease period was RMB 100.

In August 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into a guarantee
agreement with another financial institution. Pursuant
to the agreement, this financial institution granted a
guarantee in favour of Jinxi Limited for the above finance
lease amounting to RMB 800 million.

As at 31 December 2008, total minimum lease payments
under finance lease based on PBOC interest rate as at
the balance sheet date and their present values were as

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

26. HftRHIEMNR—AEE @

) RKRZZTTENFLA ZEEH
HESHBBITI Y EEERHA
Elip((HEREERZE]D -
M- BERREZHEMS
FBEAARESETT - A0
@R HENREFESETH
BWREE R EARRIT ([
ARRIT]) Fr a2 EEFR
BEHHRTE AL RGEEE
BEEAARKAI00TT

R-ZZNFN\AR ZEME
BE—REMEBFIL—71E
Rtk - RIBZWE - AT @
WE LA ABARE S RITHE
BHERRFMEHBER -

R-ZBENE+ZA=+—
A RTFEARBITREHE
MR o2 MAHE L RER

follows: ENFRERERENT
Present Interest Total
value of expenses minimum
minimum relating to lease
lease payments future periods payments
HEEE BBRAR RIEHESE
(REA -] d (NEN
ZBE MEMAZ k]
Within 1 year 15R 19,888 85,918 105,806
Between 1 and 5 years 1 &5 717,934 155,652 873,586
737,822 241,570 979,392
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

26. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES - GROUP (continued)

(i)

For the year ended 31 December 2008, no contingent-
based rents were recognised as expenses.

The effective interest rate of the finance lease obligations
of the Group is 11.40% per annum.

As at 31 December 2008, the fair value of the finance
lease obligations approximated RMB 834 million. The
fair values were based on discounted cashflow using
average borrowing rates of 6.62% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
has received performance and quality guarantee deposit
amounting to RMB130 million from a supplier, who
provides construction services to the Group.

As at 31 December 2008, performance guarantee
deposit was unsecured, bore interest at a rate of 10%
per annum and repayable within three years.

As at 31 December 2008, the fair value of performance
guarantee deposit approximated RMB 146 million.

27. DEFERRED REVENUE

At 1 January 2008

Addition (Note 10 (a) (i)
Credited to the consolidated RERE
income statement

At 31 December 2008

IR China Oriental Group Company Limited H [535 J5 45 F ¥ e A FR A

ANE (HIEE 10(a)(i))
AERSRRRER

26. HitREIESR—

REE @)
BHE_ZZN\F+_A=+—
AIEFE MESABLER
AR -

REBRMEAEREZERE
ZEE11.40% °

RZFFENF+ZA=1+—
B REESAZZATED
AR®B834ET - RFETIR
BARFHRBRENEK6.62% TR
ZHREREFTE °

BE_TEN\Ft_A=1—
BIEEE  AEEE—RRAX
SERHEZERS < HEREK
BREANEEERES AR
1.3187T °

R-EENF+-A=+-
B EHERESAEER
REFE10D S BLARZF
g -

>

RZEBEENE+_A=+—
B BYHERESZATFELD
ARBEA 46 BT -

27. EZLWA

R=ZBBN\$—-—A—H

R-BENF+=-A=+—H

Operating
lease income

REEEWA

80,000

(17,244)

62,756
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e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEPN  ESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 28.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to income taxed levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an interaction to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset
amounts are as follows:

Deferred tax assets: IREFHIR A =
— Deferred tax asset to be — &R 12 & A R el /Y
recovered within 12 months BEFIBE =
Deferred tax liabilities: BEERIBEE ¢
— Deferred tax liabilities to be — R 128 A R HAY
settled within 12 months FEFRTBEE
Deferred tax assets — net EET IR E = — F 58

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:

At 1 January R—H—H

Credited to the consolidated STASREEER
income statement (Note 34 (a)) (FI5E34(a))

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H

Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences under
the liability method using the tax rate and the tax base that are
consistent with the expected manner of recovery or settlement
for the year ended 31 December 2008.

EEFFEH - A KH

EERAARAEERNARERE
EHZ BIRBBINITHE - WREIRT
PSR B F — BB AR ERIRE
B TRAERNERBWZAEHRE
B - A Ry m AR R A AT
e RERAEREERAGSSE
i o MIHS T ¢

2008 2007
“EENEF  CFELF
23,177 3,623
(15,716) (429
7,461 3,194

EIEFTISTAR B R E ST

2008 2007
—EENF —ETTEF
3,194 (290)
4,267 3,484
7,461 3,194

EEFRIARA A EEAN TR =R
EEE T NF+_A=+—H1t
FEFEHUR Bl A E X — B X
RHEFTHE -
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(=B

For the year ended 31 December 2008
MESBANARBTIREN) #E_ZTN\GT_A=1T—HLFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued) 28. EIEFTEH — KB

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

FREEHAREENRBEOREA
R — BB R AR EER) ME

balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows: (N
Deferred tax liabilities: RERIEEE ¢
Unrealised
Capitalised losses on
interest inventories Total
i-2:3(4 e R
FME FEEBE gt
At 1 January 2007 RZTT+F—A—H = (290) (290)
Charged to the consolidated et m R
income statement - (139) (139)
At 31 December 2007 RZTT+F+=-A=+—H = (429) (429)
(Charged)/credited to the RigaiEzRR GIR), /R
consolidated income statement (15,716) 429 (15,287)
At 31 December 2008 RZZENFTZA=+—H (15,716) - (15,716)
Deferred tax assets: FEFIBEFE ¢
Temporary
Losses on difference
disposal of arising from
property, plant expense Inventory
and equipment  recognition Provision Total
RENF BER EBREIN 7E
wENEE TR BE st
At 1 January 2007 RZZTtF—-HA—H - - - -
Credited to the consolidated WA BERTZR
income statement - 3,623 - 3,623
At 31 December 2007 RZZEZ+FE+-_A=1+—H - 3,623 - 3,623
Credited to the consolidated WA BERTZR
income statement 57 8,851 10,646 19,554
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZN\E+A=T—H 57 12,474 10,646 23,177
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28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued)

29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group expected that the unused tax losses for
subsidiaries amounting to RMB 151 million (2007: RMB 129
million) will be utilised during the two-year full exemption period
in accordance with the relevant tax laws and regulations in the
PRC. No deferred tax assets were calculated.

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET - GROUP 29.

Other (losses)/gains — net:

Sales of raw materials and by-products

Gain on disposal of intangible
assets (Note 39)
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (Note 39)
Foreign exchange loss, net (Note 35, 39)

Loss on liquidation of

a subsidiary (Note 39)
Charity donation
Others

Total

OTHER INCOME - GROUP

Dividend income on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (Note 39)

Rental income arising from

investment properties (Note 8)

Income from operating leases
(Note 10(a) (iii), 15)
Others

Total

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BB AEHEI -

B BRANARE T TREN)

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

28. EIEFEH —AEE (2

AEETREM B N RIARE AR IEEE
AREASIRBT(ZZETLF : AR
¥1.291870) IS HEME RIS % B
NREF BE BBOEMERKE A -

W EABEREEHBEE

Hi (FE) KB - FHE-L&EH
2008 2007
—EEN\F —EBELF
Hah (E518) Was —F58
&SRR BIE & 20,439 32,639
BB EEED
WA (M5E39) - 6,325
BEEYME BE;
R AERia sk (FsE39) (276) (6,196)
b R85k - JFRE (M95ES5 ~ 39) (17,297) (19,187)
—EM B A RER
"85k (BiFE39) - (9,605)
HEIBN (5,114) -
Eih 884 8,754
4t (1,364) 12,730
30. HMKWA-KEH
2008 2007
—EEN\F —EBELF
BAFESBERLED
B & E AR B A (Fi5E39) 11 2
EMEFTESE
R WA (HIFE8) 1,775 1,924
LETRE 2 A
(FfFE10(a) (iii) ~ 15) 31,300 =
B 2,553 190
FEE 35,639 2,116
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008
(FREEHEAN  MEEEIUARBTIREN) BE_ZZT)/\F+_A=t—HILFE
31. EXPENSES BY NATURE - GROUP 31. BRMEZRINEX-—FER

2008 2007
—BEN\F _TTLF

Employee benefit expense (Note 32) BTREMAZ (M#E32) 340,299 433,720
Costs of inventories (Note 16) FERA (M3 16) 17,353,385 10,342,384
Amortisation of leasehold land and FAE T4 K+t 4

land use rights (Note 6,39) e (MisE6 - 39) 1,651 1,651
Depreciation of property, plant and Y -« BEMRETE

equipment (Note 7,39) (ffzE7 ~ 39) 570,936 438,566
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9,39) & E#EsS (FizX9 - 39) - 3,806
Reversal of impairment of property, O - HE KR

plant and equipment (Note 7,39) A (FIEE7 - 39) = (16,980)
Depreciation of investment properties HEMENE

(Note 8,39) (K¥7E8 ~ 39) 928 1,100
Operating lease expenses in respect B L AENEE

of land use rights HEEM 9,178 3,631
Provision for/(reversal of) write-down FEREREE(BE)

of inventories (Note 39) (FI7£39) 45,511 (1,879)
Auditors’ remuneration ZERRD N & 5,800 6,200
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEINARBETTRERN)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP 32.

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) & LA (BIEEES)

— Salaries and welfare — e REH

— Pension costs - defined —RIRE&NA — ERBEEHK
contribution plans (a) HERAKRETE (@)

— Share options granted to directors —RTESRESERE
and employees (Note 39) (MF7E39)

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group that
are incorporated in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan organised by the
relevant provincial government. For the years ended
31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group is required to
make monthly defined contributions to these plans at
rates from 10% to 20%, with the base of their total salary
subject to a certain ceiling.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees or retirees other than the payments disclosed
in the above note.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \FE+-_A=1t—HIEE

BETREAMAX-FEH

2008 2007
—EENF CZTTHF

303,533 244,551
36,766 29,283
- 159,886
340,299 433,720

BRE -EBEHRGEENRS
BEl

AR ER [ 50 R B 1 A S A PR JER
REAMBT2EEHERAFA
AEIE R R N R
g-BE_TTNFR_ZFZT
tFE+_A=+—BHLEFE"
AEREZETHSHEBI0%E
20% & Az ETEIEL B8R
WK ERET ERAAIR -

B DA L B & P 45 B8 B9 SRR 9D -
AEELEAE THRRIKRAL
AT RS RiE T HAMERKRER
BANWEMBEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued) 32. ETREABEZ—AEE @)

(b)  Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments ) ZESKEAEREMS
The emoluments of every director for the years ended 31 BE_ZZEN\FR_ZZTLF
December 2008 and 2007, on a named basis, are set +—A=+—HIEFE &%
out as below: ENME (AMR AZ%E) E 7 a
™

Fair value of Pension
employee costs -
share defined
options contribution

Salaries granted plans
and BRIES BRERE -

Name of Director Fees allowances Bonus  EBREN TEHTGE Total
BEfZ Be FEREE 4L AHE  BUEHE #ct
2008 —BENE
Mr. Han Jingyuan EHERE 533 4,868 - - 11 5,412
Mr. Zhu Jun * ERi 365 1,587 - - 11 1,963
Mr. Liu Lei 8 &R 385 1,190 - - 11 1,586
Mr. Yu Jianshui TRIKGEHE 367 110 - - 11 488
Mr. Shen Xiaoling MEREE 267 4l - - 11 349
Mr. Yu Tung Ho REERE 309 - - - - 309
Mr. Zhu Hao K ERE 294 - - - 9 303
Mr. Gao Qingju REREE 265 - - - - 265
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis ~ EX R4 265 - - - - 265

3,050 1,826 - - 64 10,940
2007 It = 3
Mr. Han Jingyuan BRI 668 5,357 - - 12 6,087
Mr. Yu Jianshui (a) TRKEEQ) 218 500 = 4,278 8 5,004
Mr. Zhu Jun * ERi 826 714 480 - 22 2,042
Mr. Liu Lei 2 #EE 411 1,310 - - 12 1,733
Mr. Shen Xiaoling EREE 632 322 278 - 22 1,254
Mr. Yu Tung Ho REUERE 340 - - - - 340
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis ~ &XR%EE 291 - - - - 291
Mr. Gao Qingju REARE 291 - - - - 291
Ms. Chen Ningning (0) REZLT (o) 242 - - - 10 252
Mr. Tang Chi Fai (c) HERLE() 73 - - - - 73
Mr. Zhu Hao (d) % OEEE() ) - - - 1 3

4,024 8,203 758 4,278 87 17,350
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B EBRANARE T TREN)

(BR=AEEBI -

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

(b)

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(continued)

(@)  Appointed on 14 April 2007.

(b)  Resigned on 29 October 2007.

(¢) Resigned on 13 April 2007.

(d)  Appointed on 21 November 2007.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the years 2008 and 2007. The
emoluments of the independent non-executive directors
during the year are RMB 0.8 million approximately (2007:

RMB 0.9 million).

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals consisted of:

Number of directors
Number of employees

BEAR
BT A

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \FE+-_A=1t—HIEE

32. EIRABEX—AEH @

(b)

EENEAEEEMNS @)

@ ZEELFMATHBEZRE-

b) —ZETZ+E+A-tHIBEE
ng%o

© C“FELFMA+=AEH-

@ —TFtFt-A-t+-H
B

R-BBENFER_FTZFLHF
N BEEENEXRAENE
EAME - £ X FBEZL
FATEFHOMESOR/ARE
80BIT(=TTLF : AR¥90

S —

8IL) °
RAEZEEHFMALT
A& mRH A LTRE

2008
—EENE —TTAF

4 2
1 3
5 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued) 32. ETREABEZ—AEE @)

()  Five highest paid individuals (continued) ) hBEE=FMALT@E
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest RNEENEE AN Z = FHHA
in the Group for the year include four (2007: two) TEEOM(ZEZEF: W
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis f)EE EMESER EXHD
presented above. The emoluments payable to the MHRE - BRBT L (ZF
remaining one (2007: three) individuals during the year THF =) ATHIB S
are as follows: N
2008 2007

it 208 —TTAF

Salaries and allowances e &oER 694 999
Bonuses TEAL - 868
Fair value of employee BERTES

share options granted BN N TE - 9,269
Pension costs - defined RS KA — ERRMER

contribution plans RERKSETE 9 30

703 11,166

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, BEZENEFR_ZFTLF
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of +ZA=+—HIEFER ' &
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as SEBMERFANESK AR
inducement to join or upon joining the Company or as SEHMA T SEAME - 7
compensation for loss of office. BIMARRG KR IMARRA A

B0 SR SR E SRR AR (E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEINARBETTRERN)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The remuneration of the five highest paid individuals for
the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 fell within

the following bands:

RMB 1 to RMB 1,000,000
(approximately HK$ 1
to HK$ 1,133,928)

RMB 1,000,001 to RMB 2,000,000
(approximately HK$ 1,133,929
to HK$ 2,267,857)

RMB 3,000,001 to RMB 4,000,000
(approximately HK$ 3,401,786
to HK$ 4,535,713)

RMB 4,000,001 to RMB 5,000,000
(approximately HK$ 4,535,714
to HK$ 5,669,641)

RMB 5,000,001 to RMB 6,000,000
(approximately HK$ 5,669,642
to HK$ 6,808,570)

RMB 6,000,001 to RMB 7,000,000
(approximately HK$ 6,803,571
to HK$ 7,937,498)

32.
ARK1LE
AR 1,000,0007T
(W1 BTE

1,133,928 /8 7T)
AR#1,000,001 TE
AR #2,000,0007T
(491,133,929 TE
2,267,857 7 7T)
AR # 3,000,001 TE
AR ¥ 4,000,000 7T
(#93,401,786 BILE
4,535,713787T)
AR# 4,000,001 TE
ABR¥ 5,000,000 7T
(#74,535,714BTTE
5,669,641 7T )
AR 5,000,001 TE
A K% 6,000,0007T
(495,669,642 FBTTE
6,803,570 7T)
AR # 6,000,001 TE
ABR#7,000,0007T
(476,803,571 BT E
7,937,498 77T )

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \FE+-_A=1t—HIEE

EIRARAEZ -—X&EE#)

Number of individuals

A"
2008 2007

t 2082 —TTAF

2 -
2 -
= 2
- 1
1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

33. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS - GROUP 33. BIBWARBAE—-KEH

2008 2007
—BEN\F _TTLF

Interest expenses FEER
- borrowings —fER (61,822) (68,287)
— amounts due to related parties — B AR 5 50B - (523)
— discount of notes receivable — R EEITIR (463) -
— finance lease liabilities (Note 26) —mEHEa R (MFE26) (30,101) -
Net foreign exchange gains & SR BE H U 2 5 RE
on borrowings (Note 35) (FfF5E35) 759 -
Finance costs (Note 39) B A (F3E 39) (91,627) (68,810)
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A2 UA 15,519 12,118
Income from loan receivable FEWE A 8,730 -
Finance income (Note 39) B AE A (P 5E39) 24,249 12,118
Finance costs, net BTSN « R (67,378) (56,692)
34. INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP 34. FGHER-4AKH
(@  Income tax expense represents: @ FISHERSRE:
2008 2007
—EBENF —ETHF
Current income tax & HAFTIS AL
- PRC enterprise income tax — RS
(the “EIT”) ([HPEIZEMET]) 74,910 260,101
Deferred income tax (Note 28) RIEFTS R (F1sE28) (4,267) (3,484)
70,643 256,617
The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an ARARIBBEERE—NLN\—F
exempted company with limited liability under the NELEEBREFZMK L AR
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and, accordingly, is ReBEREEAT  WERR
exempted from payment of Bermuda income tax. BT ASEERTET ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B EBRANARE T TREN)

(BRRAEHEI -

34. INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

(@)

Income tax expense represents (continued):

The subsidiaries directly held by the Company except
HK Trading were incorporated in BVI with limited liability
under the International Business Companies Act Chapter
291 and, accordingly, are exempted from payment of
BVI income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as there
is no estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31
December 2008 (2007: nil).

The PRC EIT is calculated based on the statutory profit
of subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in accordance
with the PRC tax laws and regulations, after adjustments
on certain income and expense items, which are not
assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

Effective from 1 January 2008, the subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC are required to determine and
pay the EIT in accordance with the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “new EIT
Law”) as approved by the National People’s Congress
on 16 March 2007 and the Detailed Implementation
Regulations of the Corporate Income Tax Law (the “DIR”)
as approved by the State Council on 6 December 2007.
In accordance with the new EIT Law and DIR, the EIT
rate applicable to the subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC will be 25% for those with original applicable EIT
rates higher than 25%, or gradually increased to 25% in
a 5-year period from 2008 to 2012 for those with original
applicable EIT rates lower than 25%. The preferential
policy of exemption or deduction shall be effective from
1 January 2008, even if the subsidiaries were still in a
cumulative tax loss position.

B RAR A

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \FE+-_A=1t—HIEE

34. FISHER —X&EB @)

(@)

FISIEBRREw®)

ARBEEFBENNBRR (R
EREBIN REBREEAQF
RN EERBREARAEEE
MR BEREMERA @ HE
REBNEBEBAREENE
i o

BE-—TENAF+=A=+—
B Lk 4 [ 3 4% i 3 8 SR B i
FI - H R BB FIB B e
BE(CTELE D)

SIS T Y E S
SR S A0 BB 2 F A T
R BB ERBARR G
Bl RBRETRARB AT
A0 P13 B A B9 08
B&3E -

BTN NF—A—H L
e B A S B B B A B8
ER-ZZEELtF=A+ 1 BE
B A A HE AR R EE A R FIE
TEMBREIHEEMRE
MENDRZZEZLF+ = A
7~ B B # B 4t 8 1 ZE TS A
EERMAA( EEAE L -
FTEWHND SR - KR
MEEMSRERE AR -
£ AP B w1 AR 2 A9 B B 2 A 40
REBRNGCEMSHREES
R25% - Bl T A&R25% : AR
B AR EEHTERER
25% AIE—ZEZENFE_ZFT
——FMRERN BLEAE
25% ° BE SR R 2 B E K
REBZZTZNF—A—HE
£ BEZEHB R RNE
REBETIEEEAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

34.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP (continued)

(@)

pA0PA China Oriental Group Company Limited H [535 J5 45 H ¥ e A R A

Income tax expense represents (continued):

Effective from 25 December 2002, Jinxi Limited was
approved to be a foreign-invested joint stock company.
The effective tax rate is 25% for the year ended 31
December 2008 according to the new EIT law, and
15% for the year ended 31 December 2007 as it was
entitled to a two-year full exemption followed by a three-
year 50% tax deduction from the PRC state EIT and
a five-year full exemption followed by a five-year 50%
deduction from the local income tax started from 1
January 2003.

Jinxi Jinlan qualified as a foreign investment production
enterprise and was established in a coastal economic
development zone. Approved by local tax authority on
14 December 2007, Jinxi Jinlan was entitled to a two-
year full exemption followed by a three-year 50% tax
deduction, commencing from the first cumulative profit-
making year net of losses carried forward. As at 31
December 2008, the effective rate of Jinxi Jinlan was nil
(2007: nil).

Shenzhen Leasing qualified as a service industry
enterprise and was established in a special economic
zone. Approved by local tax authority on 14 September
2008, Shenzhen Leasing was entitled to a one-year full
exemption followed by a two-year 50% tax deduction
effective from 1 January 2008. Accordingly, the effective
tax rate was nil (2007: nil).

For the year ended 31 December 2008

34. FISBER —AX&£EB @)

(@

IS EBRREw®)

M-S -F+=-RA=+HH
i ORISR AN ERE
IR A&l o RIBFT B EFMSH
E BEZZEZNET A
=St HLEFEZERHEAR
25%  MEBE=—TT+F+=H
=t —BIEFEZERB XA
"15% AAZARBE _ET
—F—A—ARBRERRHAM
FHBECEMSH  JEE=
B=F R E R 50% B % %258
MAFHFFIGETHE - AR
ZHERAFBREER50% °

RATHNRINERELEEN
CENER  EaBRER%E
B - BT HERR_-F
TLFET_ATHBEEYL =2
AeMAENREEERENE
BERFABANFELE ZEMF
TR R H R = F50%H
BRER- - R-_ZZN\F+_-A
=t—H ROECWIERM
ERTB(CETLF T -

AYBEFTARBITELEN
B ERERRNKI - &i
ABRBERR_ZEZENFENA
THHEERL B -TT/\F—
A—RiE RYBEFE—F
BB#E CREEMERS
RR50% ° Bt - BEERER
B(ZFFLH:F) -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

34. INCOME TAX EXPENSE - GROUP (continued) 34.

(b)  The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate of 22.39% (2007: 31.10%)
to respective profits of the consolidated entities for the
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 as follows:

??'>

R ot A A

Taxation calculated at statutory BAEREGTERFIE
tax rate

Profit before taxation

Effect of tax exemption of subsidiaries [ B A RIFIE AR T 2

Tax losses for which no deferred BB RERBERET
income tax asset was recognised BEMNTIBEEE

Utilisation of previously unrecognised 5% Bil A fE =2 55 T8 5 18 H) {5
tax losses

Effect of change of tax rate upon R IE A ER R
assessing deferred tax assets SHNTE

Effect of other non-taxable income H i N Bt WA R 2
Effect of non-deductible expenses AT HUR A S B s 22

35. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES 35.

The exchange differences (charged)/credited in the
consolidated income statement are included as follows:

Other losses — net (Note 29) HAbEE — 558 (2 29)
Finance costs — net (Note 33) RS RK AS — 58 (M95E33)

FIEHER—A&8 @)

(b) AEBERBINEFHFIES 5B
HEE—TTNEFR_TZT+
F+-_A=+—BLLFEEH
BB s I A N g R &
22.39% (=TT 4 : 31.10%)
TEMNERBENEZENT ¢

2008 2007
e I e
113,601 1,450,354

23,651 483,290
(2,577) (310,835)

8,251 375
(1,686) (4,881)

- 1,022
(499) (35)

43,503 87,681

70,643 256,617

bE 5 E5 18 F 5

REFEERERA(0R),RERZER
ERFITE

2008 2007
—EENF CZTTHF

(17,297) (19,187)
759 -
(16,538) (19,187)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

36. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF 36. AATERIEE AEMLER
THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt RRRERFA ARG ENBETTA
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent RATHBHREOHIARE 7218
of approximately RMB 371.62 million (2007: RMB 213.37 —TTHF : ARK213ET) ©
million).
37. EARNINGS PER SHARE 37. BREF
Basic AR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit BREARENIRBERARRESER
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted AFEfE & FIBR LA A E 21T E @A A
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. ke S mETE o
2008 2007
—EENF —ETHF
Profit attributable to equity holders RARIERFFE A
of the Company i epiatil 44,032 1,159,657
Weighted average number of BT E B
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) TR (FA%) 2,929,187 2,910,759
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) SR EZEH (BFRARET) 0.02 0.40
Diluted 3
Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings HREEZE-_ZENF+=-_A=+—8
per share, as the Company has no dilutive potential ordinary RNAENEESE B LB - ek
shares as at 31 December 2008 (2007: RMB 0.40 per share). BERNEGRENEHER(ZF

TLF  BRARK0.407T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEINARBETTRERN)

38. DIVIDENDS

Interim, paid (a, b) FE . BIRfT (@ b)
Final, proposed (c, d) ARHE] - #K (c * d)
(@ At a meeting held on 30 August 2007, the Board

proposed an interim dividend of HK$ 159.94 million
(approximately RMB 154.86 million), representing
HK$ 0.055 per ordinary share, for the year ended 31
December 2007. Such interim dividend was paid for the
year ended 31 December 2007 .

At a meeting held on 18 August 2008, the Board
proposed an interim dividend of HK$ 190.14 million
(approximately RMB 167.09 million), representing HK$
0.065 per ordinary share, for the six months ended 30
June 2008. Such interim dividend was paid for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

At a meeting held on 27 March 2008, the Board
proposed a final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2007 of HK$ 181.61 million (approximately
RMB 164.36 million), representing HK$ 0.062 per
ordinary share. The Annual General Meeting held on
15 May 2008 approved the Board’s dividend proposal.
Such final dividend was paid for the year ended 31
December 2008.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008.

38. KE

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \FE+-_A=1t—HIEE

2008
—EENF CZTTHF

167,088 154,864
- 164,361
167,088 319,225

RZZEZE+FNA =+ HET
MEsxt EZRERKEE
E-FTELF+RA=+—H
IEFE 2 FHRE1.60EB T
(M AR¥EA155(87T) @ BNEAR
TEAT 0.055 7T © AP HAR%
EEREBEE_ZEZ+F+_A
=+—HIEFEIRS °

RZZFEENFNR+NB R
MEsxt EZRERKEH
E-FTENFAA=THIER
& Az BAR% 8. 1.90 B T (%Y
AR®A67EIT) - BN ER T
3B J%0.065 7 7T o Al it A HA A%
BERBE_ZTZETN\F+=A
=+—HIEFEIRS °

R-EENF=A_++HE
THERLE EERERKE
HE_ZELtF+_A=1+—
BIEFE RIS A1.82 BT (
WAREA6418TT) - BIEFARE
AR 0.062%8 7T - RZZEZ/N\F
AR +HRBRTZEBREAFAK
SLEMEFRBZESRIEKE
BEe FREREEREE
—EEN\FE+-_A=+—HIt
FEIRN ©

EFRTRAENAE T
NE+=A=t-BLEEEZ
Xgﬂﬂilﬁ\ °©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 39.
STATEMENT

RERSREBRMEE

BRBE AT R G 2 E B RS
MAFEERFEIRIT ¢

(i) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated
from operations is as follows:

=
=

2008 2007
“EE\E  -TTH

Profit before income tax PR P15 25 Al A 113,601 1,450,354
Depreciation of property, W - BB KA E

plant and equipment (Note 7,31) (BfzE7 ~ 31) 570,936 438,566
Depreciation of investment properties REWERE

(Note 8,31) (BizE8 - 31) 928 1,100
Amortisation of leasehold land and TS It % 1 (e A4

land use rights (Note 6,31) a5 (fske - 31) 1,651 1,651
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH

(Note 9,31) (BfaE9 « 31) - 3,806
Provision for/(reversal of) write-down FERERE/(BE)

of inventories (Note 31) (BFzE31) 45,511 (1,879)
Reversal of impairment provision for

property, plant and equipment M - BB RERERE

(Note 7,31) BmE (MzE7 - 31) = (16,980)
Share of profit of an associate FE(RE & R R A

company (Note 11) (BfsE11) (1,998) (225)
Loss on disposal of property, plant REWE « BEMEEFEE

and equipment, net (Note 29) (BizE29) 276 6,196
Gain on disposal of intangible assets, REENEENZFHE

net (Note 29) (PBF3E29) = (6,325)
Exchange loss (Note 29) e 5 /8598 (M 3£ 29) 17,297 19,187
Finance income (Note 33) I ONEIERE)) (24,249) (12,118)
Dividend income on financial assets at fair 1ZAEF BIERLERR

value through profit or loss (Note 30) BB ERRRSUA (FTzE30) (11) @
Finance costs (Note 33) B AR A (Pf97E33) 91,627 68,810
Loss on liquidation of a subsidiary —EEARBERANER

(Note 29) (PFff3E29) - 9,605
Employee share option scheme (Note 32)  {& B f# ik iE=12] (fif3E 32) = 159,886
Operating profit before working BB RPN E i 7

capital changes 815,569 2,121,632
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets BATEERERTREY

at fair value through profit or loss BHEERD, /() 6 (11)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,/(3Eh) 224,049 (454,250)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted R HIRT TR D, (E0)

bank balances 9,992 (76,428)
Increase in trade receivables, prepayments, JEIRE F B8Rz ~ B ZUIE -

deposits and other receivables and BZe REMERERR R

other current assets H At BN & B AN (2,181,436) (588,796)
Increase in amount due from related parties & Uk 2k 5 B AN (3,565) (11,085)
Increase in trade payables, current BB S8R - & HEH

income tax liabilities, accruals, BE - BRER -

advances from customers and TEE P FRIE K

other current liabilities HAhmE & FEE 1,674,220 373,986
Increase in deferred revenue B AL AN 62,756 -
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to & 1<) BB 5 3K R

related parties 1,/ i) 24,581 (1,148)
Cash generated from operations REELENRS 626,172 1,363,930

pA0[M China Oriental Group Company Limited H [53 J5 45 B ¥ e A R A




39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B EBRANARE T TREN)

STATEMENT (continued)

(i)

(i)

Major non-cash transactions:

(BR=AEEBI -

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group

endorsed bank acceptance notes to the supplier for

purchase of property, plant and equipment amounting to

approximately RMB 1,087 million (2007: approximately

RMB 1,121 million).

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sales of (iii)

property, plant and equipment comprise:

Net book amount (Note 7)
Loss on disposals of property,

plant and equipment (Note 29)

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

FREDFE (PRE7)
REWF  BER
RipEE (£ 29)

BREWE - BE&
RIBFISHR

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \FE+-_A=1t—HIEE

GERERERMT )

EBRERS ¢

BHE-_ZTZTN\F+-A=+—
BEFE A5EREEY
¥ BEERZXERHRERSE
RITEHEZHARE10.87
BR(ZEZLF: HARK
11.21187L) °

REERERA HEYWE -
B KR PS5 IR B -

2008 2007
—EENF —ETTEF
276 6,532

(276) (6,196)

= 336
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e ISR AR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
The Group

Guarantee for third parties

Guarantee for bank borrowings
of third parties o ELER

As at 31 December 2008, Jinxi Limited provided guarantee
for bank borrowings in favour of third parties amounting to
approximately RMB 60.9 million (2007: approximately RMB
30.9 million). The fair values of these financial guarantee
contracts are not significant.

The directors of the Company are of the view that to settle
the obligation will not probably cause an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits.

The Company

Guarantee of bank borrowings
of a subsidiary H BER

In January 2006, the Company and Foshan Jin Lan collectively
granted a guarantee in favour of Jinxi Jinlan for current bank
facilities amounting to RMB 150 million. In accordance with the
guarantee contract, the Company and Foshan Jin Lan shall
bear 60% and 40% of the guarantee obligation respectively,
effective from 14 September 2005 to 13 September 2008.

As at 31 December 2007, pursuant to the aforementioned
agreement, current secured borrowings of Jinxi Jinlan
amounting to RMB 150 million were guaranteed by the
Company and Foshan Jin Lan collectively.

pA}M China Oriental Group Company Limited H [503 J5 45 B ¥ e A TR A ]

B =TTHISRITIERK

MBRRED

REE

RE=TTHAER

2008 2007
—EENF —EFTLEF
60,900 30,900

R-FENF+=A=1+—R 2&
HEH A = 77 IR ATHE Bk AR
0B NRHE6,0008 7T (ZFTLF
HARIE 30008 TT) - HEHBER
AWM AFELTER -

RAREERBZEEREEHRABE
TEEKAEFZERR L

AR B A RIEIRTTRE X

YNNG
2008 2007
—EENF —EFTLEF
- 90,000

RZZZERF—A - ARFEHEFBLE
M ARE1S5BITAREBITER
BEHARAEZASEH L EER - BE
EREL  ANAREBILEEHEAED R
EIEG0% K 40% MEREE  BZZ
THFNATOAZE=TTN\FNA
T=HEK -

R-ZZLF+-_A=1t—8 R
b - 2ESEOSERREE
RARBASETTIIRARE KL
SR HRHAER




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BAEEPN  MESEINARBTIREN) BE_TEN\FT_A=1T—"HLEE

41. COMMITMENTS - GROUP 41. FAiEg-FEE
(@)  Capital commitments @ BAREE
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet REERMAEENEARAL
incurred is as follows: T
2008 2007

—EBN\F —TTAF

Purchase of intangible assets WEmP EE
— Contracted but not provided for —BERTHEREE 2,000 =
Purchase of property, BEYE BENERE
plant and equipment
— Contracted but not provided for —BERERE®E 2,088,203 884,748
— Authorised but not contracted for ~ — B S HEERETL 1,209,707 276,472
3,297,910 1,161,220
(o)  Operating lease commitments (o) KEHEFIE
The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses BT HEEEHEETH
in respect of land use rights and building under non- = 3 {55 PR R A8 T ) FE A R R
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: SEAERS B HT -
2008 2007
—EENF —ETAF
No later than one year 1ER 77,458 9,440
Later than one year and 1 E  5FUA
no later than five years 28,144 26,394
Later than five years 5F A E 142,777 121,314
248,379 157,148
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M mRRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(=B

42,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related

if they are subject to common control.

(@)

For the years 2008 and 2007, the directors are of the (@)
view that the following companies and persons are

related parties of the Group:

Name

=L

Wellbeing Holdings Limited
Wellbeing Holdings Limited

Mittal AG
Mittal AG

Smart Triumph Corporation
Smart Triumph Corporation

Tangshan City Jinxi Iron
and Steel Group Co., Ltd.
(“Tangshan Jinxi Group”)
LTRSS B AR AR
(MEWEARERE])

Arcelor Mittal Sourcing SA

(“AM Sourcing”)
Arcelor Mittal Sourcing SA

(TAM Sourcing J)

Foshan Jin Lan

A

Foshan Jin Lan Import
and Export Co., Ltd.

(“Jin Lan Import and Export”)
HLEHEEL QAR AR
(TEmERAD

Foshan Jin Lan Nonferrous
Metals Product Co., Ltd.

(“Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals”)
HlLeHmBEEeBRmMmBRAR
(eWEEeE])

AN China Oriental Group Company Limited H [53 J5 45 B ¥ e A R A ]

For the year ended 31 December 2008

FIEERENARBT TAEN) BE-TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

42. BBARS

W— T AERIERENEH S
k¥ 5 — 5 B E M S R BB IR RS
BEAFEN  ASRET - HiKE
R ARES - TR RS o

RZEBEEZNER_ZTELF
N BERRUATRARAL
RAKENEES

Relationship with the Group
BEASKEHEAFE

Substantial shareholder of the Company
RATNEZRR

Substantial shareholder of the Company
AARMEZRR

Former substantial shareholder of the Company

ARBWRTEETERR

Shareholder of Jinxi Limited and its legal representative is Mr. Han
Jingyuan, a director of the Company

REMBERR - HEAERRA/ANRAERBELE

Controlled by the same ultimate controlling shareholder of Mittal AG

£ Mittal AG B[R] — B 4% AR A% SR 4%

Substantial shareholder of Jinxi Jinlan

RSN ERIR

Controlled by the family members of Mr. Zhou Weijie, a director of
Jinxi Jinlan

RS M EERERTENREIES]

Foshan Jin Lan’s subsidiary

BRI BRI E A A




42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BRRAEHEI -

For the years 2008 and 2007, the directors are of the ()
view that the following companies and persons are
related parties of the Group: (continued)

Name

=

Zhongxing Iron Mine

B 5

Qianxi County Hui Yin Trading

Company Limited (“Hui Yin”)
BASERTE

BRAR(DERD)

Qianxi County Longba
Charging Company Limited

(“Longba Charging”)
%ﬁ% FER

BRAR ([FEHER )

Pingguan County Longba
Quarrying Company Limited

(“‘Longba Quarrying”)
”i% BRABBERLAR

(TEHHA D

Hebei Province Jing Yuan
Education Foundation
(“din Yuan Foundatlon”)

ML EFEHEES
(’—ﬁ _-l-_\/J)

Mr. Han Jingyuan
FRAIUR ST

Mr. Zhou Weijie
AR TE

Mr. Shen Xiaoling
LR e

Mr. Du Chun
MEHELE

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008

FIESBONARBTTAEN) BE-—TT/\F+_A=1t—HLFE

42. BEBERZ #)
RZBEENEFER_ZZLF
AN BEREUATABRAL
BAREBNREH S : ()

Relationship with the Group
BEAEEHEARE

Jinxi Limited’s associated company

= i) ke /N

Substantial shareholder of Jinxi Section Steel

PRV F EARR

Controlled by Mr. Du Chun, substantial shareholder of Jinyin Charging
HRIRIER 2 T BRI F A

Controlled by Mr. Du Chun, substantial shareholder of Jinyin Charging
AR RIER 2 T BRI TR A

Its legal representative is Mr. Han Jingyuan, a director of the Company
RRREFFWEREERELETEAR

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company

RRAREEREFERAFENTE

Director of Jinxi Jinlan

ETERENES

Director of the Company

AABES

Substantial shareholder of Jinyin Charging
RIRER 2 TBRR
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e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

212

(=B

FIESBENARETIREN) BE_ZTN\F+_A=+—HILFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42, BHMERF #)

(b) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated b) BRAGEMBEBRRPEKE
financial statements, during the years 2008 and G RAZEENFER_ZTZT+
2007, the directors were of the view that the following FR BEFREUNTHEKNEE
significant related party transactions were carried out in BMARSTISAEE B BB
the normal course of business of the Group: T
() Sales (i) &HE

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
()  Sales of goods ) SHEED
— Jin Lan Import and Export —&MEND 76,039 20,803
()  Sales of utilities () SHEEER
— Jin Lan Nonferrous Metals —SHBEESE 4,061 3,509
(i) Purchase (i) BE
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETLF
()  Purchase of raw materials () BEE R
— AM Sourcing —AM Sourcing 49,866 -
- Longba Charging —BEFIER 17,576 =
— Zhongxing Iron Mine — FR R 14,307 =
81,749 -
()  Purchase of property, () BEDE- BE
plant and equipment NG
— Longba Quarrying —REHRA 2,000 =

China Oriental Group Company Limited = [ 5 Jy 4 B % B A F A 7




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \FE+_A=1+-—HIEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

A EBRONARE T TAEN)

(BRAAEHEI -

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated

financial statements, during the years 2008 and

2007, the directors were of the view that the following

significant related party transactions were carried out in

the normal course of business of the Group: (continued)

(iii) Financing

0

()

Transaction with Hui Yin

Hui Yin provided a loan to Jinxi Section
Steel, amounting to RMB 170 million for the
year ended 31 December 2008. The loan
is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within one year.

Transaction with Jing Yuan Foundation

Jing Yuan Foundation provided an
entrustment loan to Jinxi Limited through
a financial institution, amounting to RMB
3.3 million. The loan was unsecured, bore
interest at a rate of 12% per annum and
repayable within one year. For the year
ended 31 December 2008, interest expense
of approximately RMB 0.2 million was
incurred.

(iv) Guarantee

In June 2007, Foshan Jin Lan granted a guarantee

in favour of Jinxi Jinlan for entrusted lending from
Shenzhen Leasing, amounting to RMB 30 million.

42, BEAERS ®)

(b)

(iii)

(iv)

BRAGZEMBEmETEHE
I RZEENFRZZTEL
FN - EEFTRBATHEKNH
B RS AEE AT B

T ()
A

) HEERNKS

HE—_ZZNF+=A
=+—HIFE  ERMA
EARE—EERA
BAREATEIL - % &
REEER - 2B RAER

—FREE -

() HEFEETARS

HEESBEA R
BrRIEAEMEIRE—EE
AERAHEAREKEINE
TC o ZERREER -
12E K FF EEF 2R
—FRNEERE -HEZZTT
NE+-A=+—HBItHE
B BEEEFERIZHOA

REE208 T ©

S

R-ZZLFRA HLUEH
SR B RIIEE R FEE KA
EEERHAE-HERSEA

e —

R#3,0008 7T °
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e M RRMEE

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(=B

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42.

(©)

FIEERENARBT TAEN) BE-TT/\F+_A=t—HLFE

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the directors were (©
of the view that the following related party balances

were attributed to the aforementioned related party
transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group,

dividends appropriation during the years.

BELERS (#)

RZEZENER T LF
+=—A=+—"H ER5U
T EAEE 5 & eR Th A B R
R REAEEE Z[FHHK
B BEFEANKRE DM
BEE -

2008 2007
—BEN\F ZETF
Amounts due from related parties JiE Uk BB 75 SR IE
— Zhongxing Iron Mine (i) () 9,800 9,800
— Longba Quarrying —BESERA 3,000 =
- Jin Lan Import and Export —ERELM 1,820 1,255
14,620 11,055
Amounts due to related parties JE (< RS 75 5R0E
Non-current FETRED
Borrowing from a related party BB IR AR
— Foshan Jin Lan (i) — I 2 (i) 55,055 55,733
Deposit from a related party R B BB RiRE
— Mr. Shen Xiaoling (Note 10 (a)(iii)) — bR 5 A (B 5E 10(a)ii)) 10,000 -
65,055 56,733
Current e
Borrowing from a related party B IR A B R
— Hui Yin (Note 42 (b)(iii)) —ER (FIEE 42(0)ii)) 170,000 -
Trade payables BB SRR
— Longba Charging (Note 42 (b)(ii)) —BEFER (FHEE 42(b)(i)) 11,605 =
— Zhongxing Iron Mine (Note 42 (o)(i) — A ELREZE (7% 42(b)(i)) 1,555 _
13,160 -
Dividends payable due to ERTUTEENRE
— Tangshan Jinxi Group —EIEAEER 18,130 4,947
— Zhongxing Iron Mine — FR R R 2,535 2,535
20,665 7,482
Others HAtb
— Mr. Du Chun —tEHEE 2,800 -
— Foshan Jin Lan — e 383 383
— Mr. Han Jingyuan —BBHURSTAE 5 706
3,188 1,089
207,013 8,571

PAV:W China Oriental Group Company Limited 7[5 5 J7 £ Ml 4% A FR A 5
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(BABEPN - ESEEINARBETTRERN)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(©)

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the directors were
of the view that the following related party balances
were attributed to the aforementioned related party
transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group,
dividends appropriation during the years. (continued)

(i) Subject to certain agreements entered into in
November 2007, the loan provided to Zhongxing
Iron Mine amounting to RMB 9.8 million is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within
thirteen months.

(i)  Subject to certain agreements entered into in
January 2006, the payables owing to Foshan Jin
Lan amounting to RMB 55 million is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable only after 5 year.

Except for the loan provided by Foshan Jin Lan and Hui
Yin and the loan provided to Zhongxing Iron Mine as
disclosed above and deposit from Mr. Shen Xiaoling as
disclosed in Note 10 (a) (iii), the related party balances
were all unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed term
of repayment.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

42, BEAERS ®)

(©)

N E*%EILLﬁ E
X5 REAEEE AR
H BEFEANRKREDEM
B o ()

() WBERZZZLF+—A
I BE T - RIS
FEEENERLSHEAR
ﬁ5980E§5i;%ﬁETﬁTm‘ *

FMAEART=@ARNE

(il
o

(i) RER-ZZFZTF—AHFT
M EET B - L
THNERSBARE
5500%%5E¢%5Eﬁi#$* %

FBMAFRER -

PR BT R B L2 B B
SRFTIR A B R R M) AR L 5
REMER - AR 10(a)(iil)
WEZREBLERLEZIRE
SN BREE S 8RS R E R
R EREETEEER -
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e ISR

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 42.
(c) As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the directors were
of the view that the following related party balances
were attributed to the aforementioned related party
transactions, amounts paid on behalf of the Group,
dividends appropriation during the years. (continued)

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-current

BELERS (#)

(©

RZZEZENER_ZZTZELF
+—A=+—H EFERAEMN
T A 7 A ek T B Lt B
R RERAEEE AR
B BEFEANRKRE DB
B o ()

FE A< BARSE 77 B0 FE R B SRR M BR

amounts due to related parties are as follows: EEEAFEWT :
Carrying amounts Fair value
BREE AFHE
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENF ZETLF ZEENF ZTTEF
Amounts due to JE 1~ G T3 Y SR IE
related parties 65,055 51, 7658} 58,127 44,013

The fair values of current amounts due to related parties
and amounts due from related parties approximated
their carrying amounts, as the impact of discounting
is not significant. The fair values are based on cash
flows discounted using a rate based on the applicable
borrowings rate of 5.40% per annum (2007: 7.74% per
annum).

No provision has been required for the years ended 31

December 2008 and 2007 for the loan made to related
parties. The related parties have no default history.

China Oriental Group Company Limited H [ 5 Jy 4 B % B A FR A 7

AT REETK - R

B 7 B R TE R A (B KBRS
EBEFRHATFENEREERA
B AFERNBERESRE
- WLAERERFERNES.40
B(ZZZTLF: §F7.74E)
BEAE o

MRETHEBTHNERNS
HE_ZZN\FR_ZTZLF
+—A=+—HItFEEBF:T
TR - BN WEEHE R AEER -
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B BRANARE T TREN)

(BB AEHEI -

43. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the significant subsequent events of the Group

were as follows:

)

Pursuant to a share transfer agreement dated 4 August
2008, Jinxi Limited acquired 71% share capital and
shareholders’ loan (the “Acquisition”) of Tangshan
Fengrun Hengfeng Iron and Steel Company Limited
(formerly known as Tangshan Baotai Iron and Steel
Group Xinyi Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.) (“Hengfeng Iron
and Steel”) from its original third party shareholders (the
“Vendors”), for a cash consideration of RMB 237 million
and RMB 295 million respectively. The details of the
acquisition are set in the announcement published on
12 August 2008. Accordingly, Jinxi Limited has paid a
substantial portion of the consideration being RMB 400
million (the “Paid Consideration”) to the Vendors.

On 30 December 2008, Jinxi Limited entered into a
termination agreement (the “Termination Agreement”)
with Hengfeng Iron and Steel and the Vendors.
Pursuant to the Termination Agreement, Jinxi Limited
and the Vendors have unconditionally and irrevocably
agreed to abort the Acquisition and have entered
into the Termination Agreement to terminate the
Acquisition. Accordingly, Jinxi Limited and the Vendors
will not proceed with the Acquisition. The Vendors
unconditionally and irrevocably agreed to refund the Paid
Consideration to Jinxi Limited within 10 days from the
date of the Termination Agreement which was due on 9
January 2009. The details of the termination are set in
the announcement published on 31 December 2008.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT \F+-_A=1+—HIEE

43. KEBARSER

BRANER A M RAR T EWEID -

ARE

BABENTEAREERKER

RER-_ZFZN\FN\AEAE
Rl g E S RS
AELTEERESHEER
2 7] (ATH8 7 1L 2 i 4 5
EnMEARQF) ([1ELH
BN ZRE=JTBRR(ER D
DHINBREHREARK 237 &
TTMARY2.95 BT WS
B 2 18 L 8 8 71 % AR A AR R
EXx(WE=ERE] - KRBFE
ZHBETHER -_ZZNFN
ATZBZRER - &It - 2
FEHEEREN X HRENE
EMOARB4BTTENRK
Bl -

R-FENF+_H=1H"
R EEELMERE S
RIS — M b (& L
&) o R L5 - 2P
N B 7 B 8 R 30T AT RGHE
WREFRKESE YEF
HEJRGES IR d = S
Bt =A#HENE S T e
BETRBER - ETEGN
b A0 S AT HEE 30 B B A AR L1
ERERESTER =T
ZNF-ANBBENRER
ERTIE - R 12 FHIFEN =
TEENF+-_A=1t—HBRIH

/N
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) For the year ended 31 December 2008

(BABEAN ESEINARBTIREN) BE—TT/\F+-_A=t—HLFE

43. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the significant subsequent events of the Group
were as follows: (continued)

(i) (continued)

Pursuant to a settlement agreement dated 11 January
2009, the Vendors agreed to repay RMB 200 million
before 31 March 2009 and the remaining balance of
RMB 200 million before 31 December 2009. Besides,
both parties entered into an unconditional and
irrevocable deed of mortgages on 10 January 2009 to
secure that the Vendors have pledged its fixed assets
of Hengfeng Iron and Steel as security of settlement of
the Paid Consideration. The details of the repayment
schedule are set in the announcement published on 20
February 2009.

Pursuant to an assets acquisition agreement dated 24
March 2009, Zhengda Iron and Steel acquired the assets
relating to the iron and steel production from Hengfeng
Iron and Steel at an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB 396 million.

In March 2009, Jinxi Limited, Zhengda Iron and Steel
and Hengfeng Iron and Steel entered into a tri-party
agreement. Pursuant to the tri-party agreement,
Zhengda Iron and Steel was granted a right to remit
RMB 200 million directly (a partial payment of the
consideration for the acquisition of the assets) to Jinxi
Limited as refund of portion of the Paid Consideration.
The details of the assets acquisition and repayment
of Paid Consideration are set in the announcement
published on 25 March 2009.
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43. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the significant subsequent events of the Group

were as follows: (continued)

(i)

(i)

In January 2009, Jinxi Limited granted a guarantee in
favour of a third party for bank facility amounting to RMB
80 million.

As approved by the Board and Shareholders’ meeting,
the share options were granted to the directors and
employees on 24 February 2009, in an aggregate to
21,200,000 shares at an exercise price of HK$ 1.39 per
share. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash. The options
are exercisable during the following periods:

(i) up to 50% of the options on or after 24 February
2009;

(i) up to further 75% of the options on or after 24
February 2010;

(i) all the remaining options on or after 24 February
2011.

and in each case, not later than 23 February 2019.

On 27 February 2009, all the directors and employees
have accepted the share options.

44. APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board on 3 April 2009.

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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Five-year Financial Information

LEMBER

A summary of the consolidated income statement and of the AEEEZ L EMBRFEENGEERER

consolidated assets, liabilities and minority interest of the Group for FMEGEEE - AR VR REHMEZE
the last five financial years is as set out below: FIR -
Consolidated Income Statement e Emx

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=T—-HLEE

Audited
RER
Restated
57
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENF —TTLF TTREF TTRF _—TTWMF

RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETRE ARBTIT ARETT AREBTT ARETT

Revenue A 19,388,183 13,498,555 9,782,116 9,182,693 9,118,875
Profit before income tax B AT 1551 Al Vi 7l 113,601 1,450,354 1,233,236 1,004,196 1,175,832
Income tax expense TSt & A (70,643) (256,617) (210,886) (157,081) 33,686
Profit for the year FERF 42,958 1,193,737 1,022,350 847,115 1,209,518
Attributable to: JE1h
Equity holders of RAEIEEFEE A

the Company 44,032 1,159,657 1,032,754 846,585 1,181,006
Minority interest LR RS (1,074) 34,080 (10,404) 530 28,512

42,958 1,198,737 1,022,350 847,115 1,209,518

Consolidated Assets, Liabilities and Minority Interest RAEE  BEESHRRERS

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
Audited
RER
Restated
57
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

—EENE —TT+F —TERF —TTRF —TTWEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREFTRT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Total assets BEE 14,136,057 10,162,120 8,221,367 8,152,862 7,481,892
Total liabilities wafE (7,646,117) (3,466,016) (2,619,918) (3,420,767) (3,481,028)
Minority interest DER R A (224,711)  (147,414) (122,322) (138,643) (115,524)

6,265,229 6,548,690 5,479,127 4,693,452 3,885,340
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